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Acronyms

3, PERA Classification: National Pubslic Entity {current NHFC classification]
AFD fAgenca Frangaise de Développemant (French Development Agancy]
BCIC Baard Credit and Investmant Committes

BMG Braaking Mew Ground

CEQ Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chiaf Financial Cficar

CMEC Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation

cH Corporate Social Irvestmient

CTCHC Cape Town Community Housing Company [Pty) Limited (fwhiolly ownaed subsidiary|
C¥Fls Cewelopmant Finance Institutions

M5 Cepartment of Human Settlements

DFE Crpartment of Public Enterpriss

om Cepartment of Trade and Industry

EES Employee Engagement Survey

EIR Eurapean Irvestment Bank

ERM Enterprise Risk Management

EEXCD Executive Committes

FLISP Finance Limkad Individual Subsidy Programme

FRAC Financial Risk Management Committes

HOA Housing Development Agency

HFF Home Front Finance (WHFC Ratail Dindsion)

HIP Housing Investment Partners (PLy) Limited

HRER Human Resowrces, Ethics and Bemuneration Committes

A Indepandent Counseling and Advisory Service

WCC Internal Cradit Committes

IRC Internal Risk Committea

MCC Managemant Credit Cormmittes

MO Mortgage Default Insurance

Moll Memaorandum of Uindertaking

MNCA, Mational Cradit Act

MDoHS Matignal Department of Human Settlemeants

MHERC Matizmal Home Builders Registration Coundil

NHFC Mational Housing Corporation Limited / The Corporation

PACH Fan African Capital Holdings Limited (Partner in HIF]

PEMA Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999

PPPFA Prefarantial Procuremnent Policy Framework Act

TLHF Trust for Urban Housing Finance

Workplace Skills Plan
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Profile of the NHFC

Mandate

The Mational Housing Finance Corporation (MHFC) was established by the Mational Department of
Housing as a Development Finance Institution {IXF1) in 1996, with the principal mandate of Brosdening
and deepening access to affordable housing finance for the low-to-middle income South African
househalds

WVision

Ta be the leader in development finance for the low-to-middle income housing market,
Mission

Provide inmovative and affordable housing finance solutions to the low-to-middle income markst.

How does the NHFC deliver on its mandate?

The MHFC achieves its mandate through the provision of wholesale financing of the following three
hausing optiens for households:

W Rental Howsing;

W Home Ownarship through Martgadge: and

L]

ncrarmental Howsimg,

The choice of the option depends on the customers affordabilicy at the time
Rental Housing

This entails the prowvisien of loans to insttuticns that provide varous housing tenure options other
than cwnership, The types of rental preducts are as follows:

# Social Housing Rental

a This type of rental accommodation s mose affordable than private/cormmencial

accammadation and s provided by Social Housing Institutions [SHIs) which are section
21 compamnies {naot for profit);

& Restructuring Capital Grants (RCOGs) to the projects are allocated by MOOHS via the Social

Hiusing Regulatory Authorty (SHRA] and top-up subsidies are allocated by the Pravincial
Gowernment; and

The MHFC provides leng-term loans (up to 20 years) (o the projects for the balance of the
funding required to implement the project,

% Private KEental
&  Thistype of rental accommeadation is provided by proate landlord s who do not receive

any subsidies or grants, Only loan funding is used to develop the project, it however
caters for the affordable markets, This also includes Inner Cities rental developments
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Hormea Ownership

Home Cwnarship is achioved through the provision of mortgage bonds for either buying an exsting home or building one

W Partnership with Banks

Through co-hnancing and risk-enhancement machanisms, banks'lending in this segment of the market, is increased and
sustained.

# MNon-Ba nking Retall Intermediarias

MHFC pravides lsans o non-banking retail intermadianes, who an-lend 1o howssholds in the MHFC target markel, dcoess
1o home loans is increased and delivered through the branch networks of such intermediaries,

Incremental Housing

Funding is made available via intesmediaries, 1o end-users whose household income ranges between [1,500 to 715,000 and
for leans usually betweaen R1,000 and R20,000. The end-user may use thesa loans to

# obtain building supplies;
buy land on which to build;
service land;

lay foundations;

pay far building weorks;

top up subsidy amounts; and

F ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥

furd any form of use ralating ta housing that is permanent [not furmishing, s,

Strategic objectives of the Corporation

The fallewing measurable and impactful dovers represent the Corporation’s frve-yaar strateqic thrust and objectes towards
achieving its mandate:

# Expand housing finance activities, through the effective provision of housing finance solutions, thus enabling low-to-
rmiddle income households to have a choice of renting, owning ar incrermentally building, to meet their howsing neads.

#  Facilitare the increased and sustained lending by financial institutions 1o the afferdabile housing market,

# Mobilise funding mto the human settlement space, on a sustainakle basis, in partnership with the broadest range of
institutions

#  Conduct the business activities of the NHFC In a manner that enswres the continued scanomic sustainabdity of the
Corporation whilst promoting lasting social, ethical and environmental developmant.

#  Stimulate the low-to-middle income howsing sector, by providing rabust, relevant and timely research and marke

analysis to practitionsss and housing consumars,
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Key milestones
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Minister of Human Settlements broadeaned mandate to include retail housing fmance.

Instrumental in the drafing of the Natienal Credit B, promubgation of the Natkenal Credit Act
and the forrmation of the Mational Credit Regulatbor.

Co-organised and funded the International Housing Innovation Competition at the Eric Molkabi
Hukby, Soshanguve, Tshwane, in Gauteng.

Completed the In-house Emd-User Satisfactbon Survey.

Assumed new Mandate, Vision and Mission; piloted Retail product - Yulikhaya Hoeme Loan, in
conjunction with the Poest Bank a division of the South African Post Office (SAPO] group.

Undertook End User Satisfaction Survey on BSE design Abod (United States-baied alternative
building system].

Launched Housing Investrment Partners (HIP] in conjunction with Pan African Capital Holdings
(PACH),

Co-organised the International Symposium on Urban Development, Housing and Social
Coheslon with French Developrment Agency (AFD) and Brazilian countarparts.

Co-organited and funded the training of 400 black estate agents with ABSA Bank.

Old Mutual Capital Haldings incorporated as partmer in HIF
Highest number of units funded in financial vaar, since inception,

Retail Division, Home Front Finance (HFF) set up.

External funding and PFMA approvals thereof secured.

signed an agreemaent with AFD worth EUR20 million and working towards concluding an
agreament with European Investment Bank [EIB] for EURIG million towards developmant of
the inner city with social rental housing projects,

MHFC adapts its approach and strategies to align with the Mational Department of Human
Seftlements' (MOwHS] prionties and developrmental Impact expectations.

The Boitekong Project, a Public-Private Partnership with Implats, to provide end-user finance
to their employees, won the Southem African Housing Foundation Project of the Year 2009
Intemational Award,

MOoHS announcement of BT billion guarantes fund to address the Gap market in the form of
Mortgage Default Insurance [MDI] t2 be administered and managed by the NHFC,

Signied an agresment with the EIB for the rand equivalent of EUR3I0 milllon.

Concluded an agresment with Old Mutual Life Assurance Company of South Africa and its BEE
Partners to participate in an Affardable Housing Fund with initial funding of R0 million. The
progect will eventually generate RS billion inte the econamy over a 10-pear paricd and finance
the development and sale of 25000 affordakle wnits,

Humber of key MHFC housing proejects launched by the South Africa Matlonal Fresident and
the Minister of Human Settlements.
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Wholesale: Disbursements for 2010/2011
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Wholesale footprint

Access 1o housing finance made avallabde to low-incorme eamers for 200100201 1: &

Maorth West

Morthern Cape

Waestern Cape

W HHFC Wl cgale Toatprint
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From left to right — standing; Dr Snowy Bhoza, Ms Anthea H n, Mr Sango N il N Lok Ca =
From left ta right - seated: Mi Sommet Swanegeel, Mr Samsen Moraba, Prod Micheel Katz, Ms Pheka e Ramarume, e Sizwe Tati
Marme and designation  Academic qualifications NHFC Dirgector bram
Indespandant Non-Executive Chalrman
Prof Michas] Kate  BCam LLB [ies]; LLM (Marvand Law Schooll: LUD (] (i) 10 My 1996
Chairrman, Edwand Marban Seanenbengs
Chief Executive Officer
Mr Samson Maraba  BCom Untsa, PRIDH{Ha reand) 11 Janusary 1983
Chief Executive Officer, AT
independent Mon-Executive Directors
MrSango Mtsaluba O {50 BCom (Fort Harel; BCompt Honours [Unisal; BHD i T Lasy (L) % December 2003

Chairnan: Araabutsi Grou

W r Sirre Tath
Cerctor: ¥okan Group

D Smowy Hhaza
Chel Expourie O¥ficer: Sgan Aloe SETvCEs
1Py Limitad

Mr Johan Coetzee

Retired Banker drad obrechor of companies
s Anthea Houstan

Development Consuffant

M Phaplcanas Ramanu mo

Truly Africar Solutkons (Plannimg Conpulierds)
Chawprarion of the Shefurary Baard of Serveon
Hausing Fokafions

M3 Sonmet Swanepoel
CED Ag) Dupredt Hodairg (P Limited

Company Secretarny
hits Elsaba Marx

BCam (Universty of The Morthi; Post-Graduate Diploma in

Management (GEMT); Diploma in Company Directing (la O
Senior BErecutive Frogramme (Harvard]

MEA LT PhD Brandals Univarsity LUSAE MA {55] [UMESSE BA (Hong)
ARart Harel: A, (SW) {Undvars ity of the Narth]

B {University of Pretarial; MBA (Graduate School of Manesgement]
{Univeraity of Pretonia)

Post-Graduate Diploma in Man agement: Grganisation and
Management (ULT); Banking Licentiate DHploma

PP WYAF [Susmya) USA

BScilsh Honours

B Prrgg; ILLES LLM

1 September 1936

¥ Felyruary J00S8

£ May 2009

& May 2009

& May 2000

13 Decembrer 2070

28 Drgtpber 004




Executive Committee

MHFC Arnusl Report 2011
Paqe @

Mame and deslgnation  Academic gualifcations Executive from
Mir Samdon Moraba  BCoan Units; PRD (Harsard) January 1999
Chiaf Expournive Ovficer
s Zonia Adams  BLompt Honours: CA (54) January J007
Chisf Fnanciad (fbcer
Mr Andrew Chimphondah & {Z); MBA [Durham-LK] September 2008
Muraging Executive: Strodegis invesimrsraty
Mr Alsn Govender  MBA {Milpurk Business Schoal Midrand Graduate [nstinute) Mareh 200
Garreral Mamager: infumation Technology
Mir Reginald Haman'  MHD; GO, PDEA; MEA (Liniversity of Pretara [GIBS)] September 21009
Exrcutive Munager: Enterprisz Wide Risk
Mr Lewrence Lehabe BCom; M5c (Mardketing) Jhily BO05
Ewraitive Marmager: Projchs
Dr Simphihve Madikizala  BAgric Ecomomics: BirstAgrar Hong: Minst Agrar; PRD Econornics July 1008
Garmral Manager: Commarcial  IEDP (UK)
Ms Maseqa Malulake  BA Indusirial Peychology [Wits) Masters in Pulblic and Davalopmant Sopiambiar 2010
Gameral Manager: Corparaie Commanicmtians  Managemant [Wics): Srategic Marketing Managemant [Wits);
ol Markating  1EDP (GIBS)
Mz Mandy Mamatale  BCom (Hons) MBA IEDP {UK) Decembar 2010
Exerarve Manoger: Credit
Mr Siegfried Mogane  BCom; MStmat uly Foa7
Chiel Qperating Qifcer: Refat
Mir Sydnay Mulsps  BCom; MBA Ayt 7008
Exenvtive Manoger: Morfigage Insurance
Mis Nomsa Mtshingila  MSc Clinical Brpchalogy; BfaSc (Mans); HED;: B Com September 1005
Exerudtive Mandger: Hurman Recuice
MiThandi Shisba  BCom; BComgt fHorsl; CIA March 2911
Expeulive Moviages: Erderprine Wide Risk
Mir Chriis Moodiey  BCom [Wnisa); MB& {Wales] Septamber 7070
Gzl Mamger: Fropcts

" Resigaed in 2010
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Chairman’s Report

Zauth Africans basked in the glong of the 2000 FIFA Weeld Cup. It had been heralded as a toumamant
af “great sacess” for all the parties and the canchisicn was that irespecive af the result af the
final, thee “raal victor of the 7010 World Cup is Africa and the Sowth African peaple”, “Hs arganisatsan
surpasted expactations, At the tounnament ook place @ oa pasitive spint and sate enviranmeng for

athlates, fans, chservers, ard lacal cammunity membens, alike” says the Secratary General of the
United Hatsans, Mr Ban K Moon

Many businesses and sectors of the economy berefited significartly from the tournament
Unforunately this was not so for the erwironment in which the NHFC cperated, in the year
under review. This penod was more charackerised by slow, but moderately improvng economic

conditions. High unemployment, overindebtedness of howseholds, stricter banking lending

criteria and lower average irderest rates weighed negatieely on the overall perfarmanece of the
MHFL

The year under review, was, howeyer sventful for the AP as it shifted gear by buildng both
capacity and competence in the Mortgage Defaw? Insurance IMDI) Project, which iz backed by
thie rollowt of the B1 bn quarantes The D] will effectively contnbute tovwands the adhievesment
af the Minister of Human Settlement’s Outcome B Perfoemance targets by 2004 The Inner City
thrust by the HHFC remained a key arsa of focus, & the Minister launched one of the flagship
projects, the Cavendeh, in the Inmer City of Johannesburg. Mo wonder therefore, that the
MHFC is experiencing increassd shareholder sxpectabons, as expressed m the Minister's better
to me, mdicating thaet "there is high expectation on the BHFC, particulardy in its proveson

af development finance m its niche market, snd the implementation of the heghly crtical
Mortgage Diefault Insurance mstroment®

Gl Corparale govermanoe cantinises to be an important chjective of the NHFC In this
maggard | am delighted T rmendicn that, n the wear under rovies, the Board had sel-up Twe
acldinioral Bossd suib-Coimmiriees, The Dl apiviae il I st afd S aregny siil-Caminires
ard s sepaeated the fisdit framy the Risk Cameities, 5o a3 10 sharpsn itd fecus an

ThHese oo cnfical roles, arsd therely, pay patioular astenton 1o the risk appenite of the
Corparation ard aligr icsell wtls the releva vt e cimmwendations of King 1

Changes to the Board

Wi owe a hisge debl of grafisde 1o Med Nodavwe Makiwanes, shio ressgned from
the Board, for ke epormeous contribution to the Board over 2o many years, Her
commilmen], conscienfiousness and uncondificnsl supporl of the veson and
abpet Lives of the MHFC was admirable. &1 the same Bime, | wouild alse like bo weliome
Wi Sommel Swanepoel Uo our Boand and wish her well, We look forsard Lo her making

& mesninglud contrbifticn 1o the vesan and sirategy of The NHFC. Corgratulations to
Dr Srawiy Kheda, lor her appointment as the CED of Bigen Alrica.

Wi ane abse oy gratetul 1o our Minisgern, Mr Tokyo Seowale for his cameninment
e the WHFC ared tor his great supgert, He has shared oo sision and has given us

hils Timwe wlsenaver reguestad In garticilar e had proanpily piovided s with 3
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apprevals which wee have reqidred trom hime Similary, wa thank the Deecior-Gansral ard hig
tearn o Thesir undinmg suppart. They have indeed warked in true gartnerghips with the exsoutig

managament af the NHFC

To iy fellow Board members, | salute you, for your insight, depth and particulasly for the strategic

input and energy that have resutbed n our Board meetings becoming so excitng and effective

To the CED ard b mansgement leam our sincere congralulsticns and thanks. They bave risen
I thes extcasion and indeed hewe be==n trelblaers, wilh greal conflidence, maturily snd difigence
Their resclve 1o $ticking 1o “ther knitlirg; even during tryng economic conditions ard pressoes

la succumbs, is lsudablbe

Firally, wie readily recosd chat thare remain §ere By SIFaTag i marners That are imrently récaiing
arentien, ingluding the Human Sattlement Devaloprent Foance Insgitutons {BF Revess arnd
A propasal for cheir Conseliclation, 1w Ccame B Perlormance Impesatiee and the renevwed

exgracTation fnem the Shaneholder of the NHPOS gieanes level of perfoemance

in all of these, and in all our tasks and challenges, | can confirmn that the NHFC & ready, agile
and tharaughly equipped to exceed expectations, in terms of being the Human Setternents

Dewelopment Finance Instibuton of choice

A

Praf. Michaal Katz

Chairman

The NHFC is ready, agile, and thoroughly eguipped
toexceed expectations, interms ofbeing the Human
Settlements Development Finance Ingtitution of
choice.
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| Chief Executive Officer’s Review

| | intreduction

The Sowth Afncan econonmy was ghow to recover from ifs first recession in 17 years and grew by 225% in 3310, Losw inflation
irlerest rabes and a modest recovery in house prices edded the presiume in househelds, lBEaving them in & beller position Lo
repay debil. Dedpate this, maodl housebalds mmaned reliactent o ke on new debl, given high housebald debt ta indeme
I. I ralias, Meanywhibe, the Retal aimd Corpporate dce, while generally improving in thapse, also eimained caumaus and benited

| Thaii actiiry in terms of draw-dewnd and ineestments, The affets of the ceaiall eoonemic Sawannimm, pamicilady in the
hiiging Anance markat, &5 wall 35 tha collapss of the credit and mortgage markets made bon der meane iok avema, ag oradiy
o haoussholds ard businass fell drastically. Aocording to the Fist Naticnal Bank (FMEL the residential propsety markes
remained weak, for mast or paet of 2000, and early In 2000, and could still experience negatias growth.

Highlights of the Year Under Review

W MM Comgany arofit before tas is 11% highier tham last year.

W The MHFC is an wack with the develapmant and imglermentsticn af the Mortgege Delfaul nsurarce (MDD Ciparatig
Medal, backed by che R Bilicn Guarantes

W Swccessiul mobdsation of extermal affordable funding irto Integrated Human Setfement Developmert (allocation
and disbursement of the AFD and EIB funds, inle the privale and sooal alfordsble rertal markel)
W The distressed chents turnaraund and collactian recovery strategy was successfully implemerited

W MHFCY pionasring dirslegs invesimend snd parne in expanding Che inrer city regereration, Trust for Urhen
Hioiisi e Firance CTUHFD lear portielio resdlses mcre than R1TBn maek (A1 .2 5=]

o Highest numiber of WHFC progsct launches within a single year, proving the extent to which the Corporation is
making a dilference @ the lives of the may undersrved low income househakis.

# Feadiness of the Housing Irvestment Partneship's (H8] launch of the fived income-linked housing finance
instrument.

Operations

Multiple factors contributed to the owerall beldow target performance, notasthatanding the recent seemangly

improved ecanamic chrmate, in the farm of bowe inflation and interest rate levels. The ey anes that had 2 direct
impact te NHEC's performanice are the folloaing:

# Constrained Banks' Lending and Households Owver-indebtedness

The banks hagh cost to income ratics, bad debt and higher capital and bquidry reguiremnents, put the
affordable housirg finance sactor under pressure. resulting i sgnificant tightersng of lending oitena. On

the othier hand, #nd users’over indebtedness, also became a factor that reduced the levsl of take up of debs
by househedds,

# Dependence on Subsidy Funding of Social Rental Housing

In miost Provinces, Bestructuring Capetal Gramts (RG] or subsidies for social housing projects were not
availsble, hus limiting the NHFC froen providing Top up linding en a nember of already approved projects

# Timing of Complex Structured Deals

The pratracted nature of negatiations ard comgles structunnig of Lirge integrated housing develapment
prajecty, delayed the need o daburiements wathin The vear undes reviews. For sxamiple, one of The large
prapec iy faarth R Bilkan), the NHFC i co-fnanding witk an ir Bl ulionasl irmvestment comgrany, was sialled

Financials

The fnancisl pesformande of the MHFC is captansd m the context of its business perfarmande, a5 well as
the comtinged challangrg ecanamic, sotial ard paliticsl erdrermeants

0 The Grows praht before tax of 76 million, inoreased manginalty fram 2010 The kit rarti o, haorasener,
remain urdier pressure. The benefits of reduced impairments, coupled with cost contanment by

rmianagemaent could riok completely offset the decline of the revenwe, a5 1% can be seen inthe high
COSE MCames ratio
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liit The MHFCs impairment charge of 8,07%, though lower than the previous yeae is higher than
the budgeted figure of 5. This also indicates stress kevels that sl exist m the economy, as
wedl as the MHFCS assumption of higher risk.

(i) A dair areauit of tirse arad redaurced were deployed 1o work an seme of the probilematic
cliarits, with the wiew of masimising recoveries o tam them araumd Much success las been
ampirved in this regard Thgugh this exesdae, 3 considerable amoum was barked by year-aid

Impact

Durireg the wear wnder review, the MHFC continesd to be o cotalyst in increasing prvate seclor
participstion in 1he afordable Rowsing markel This was achieved theough either the MHFC
suppEarticg ity key dients 1o s point of gredusticn, or i the increase of funding new entities in
the affcedable housing space, & case in poml i the eriry of large players Bke Cld Muftesl, Future
Grawth, Cadiz and the FIC = the affordable

housing] markel One area of developmental

impact was the sugcessiul sowong  and

aBacating of altemative furding. Trom bath The effects of the overall economic downturn, puﬂicu.lfn'rfy
::j Ei::ﬂ:;?;:zc:_! J:Z:‘: :';ul: in the housing finance market, as well as the collapse of
a wim of RE8E million was channelled into the credit and maortgage markets made lenders more
the human setement space through this sk averse, as lit to h holds and business fell

drastically.

nteErsention.

The significant drop in housing apgerunities
5 clue Tar thee impacct froen the Comreroial unit
of the Baisiness The main reason being thar,
ot ot hiand, Incremen il Loan numbers seere much lower, yet large in size, Tram an average af
RS MY b B1LECC per lan, On the cibver hand, the projected disburement sich key ciepts did
niat Take place a5 envlsaged, as samw detressed chents had oo be narrsed arcand charing the pe fod
ursler review belone they can Tumber aocess the Badilites they had or chitain new anes

Divisional highlights

Projects

The= Project’s Dramion acheeved $1% of fs disbursements budget, ard delivered 5 757
howsang impact against a budget of 8 400 wnits. Bath the bank lending contracting
eritry of new furding players in the affordable space, and the unavailzbility of the social
howang subsidies, contribwted much to this kow level of debwrsements.

Commerclal

The greatest impact of the Commercial business in the year under resiew was financial
insstead of new hiousing opporiunites, as ey disbressed clients wene restored to nommality
amd cawght up with their arnears siuation instead of taking up new faclibes

Retail

Feetall clisbairsemenis vare 500 of Budger, as in sooesraned The prooess af s closung,
i Che rrviel ol G The peersy Bnanial year
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Chief Executive Officer's Review continued

Strategic partnerships

TUHF remains & conspicusus axample of the HHFC's success story of significantly expanding its
impact through Stategic partnershipe The HHFCs initial irvestmens of B10 millian in 2003 has
translated irvlo & viable antiy, woth b loan Bock of B Je, and having created 17 000 Bousing
opportunities manly in the oty of Johanmesbung. TUHF & now sxpanding its reach, and has now
pranched cut te KEN [Budan), and the Eastern Cape (Part Elizabeth,

A% part ol igs Strategy o srengthen TUHFS abiliny to sigraficantly gooss it Puisiness incthe nest iive
years, the MHFC will incresse its shareholding in TUHF from 22% to 29%, and help raise additicnal
capatal fundineg. to improve TUHFS capital asset mti.

Howsing Investment Partnership (HIF)

Aecent devel coments in HIF, post wear erd, saw the mot of Pan African Capital Holding (P&CH asa
Sharehelder, with the HHFC and Old Misisal [CMCHI remaining with 33% and 7% Shamebaldirg,
respectively.

Figr the NMEL, thiz is a sigrificant developmeartal impact of facilitating large institutiorad investars
1o particgpate In the funding of thase peopla who earn too much 1o quality for subsidies, but teo
Brhe B el mcebgage loan from the Banks,

Strategic initiatives
The DFI review process

Trie irigial susimary propasal from the OF] Resiew Process, tabled a nesd far a cansalidatian af he
thiree Muman Settfement Mousing Finance OFls, namesly WHFC, RURCHA and BHLF irto a single
emtimy. Whilst that remained wnder consideration, the NHFC confinuies to wiganously pursss its
marsdate and Qutcamse & irgecstives, while gl the sams me axploring aplions ard implicationg
of such a consoldation. Such a consolidation howseser, has toweld greater developmenital impact
than thie gum of thi thee indiidual human sertemants hausing finance DFI5

Disposal of the retail business

Misch progress has been made in the effort o el the Retail book, and the necessary PRMA
permissions sre bsng sought as this epresanty a dispodal of 8 sigrficant asset. This sale would
provide additional furding for the MHFC, in bne with the cumrent year business plan.

Turnaround af CTCHC

Thie key to the successful turnaround of CTCHC, a whiolty owned subsidary, lies i the sale of its
Eegacy Stack, i hwill injact new capital ingo the busirsss, Drher initatives supparting this turn-
arpund strategy includes cost conlainment and rationalisation of scthwlies, the opfimization of
debt collection levels and the praper project costings are being closely monitored acrass CTEHC,

Mortgage Default Insurance {“MDI")

A feasibality study conducted in the priaryear which includied all major housing finance stakeholders,
corfirned That reascrai e conciticrms exist in Sauth Afica to estaldish a MDI operatiaon

The Minister of Hueman Semlerents supported the implementation of the MDD pogramre
through the MHFC, a5 an optimal mesns to access the B1 bilbon guaramtee. Waork on the
implementation plan of the Mertgage Default Insumnce Dperating Medal s comtinuirg and the
Corporalion o im the prodess of ablaining the neceisary approvali

Thie successTl implementation of the MDI will promote sccess o afordable, guaslity Rousing
om a sustainable bages for South Afncan househalds 2 part of a larger housing finance wystem
and omirilaite Towards the achiederment of the Minister of Human Semlements Quicamss &
Performance targets by 2014,

Way forward

The MHFC has & significant contibution to make in the main in fwe of the fow Outcomes
& components, namely, the mprowing of prege iy markets and making affordabde rental housing
accesiible ta low- and middbe-inoeme haussholds
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ey to the prierities of the MHFC & the successful bullding and implementation of the Martgags
Dedault Insurance (MG Oparating Madal, The BHFC is an track with the building of the M
cgarating madel, backad by the RTbn Guamnies

With respect to making affordable housing acoessible ta low-income households, in the year
under review, the HHFC has accelerated s funding for both secial and private remtal housing.
blending its awen funding with that mabilised from the muhi-lazeral agencies, lke AFD and B8

Thee process of windirg -down Belail s af an sdvenced stage. This should be complete in the nest
six months of the new inanoal year The change mansgement process is peet of the process thal
erisures The redeployment of sLail weitkin The greater NHFC,

On the Strategic panrership freat the inglusion of & Thingd irmeester in the HIPS initiative vl
represeny great gaing far the human seqiemants seCrer, As the markel is namang the corner the
MHFC hias embarked an s Swategy 10 Build new capabalities, enhande s pricing ard efficency
arsd thiss im@raving its potemtial 1o take advantags of the change.

In wiews of the increased  Shasehalder
expactaticns, the NHFC continues to strengthen

its partnership and collaborative effarts with Towards making affordable housing accessible to low-

the Provinces This will definitely go far,

accelerating the delvery of affordable socal income hn"ﬂhﬂfd.'l, the NHFC accelerated its ms

rental housing, supparted by the prowindal

subsidy provision, and the increased supply of for both social and private rental hﬂ"ﬂng; bhﬂﬁﬂﬂg its
affardable housing finance, using the finance own Fi i g with that mobilised f ﬂ"l‘ l'l‘!ll.l'.rﬂ-.fﬂ 1

linked irdividual subsidy programme (FLUEF).

agencies.
Appreciation
A apacial thanks goet o The Hoanourakble
Mlinister, Mir Tolgpo Senwale, Tor his amass
suippert Tor the Carpoeration, &8 caphared in the statements made by aur Chaeman in bis mpor
Hit widig th the Corparatian and meating all the 21alf wad eventiul and o resmnarable sapensiis
e Bharn, The do-ogeralicen wilh which we worked tegether wath the Degartmen of Hurman
Sartements |DHEL i credived to the cpermess snd the leadership of the Direcior Gapsral,
Il Thabarse Zulu, The cpparunitied we had of comtirmed mesinglhd engagemant ard leedback
airreed &1 imgeaving delrary are mudh appradiated,

My gratibude alsa goaes to the Charman of the Baard, Prof Mechasl Katz, for his passion for
devedopmantal impact, unering wishon and kadarship that i reflective in the Board of the
Corporation. Many thanks gees to my fellow Board members for their leadership, fledbibng
insight and diligence at the Baard ard espacially in the Board Cammnitties mestings, that wane not
canly fruitful and leng, buet mane freguent as vwall.

Without our funding partners, AFD and E#, we could not have achiesed so much thes year | thank
them for the role they played to the advantage of the mary South Afncan househealds, especially
im th low- to maddle- income bracket

W owes sl ol our sudcess 1o aur Clients and partners, Chrausgh vbsom we veere abls Lo exiend
the e b aned delivery of alfardable haudirng Mineece Lo our Gaege markel

Ta auf sIrateghc pan s, we congratulate you far bsing critical in gour guast to maman inncsatie
and providing eptions, and tharefors chaics, for the low and of the housirg market.

Loodonig foraard ta an smproesd perfoarmance of the Comioration, in the farn of significantly
scaled developmental impact, undempinred by creative partrerships, strong collsboraton with
cur dients and funding partness, aligred approaches with the Provinoes, and the melentless
support from the Minestry and the Departmient of Heman Settements.

4
i A

*
Mr Samson Moraba
Chief Fxecutive OfMcer
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Strategic Investments

Subsidiary Company: Cape Town Community Housing Company
{"CTCHC™)

Thee MHFC buat & 1000 enteredr in CTCHC, b visw of this inoneased Shane capitsl and debil capital
cammitiesent ifs CTOHC, the NHFC B indrensed 08 Bocis to Tume-araurd this sl sidsary By increasing
first i3 Baand partedipation with the inclision of addgicns thres memben frem the NEFC Execifive
Teaim

CTCHE hias novw delivered close 1o 3 500 units of whach 2 700 are far people guakfying far hiousing
subsidies. Another 2 808 have been upgraded in its rectification progeamime, with niss windows,

gutters, ceilings, paving and pairting.

Dy the cuerent financial yesr Morgen’s Village 3, was given the best housing progect saard in
the categary for hamess costing ower B0 000 by the Southem Afncan Housing Foundation.

Associate Company: Housing Investment Partnership (HiP)
Thee HHFC has a 25% interest im HiP which is irvobeed in the development and marketing of the
Irsizrne-Lmnked Hoene FRancing Irslroement

The HIP? income-linked home loan enhances the affordabdlity lesel of frst time home buyers
enzhling the acquizition of decent housing in the howsng gap markst segment.

Thee viniguigness fram the prodiut anises fooen the Tact that the lagn repayments are disangaged
fren interess mte wolatiling

Within the 501 2 Ainarscial year, e NHFC inc reased fs sharehaldirg o HIP Tram 25% 1o 33%

Associate Company: Trust for Urban Housing Finance ("TUHF")

Thee NHFC Fuas 8 3% irlerast in TUHF which is irsedved in the provision of comemerdal prapsrty
Arance i the Tamn of bridging finange and leng-term laans Tor the regeneration af South
African inmer ity pracincts and surraunding suburks
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Sustainability Report

Dring the 2011 fnancial vear, MHFD made notable pregress and censtiuted 3 Develapmantal Imgact and Sirategy

Committes FTESC"], a sub-committes of the Baand DIEC develaped a Develapmiamal Impact Framsrasaik and Stakehoddars
prafile which wene approved by the Board, The Framawerk autlings stratagis ahjecives that emanate fram the Strategic
Flan, the awputs, sutgemeas and developmental pricaities. The Stakehelder profile includes the axpactaticns thay the
stakehaldars have Tram NHFC uistaposed with the NEFC pramite to the stakeheldens The NHFC is cammitted ta the
princgples of sustainaile econeemic, soclal and enviranmental develapmant in itz invastment deddans

Economic Sustainability

The Carporatsan was < apatalived at ingeplion and redeives e grand funding ram the Depariment ol Human Sectlemants
Thie susLairstn livy af the Conparation is depersdert an it budding up ol reserves. The lorng-Lerm sustaivasbility s the refore
i e atree Tor Thee Tuture of the Corporation, especally il it is o debver an A8 deseloprental marndate. The Corparation
dges ol pay drvidends 1o the sharabalder Bt is howeyer g e-payng entily,

Group Fimancial Performance

201 200 24
Pt Bt Tax IRrnf L EE 150
Returm an equity % 1E3 LEN 5.0
ToLal assens IFrn} FR 1,838 2,758
Capital arel nesenas IR} 2,477 2217 2,158

The current finanoal year has been characterised by the difficult marioes conditions that continue o imgact on
the aperations of aur clerits, pantrers, and end wsers, thus affecting the overall performance of the Comporation.
Multiple factors conributed to the owerall below target pesformarde, notwithstanding the recent seemingly
improsed economic dimate, i the form of bow inflation and level of inberest mabes

The Corporation maintained its credit rabng as detalsd below:

Glabal Credit Rating Lo

Mational long term LE
Mational short term Al

Governance and Compliance

Ag 3 public enting MHFC is requered 1o implemsent and sdheen to Aric] govemance pringiples in ling with e
PRMA ard orher agaplicable legislaton

The Corparation’s corparate gosernance shructures and prachces are akgned with the principles set out in the
King Il repiort on Conporate Governande Practices and Canduct (King W) and best practice for public entitees
fallirg withan Schedule 308} of the Public Fnance Management Act, Act 1 of 19585 The Baard adopted an
Mictsan Plan against which Management dhould implement the King N principhes with wehich the NHBC ismt
fully aligned.

The Corporstion reviews My palicies and practices on an orggoing basis to reflect intemsl developments and
fo epesurs that the businiess is well mansged

Thie NHFC adepred a progressive Compliange Framewerk covernirg all il latary reqiremsnts
aryl aspers That MHFC complies o Adbvieding & pamacea of compliange than i linked srategicaly stk
perfermance management will enalle MHFC 1o faous an the key arest that maee the Business Tesward
MHFC mims 1o ersure that compliande is amBaeddad angd thar all busirness stiities are perfermed = an
egprmically, environmentally and socally resporsiile marmer

Risk Management

The MHFC sdapted a bolistic Entaepnds Risk Managerment frameveork [ERNT that is based on anintegrated
Process engieing a0 enberp e view of its risks, impacts sad cppartunities = s bighly comples, Gramic
ard ever changing ermargrmenl The ramesoek specifically addreuses the stroflures, progedies

ard stardards implementasd 1o mansge risks an an enlepridie-wide basis in 8 dondsfent manfer,
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Therse ramge fram intemal sudin systems, aperational risk managament, IT seouriy, compliance
prodedied crad mansgemenl, reasury mansgement arvd 8 range ol ather live managameant
interventions. The framessork further addresses the speofic responsibilties and accountabilties
far the EFM process and the reporting of risks and incdences at vanous levels wsthin MHFC,
ArEUring fharcugh and [Fans parent Geanrnands processag,

Contributing to the economic stability of our clients

Ther MHFC continues to play s part i the upliftment of commundties, through the effectre
provisian of hausing foance selutions far sustainable human settlements, thus meeting the
Fanmarg needs of the low-ti-maddle moame households by enablirg them 1o choose fram
renting, awning ar incremertally building. The clients who obtain fundng from BERC cover 2
wiidie specbrum of particpation in lowsto-middle income hausing and requine different levels of
suippart and amangion. The stall of the NHFC s expacted o understand and addiass thess neads
im a profesianal and spproprate manner, In The wholedale srena vee higve

# Irtetiredianies - prosdding Ralsivg impravemant lears afd margage Bands,

ﬁ Drevedapars — Brislding et e pecple redgiinig Tully subsidized homes ta GAP
housing, partcidarky i iMegrated developments

#  Socdal Huousing Irsblificns — using Restrscturing Capital Grants [ROGE) and Provingial
top-up subsidies to prowide long-temn rental options for lower-income earners falling
it the OHS subsidy range

®  Community rental landlords - forusing on transitional and very low-income renital
hossing, which is aften shared accommpdation

W Private rental landbards - mainly targating inmar-ciiy regenaration projects howsing
lva-ta-middle noams bausshelds,

The Corparaticn Taclitates increased and sustained lendeg te the lewer end af the bausing
market thecugh strategic partnerships.

A gpposed o duing bussess dirsctly with the encd-user, the NHFC will fsgilitate. thraugh
leveraging and enhanong private sectar plagers, o increass their Impact n the lower end of the
market. The Mortgage Default Insurance Programme is the NHFCS reframed Betail intersention
spedfically addmessng Bsues of attordabilivg, accessibality and scabe At end-user bewel, by
sgnificantly levaagng peivale seclor cagacoty.

A g OF1 ared oo of The sgents in ke delivery of sustairable homan settlaments o w-inioms
earners, the MHFC i requiresd to fund s acbibess in 3 manner that will tanslate into affordable
cost-af-funding to the tanget client and aligned with market normas. The funding impact of the
Corparatian is depicied im the graph an tha rghg

Social Sustainability

Housing opportunities created 20010/2011

MHFC supports the Breaking Mew Ground (BNG) strateqy of the Mational Cepartment of Human
settements by faciMatng and funding the development of sustainabds human settlements. The
Praissing eppartanities created through ics funding is depicted in the gragh on the right

Thee decling in the housing cgparmunities ceated 15 Indicative of the difficult market cand tions
thar conbine Te impact an the apsrations of cur clients, parrmers, and end-users, thus affecting
thie crversll perfarmance of the Corposatson.

The= Carporation facilitates Humen Sefements’ projects n parirechip sith Munidpalties and
Frowinces. Its role in these provinoes invobees prowiding technical assistanoe, directhy or indwectly,
to reduce the turnarcund tims o bring wiable projects ta the markat for development by others.

Funding mpact 2000 - 3011
[T ST

-EEESEEZE

B alue of aporeraals R

W Yaue of dishusments Bm

Mouzirg opportunibes oreatesd 510 - 2011

B Houung opporiun S croatsd

B Berebianes henettiing”

‘BerafcaveL caloalaied oo bl reemdse pel hoansho kd
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Sustainability Report continued

The Research unlt presscded techmical amd ressarch inpur te the Eastern Cape Prowincial
Department of Human Zestlements’ research propessl regarding an evaluation of housing
projects in the province implemented between 19594 and 2004,

Job creation

Housing dewslopment, by s nasture, gives rise to job opportunities; shor-term during
construction and longer term throwgh service provision in retail, schooling and healthcame.
T MHFC @xpets cligns ta employ kacal labeur in prajecs fun ded by the Corparation

& shudy was commissioned in 2010 by the National Departrment of Human Settlements, which
NHFC paricgpatsd in, an the economic mmpstt of govemment ooy programmes Tram
1994 - 2004 cowering wealth distnbution and poverty slledaton, smployment crestion,
breaking barreers in the ressdential market and sustainable settlements and spatial restructunng.
The wadrninag arsd oSt Benafciay secers aoconding e tha findegs wene the Consinictien sedtar
125 2%, the Manulactunng sector [19.3%) the Financial s=ctor {11.5%) and Trade {10.5%].

b additian, the Nindings indicate that in terms of job creation, Bar every B milkan spenl an huaman
settlements related progects. a total of 11,13 jobs are leveraged, ssther directly or indirecthy. Taking
thits inta acceunt and the fact that NHEC had disbursed 84,5 billion by 31 March 2001, applying
e Parmuila, the nernbser of jobs oreated Tor stated pericd woule be S00R5

Enterprice Development

Thiz MHFCS i pact can abso be measuned on the number of dients it has funded and capacitated,
e af which are g lersger reliant an NEFC Tunding, As a result, NHFC has sirde incepdion
Turided and capaciatsd a 1o1al of 58 enterprees, 14 of whach sre now distresasd, 13 are Social
Housing Instiutions [SHIs), three inbegrated Mowsng Developments, 13 Commercial Clients and
15 Privame Clssnms

Borrower Education

Borrower educabon and financial Iferacy are cntical success factors for any responsible lender.
It claridies and unpacks the tatal makeup of the home knan afferad to the cient. Barmwear
edisatsan i3 a key reguirement af the Paticrs] Credic Aoy MCAL The HEFC cflersd it reqail
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clients bioerawar aducation thrawgh its contact centre, priar to them signing the lean agree rent
Barsaar aducabion priar e committng te tha lean allows the bermowes a canbent within which
to accept, decling ar nagotiate soma af the terms of the laan. After raceiing the borrawer
eclucation, tha client conqracts fram an infermeed position. Anancial Beracy teaches bormomsens
P b prlan ared marage cheir inences and ampomsess Them 1o ke financial decisions. Fnancial
litgracy is effared in an ingeractie ancd cmmenly used language verkshop fearmnat Ky learning
cuternas for the Borewer, after stending a finaraial lteracy progeamena, is knomdedge on how
i gave marne, spend less, Barew pradently and manage debd with desgipiine. The werkshap
plezes strang emphasts on defining the lenders’ and baroewers” abilsgations ard respansiilities
o the hame lean takaen, The campesitien and deliery of fmancial literacy, ower ara albsnse MCA
BannFaer Education requinements, & indicative of the MHFCS commitment o its devalepmsental
rale while affering centre-of-excallence servicas e igs Canget markes, A Retail clenits ane isaued
with am femative Homssrwnars Hamse Laan Giukde and Manisal far besping and refemanog, T
date, #12 oustamsens hae received Bnancial literacy, of which S20 was the nurmbser of custamsens
that received the literacy trainireg and 353 was the number of customers for the finamcial year
under reperming

Procuremeant

The MEHFC had a comprebendive Procurement Palicy and related database ol supplies,

Thee MHFC plays an img@ertant rale in supporting lecal businesses, which provides employment
ared drives socio-econamic dealopment in lecal communities, ensuring that it pracares from
sppliens wha ame transformed and in line with transfarmation chartes and Seter Codes

publshed The MHFC commits itself ta festering news, and develaping existing, BEBEE accredited
companis, thraugh a varkety of instiatives.

Education

Thee MHFC cramrsany the siiccessiul campletian of the Natiaral Cerifcare Resl Esmate course, by
the lash group of blak soudents. This was par of the praject funded joindy with AES8, arad AFD
arsd in respenise 1o the chjectives of the Fropemy Chamer

[uning the peried the Besearch unit was imeted to present the following lectures to

W Mastersstudentsofthe'its Postgraduate

Hawsing Pregeam shout the rale of Housing development, gives rise to job opportunities;

ovemment-owried nbemabicnal  and

niational housing institubons as well as short term during construction and hﬂgﬂl’ term 1hrwyh

micrefmance models in context of the
Grameen Bank maodiel.

Houdrg  prodlitknsrs Trom raticral
pravencal ard local Govermiments tock
ot the programmes conducied by the

service provision in retail, schooling and healthcare.
A recent study on the economic impact of government
housing programmes found that for every R1 million
spent on human settlements projects, a total of 11,13 jobs

WiLs Schesal of Public and Develapmem

Management. This Contificate are leveraged, directly or indirectly. By 31 March 2011
Programme on Housing and Palicy the NHFC had disbursed R4,5 billion, thereby influencing
50,085 job creation and opportunities.

Develaprment i corduiied armually,

Wie s thits as gart of the BHFCS corribution
o helping professicnalise the sectar.,

Corporate Soclal Responsibiity

Underpaninineg the HHFC strategic business objectwes and interactons, is fs developmental
apgraach and philesophy The HHFC & grimssd 1o finarce and suppon housing progscs that
facilitate job creation, sklls development and poverty allevation, espeoally that of women and
thae wouith, The Corporation alse encaursges 1alf o walumtesr their Tirse and nesauries Tewands
worthy causes in the howsing deleery pragrammes.
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Sustainability Report wntinued

a the year under review, the MHFD was invelved in a namber of prejects thay positivaly
corbributed to sustainehle sooal development of communites. in the Morth West Prownce, in
Lichtenkurg, the NHFD contribuned funds Towards turniture and appliances for hguses Built
under the 'Women's Build Project, in partnersbog wath the Governmient and the prrvate s=ctor. The
praject, in Womsen's menth, enabled free e lderly and Pighly indigent wemen Ta rat only cam their

nomes for the first bme, but to heve funconal faclites

A the Gauters Frovinee, the MHRC pamiopated, in garmnership esth a Jahanmeiburg ool radio
sLatiar, KhayaFM, and the NDGHS, wweard the buiding ol three housed and provesan of lfood
grarcels for Rhree irsdigent Tamibied in Alesargdea Orve of the Tamilies had a chalic with 3§ pexial nescs,
wath lung and Reart Sdesdes, and who wd deperident on & J4-houor life sugport system

A7 a corparate leval the NHFC partnered with ARSA Eank, tha NHERL, Agrément.5.0., Agence
Franciase De Development, the Western Provinee, Drakenstein Municipality, the MOoHS, the
twiss Developmant Comporation and Preteria University in the devalopment of the Intemational
Housing Innovation Competitian This compettion heghlights and explares oreativity and
nnowation in the consructian of howses togesher with anergy effidency. Finalisss In the
competition inchuded local and inmernational conractors from Kuwait, Aussralia, Canada, the
Czech Aepublic, the Metherlands and Mamibia, canstructing green bullding systems that are
sanrgy-efficient

Envirenmental Sustainability
1 3hdin i o ensuinireg The fnandial viabiling of the Corparatien ard sriving far se<ial impact, The
HWHFC also plaes greal emphasi an enyiraonmental sustaina iy,

Tothis end, we have develeped an Enviranmental Funding policy We alwo made 2 submiswan on
the Green Paper on Climate Change and, 25 part of the OF Forum, also pant cpated in ms revses
Thie post of Ervronmeental Officer was also created and filled.

The Corporation has, far the third ime, committed to partner with ather 3taksholders in hosting

an inkemiational snergy efficient bulding competition. Having a rural focus, the propossd event
wall take place im Cala in the Eastern Cape.
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MHFC has in the past year alse delivered papsers inter alia ot the Green Bulldings Weld Alrica
2011 Caonference {paper entitled, "Policy framewcsk for Chmate Change and Green Bulldings™);
South Afncan Human Setlernents 2030 Conference {paper entitied “Finanong the creation af
riew oifies”]; and, Matonal Indaba on Home Bullding Technologees (paper entithed *Sempler, Better,
Faiter snd Cheaper: & Case for Altemative Busldemg Sysbemi™)

Our People

Employes competendy is instnameantal in enablicyg MHPC 16 deliver an its mandate, Te (ke end,
rhi Calesit MANAGEMENT ST main abpective is te arsure that NHFCY stalf and ree racnaits
are highly competent. As the facus aof the end-to-end HR Evterventions, (recnurment, training
and develapment, performance management, succession plarming | human capital developmert
strategies reed to be more robust.

With tha Corparation’s mandate being sopanded to d o mortgage insurance, takent managamant’s
foous & in ersuring that the nesw entity is adequately resourced. This means the recruitment pacl
whether internal ar extemall. mesds to yield good calibre candicdates, who are competsnt to
meel he spectaons, and to deliver in 1he new arsad of the NHFC busdinessa, which mduide the
T A iSUran 2 it

fis 3 regult, inthe year under review and going forward, capacity development will be amplfied
as n stratecy to messt increasingly complss business requirements.

Employee angagament alwa moaeed mora attantion im the pericd undaer revies, Ta that end,
project teams wens given mone recogniton and as such, emiployees who partcipated in them
gat recognition durng perdormance apprassls The momentum n the implementation of
propect team will be kapt, begause it has proved o be one af the elles e stratedies lor endunng
ey participation and meaninghul value sdd in Qnganisation-veide initiatives

fis we get closer bo two years snce the last employes survey was conductsd, we are eamesthy
faced with the challerge of concluding the smplementation of the divisional recommendalions
of The Febrnary 200 0 Empliyes Engagemsnt Surney {TBEST), in the divisiond

We take part in Dolonte & Touche annual sureeys, to ersure that our remuneation 2nd
recognition systems are benchmarked and reviewed annualy in order 1o keep up with best
practce.

Talent Development

Ther Canporatian received a full rebate (35%] fram che BANKSETA an the Warplage Skls Flan
(TWSF) submission and implementation This 15 an mdication that NHFC i5 gaining tractian in
bakanicing employee development with business demands.

Thets cirilinmied pannerihig bepwesn NHPC and the Gardon Instnume of Busiress Sciende [GIBS) is
ermuring that the dewelogment of the leadership bench strength is on track. Ta that end, thene
wiere four employess who successfully enrolled an the leadership develocpment program in the
pencd under review.

Theer WHFCS hesxd 1o the national call an greating joby appostunities fr youth, i progressing
according to plan This has cpened apportunities for the HHFC 1o sponser five 5] previowsly
disadvantaged universty studerts whease studses are in the finance field.

The Camperation is alsa comtiruing with the experieptial programre, which affands learmars an
cRpartunity ta galn expeisnoes, this improving chances of geming ermgloyed at the end of the
learnership pragramme.

Performance Management

The Cooporation’s performance management system {Balanced Scorecard) & improving to
the extent that, = the penod under review, all manegers ard =mployees maraged to s=t
the perfommance objectres ay expected Tor the rew financal year, during the fast quearter
of the previous finarial year, This is alse an indicaan of the matumtian of The performanos
managemant culiure within the Corporaticn.
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Sustainability Report cntinued

Compensation and Benefits
The WHFC's rernureration and compensation philesapdy s to pay marketselated salaslos, To this
enid, we benchmark cur remuneraticn polickes 1o best practice

Ml employees of the NHFC participate in a defined condribution fund, which ersures that at
retiremient/death, whichewer comes first, the emoloyees/beneficlaries ane taken cane of.

The primary objectve of the MHFC contribution fund in the moderate mmeestment cat=gory =
to atkam investment refurns in excess of Consumer Price Indexs (TP +5% paa net of fees over
thiree-year roling periods.

The sedondary abjscnise i te ensuns that the sk al the portlelic messured over b threa-paar
rillire] pethod i3 apprapeate far the perfarmande That is sheshed

Thiz MHFC emplogess hawie o disability scheme, which pays up 1o 758% of the employees monthiby
satany, in the evert of a0 employes being dedard dicabiled

All employess of the Camporaban se expected ta belong to s medicsl sid, which forms part of the
total cost of smployment ((TOOET.

Oeoupational Health and Safety

The NHFC takes employee Health and afety issues wery senously. To this end, the executive
management committes established 2 committes which exercises oversighs 1o ensure that all
complance and policy issues ane taken cane of

Health and Safety programmes and procedures to ensure compliance with applicsble laws and
regulations are in place.

I the pericd urader review, a building audit was condisted. Recammendations wera presamted
1o managerient for implementaticn

Thizre hase not been reportable incdents of safety breaches in the perod being reviewed

Employes Wellrneis

A% a canirg erganisaticn, the MHFC alfers in panrenship with service providers fs emplogess an
Ernployes Wiallbeing programme, which addresses Paychalogical, Peychea-social ard Finangial
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Managemans ksuds at bath individual ard growp ke, The intervertions ane axtended o
amplapess, their familes ardior staff wia tedephanic or deact interactsan, 24 hoiirg a day

Thee wblisation statistics of the employee wellness programme in the pericd being reveewed,
indicated a need for mare finanoal maragemsent counselling than other offenngs. As a response,
MHFL has, with the assetance of finandal counsellors, conducted financial planning workshops
im cader ta 2ssist its emplopees o manage their financial matters better.

Emplayment Equity
The MHFL comples with the impematiss of the Employment Equity Act. Garesally whan
compared ta natianal demographics, the NHFC is daing well. See graph night

As far as gender equity i concerned, the MHFC needs to recruit more white females and a white
male as well as Coloured males in arder to meet its target. This should inform the recruibment

strategy.

Code of Ethics (“the Code®)

Ther Code of Ethics, which is part of the employes polioes and procedwes spolls out the
acceptable/unacceptable conduct and the approprate sanctians against thase wha transgress
the code.

Employment equity in companson with
national figures
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Corporate Governance

MHFC's alignment with the King Il Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct
("King 117}

The Hoard of Directors {"the Board™ of the Mational Housing Finance Canporatian Limited CTIHECT) & taking owerall
respansiility for corporate gowernance and has, urder the period under review, considered the implications of Kng lil.
The Based i of the view 1Rl the MHFC subsiantally camglies with the Keng B reguiaments ardd it adogted am Adtion
Plan against which Managemant shauld implermant tha King I peinciples with whilch the BHFD 5 not fully aligned.

Cape Town Community Housing (Pty) Limited ("CTCHC™), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the NHFC, alignment with King 11l

‘Wihwreas the MHFC Board also takes overall responsibility far the corporate governance of CTEHC, it appoanted thres

MHFC Executive Managers to represent the NHFC on the CTCHEC Board, aver and above the WNHFCS Chief Evecutive
Qfger (CEDT, whais the Non-Executree Chairman of The compary.

The CTOHC Boand reviewsd ns Boand and Board Committes govemance documents to be aligned with the MHPC and
the Kirsg B principles, The NHFCs Management has started o develop & comporale governance ramavork ard reyvigsy
CTOHCS averall and cngaing govemance and it aligriment with King 0

MNHFC Board Governance Structures and Framework
Board of Directors and Shareholder' linkages

The NHFC, as a State-Chwned Entity is throwgh ms Board of Directors, accourttable to the Minster of Human
S Uyl (“the Miniater™]. The Mireter repredents he Governments inleresl 34 sole Shareholder and balds the
Boand a Accounting Authority acceuntable for oversesing the operations of the Corporation

Strategic objectives and performance management
Ir lin wath Section 52 of the Public Fnance Management Act ["PFMET, this NHFC submitted a Corparate Flan
for the 3011 1o 2013 financial wear and ertered into 3 Sharsheobders’ Compact wath its Sharsholder. The Board set

oyl the NHFRCS sirateqic abjectiees m the Corporate Plan arel it sdopled the Balanosd Scorecard methodalogy

b= |I'l"1='l|l?|'|'l'l.“|'l|i the Sirategy ansl mnsasying it AganEL the key pertanmands meagings reflected on paged BE 10 &R
of the Annual Report.

The Board reports 1o the Sharehokdar theciigh quartesly raparts as well as the annual repan
The LEO i charged with the day-to-day management of the Corporation’s operations and consubts and meets
riguilarly with the Depanmment of Human Sertdements [FTHET and the Ministe
Memorandum of Incorporation in terms of the New Companies Act, 2008 (“the New
Companies &ct™]
Thi process to align both the MHFCS and CTCHC: Mamarandum af Incceporation with the new Companss
fict, which came into effect on the 15t May 2011, will be embarked upon in the 200110 2 finandal wear.
Board Composition

The Board is appaointed by the Mmister m his capacty as Sharehelder representative and comprises nine
members, 1he detaib of whom are rellecled on page 8 of the arnal report. Ma N Makiwiane ressgned and
W5 Dairepoed was appoinged during the peacel unslar ravigs)

Thie Cirectoes are all Independeant Hon-Exeoutives, with the ssception of the CEDL and they beirg a wids
range of Bankng, Nnancial, regiens ganming and legal expeetise to iddues ol Lralegy. peefammania,
pratectian of Stakehodders interests and the settng of the Corpomation’s polices

The alfsce of Chairman ard OED are sepeabed, Prod Kate i the Indepencent Mon-Exeoative Chae and 1he
CED pasitian 15 held by Mr fbarata,

Board meetings and procedures

I Thiz Board mesets at least faur timies a year, or more frequently if circumstances so require

{ Barand remibers are rerrirnded armipally of thair statunory Suties penaining toethe ded aratics of inferesm
| ared requestad to submit o general dadaration of interest shawld any of them
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valshi ta rely an i, An affected Board membier i legally Bound 1o infamn che Beard of a conflicn
or potental conflect af interests in relation ta a particular agenda item and to recuse hesfhimself
frorn Ehe discussion of that item, unless the Board resahées that the dedared interest s trivial or
irmelayant

Board Charter (“the Charter™)

Ther MHFC Bagd Charter is a living document and hias been algnsd with the Departmant of
Human Settements’ policy framessark and King I R gives 2 concise overview of the demarcaton
of roles, functions, responsibilites and powesrs of the CEG, the Board and the Shareholder. The
Eaard pravedes leadership, wisddon and strategic deacticn 16 the MHFC ta enharce Sharehelder
value and ersure lang-term sustanability and growth of the Corparation. The Board retains full
ard effectree contral over the Corporation by:

# approving the Strategy, Compoerate Flan and Budget ard mansering Managemsent clesely in
the imipl ementaticn therecf;

W menitoning apseatianal ard financial perfarmans againgt the Coporate Ralenced Sceracand
and the effectrreness of Management; and

# reviEaing the Delegated Authanny documant which sers aul he pesars That it delagates te
Managpemeni.

Thee Chiarter wets aul the Teemal grocedise Tor irsdiscting new Directors and the aigong
developmens af Man-Executiee Direcions.

Dorectors R unrestricled soess o the CEQ and Senior Maragemsenl, shodld they meguine ary
indarmation in dischanging their duties. Thay alse have access 1o the advice and services of the
Compary Secretary and may seek independent professional adyice concerning the affairs of the
Corporation

The Board Committees hawe reviewed an External Service Prowsder’s findings pertaining
to the Board and Board Commettess a3 well as Action Plans to address the identified areas of
improversent ard the Beard is overaandg the implermentation of these pland

&n evalustion of Board members onoan individos! basis will be vndertaken in the new
firancial yas

Board Committeas

Thee Balbing Committess vere in place duneeg the 200051 Anancial yesr and their meen didies
are reflected below:

Audit and Risk Cormmittes [“ARCT)
ARC compaises three Independent Mon-Executive Drectors The members are Messes Misabuba
{(Chasir], Tati and Dr Kheaza.

It has discharged the following main duties dunng the period under revess:

o aversight ever finardial repaorting, intemal cantrals, compliance, conporate govemance,
pedickess ard risk managemient;

W reviewed the Erilewpriie Rk PManbgement Palicy and Sirategy ard the sigraficam hak
capaiunas and makes racommendatians in this regard 1o the Baard: and

W oresrdight over the maragement of financial risks snd
FepErtireg by the Asters and Lialiligy
Commiates
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Corporate Governance cwntinued

AR meen sia times during the yaar undes raview and will meet mane frequenthy if Cincumstan ces 5o
raguine. Maatings are attandad by the Bxtemnal and Irternal Audisens a5 wall as the Chisf Finangial
Oficar and tha Executive Manager: Enterpise Wide Risk

The Board has during the finenoal year, reviewed its nisk oversght rale and concluded that
thie complexity of the nsks facing the MHFC jusbfies the forming of 2 Board Hisk Committee.
A Board Hisk Commitize ("BRLT was formed with Or Khoza as Chalmperson and Ms Howston,
Messrs Coetres, Tati and Msabuba 25 members. BRCs inawgural meeting was held on 10 May 2011
1o revise its Termns of Beference and will be reviewed by the Board, The respective Committess
would in the 20012 finan oal year fulfil the follrsing resk managernent roles:

W BRC - cverses Enlerprise Wids Rk Policy matters and recommend The Fok Mansgemsent
Policy Lo the Board Toe approwval;

Ao - apply the Credit amd Ireesament Pelicks and donsider onadit ard invastmsent risks in
making credit af invastiesnt deddans and

# Audic Committes - ghee assurance that internal fnancial comirols and fnancial risk
manajement processes are in place and discharge ds statutory duties in terms of the
Companies At and the PR

Board Credit and Investment Committes [(“BCIC")

BN comprises three Indepsndent Hon-Executivs Directars and the CFO and & chaired by
Mr Coetres. The members ame Messrs Coatzee, Moraba and Tati and Ms Swanepoel. The BCIC
meets a1 least four tires a yoar of more frequent by If circurstancoes o Feguing.

BCEC meetings are attended by the Executive Manzger of Projects ar Commercial 1o present
2 oredit application and the Executve Marager. Credt to deal with Credit's appraisal and
recommendation to the Committee. BOK meetings are also attended by the CFO, the Managing
Executrve: Strategic Investments ard the Assistart Executive Manager: Legal Services.

B corsiders all loan applications loe facilites that seceed or cumulatively excesd B30 millikinup
1o B160 milion per clisnt group upon recommenidation by the Managemsnt Credit Commitiee,
B recommends boan Taclities that exieed oo cumulatively sxcead B 60 million per client group
1o the Board, BCIC perfonms s assessment ol the oredit sisks inherent te s propoded Facility within
The Framewiork of an ap proved Credil Policy.

BOIC 15 also acocuntalle for ecommending the Treasury Management Palicy and ather long-
tarm Insmssment strategss, palicies and prapasals 1o the Baand far approval

8065 members, with an interest in 2 loan applicatian, mast inform BEIE of a conflict ar potential
conflict of interests in relation to a particular itemn on the agenda ard recuse herhimssdf for
thie discission of that item urdess the Committee decides that the declared inferest b trivial ar
immiaterial

Human Resouwrces, Ethics and Remuneration Committes [“"HRER")

HRER comprises thme Independent Non-Executive Directors and the CEQ The mambers are
M55 A Howstan (Chairl and P Bamarume and Messrs Maraba and Nisaluba, Committes maatings
are attended by the Exacutive Manager: Human Bescurnces.

HREE: is changed with the following main duties:

.0 approwal of the Human Respurces Paligies gnd Srateges

W aprpareal al he rermineration ard incertives tor all stafl meenbens efher than the CEQ, tor
wherm salary inoreasesisrecammaendad tathe Baard and in coing semlevant and camgparakile
markel infamrnatian and guidelinegs is takan inta acoeu . m-@shargineg ins duties, HRER gives
due coghisance I the Corporations Rermuneration Philesaply o offer reraureralion thar
will AR, irscRnTivige, rerain ard eward amployees with The meguined skills to deliver an its
marrlane;



MHFC Arinusl Report 2911
PFage 28

# oversight over the implementation of the Code of Ethics;

W prererm a high level review af the Trustees of the Provident Funds hall-marly as waell ag
year-ersd Repsars o detarmine whseiher the Fund B adequately managed; and

# armually reviaw tha Bey Penformancs Indicatons on the Corporate Balanced Scoracard for it
nix b s 05 thee Basis far reasuring the Corporation’s parfeamance and for maasuring each
imdividual Executive Managers parfcemance againgt histher scorecard

Development Impact and Strategy Committee ["DISC)

CESC comprives of four Independent Mor-Execintive Dirscrors [Messrs Tatl, Cosres and
M5 Houstan and Rama o and ane Executive Diecear (e Maraba), M Tati is the Chaipenan
of the Committes

DESC's mnain objectives are as follows:

W review the NHFC's Strategic direction, Palicy and O perational structures and give the
Board assurance that the NHFCs strategic objectives are aligned tothe Human Settiement
Strategies and Policies and deal adequately with developmental impact;

# monitor Operations’ perfoemance agamnst the objectives set for developmental mpact;

# monitar the impact of develapmental actisities an Che Carporaton’s inandal susiainabaity;
arwl

W monitar the enviranmental ard se<ial sustaralilivy of 1he MHFC inchuding the
transfamnatianal Fnpat made with BEREE

Board and Board Committee record of attendamoe:

Mumbaer of mestings and mamberihip 2]

Category Board | Auditand Risk BCKC HRER Disc
Number of meetings 5 [ a 6 4
Frof W W Katz naegandant 4
Ner-Exegutive Chair
Wir 5 5 Moraba CEQ 5 ol 6 ol | il [ bl
hs & Houston thdependant Non-Exscutive 5 o & <
D 5 J Khoza Dhrectors 4 # 3
s B E Makiviane" a 1
Mz P W Ramarumio? 3 . E] <
I8 5 Swanepoalt . -+ 1
foir | Coetree 1 ¥ B ¥
B 5 4 Taki 5 ¢ & o B .-’
Molir 5 5 Msaluba 3 < 4 - b 4

" ignid an 19 Navembar 2018
P i oo traancd fov v Bedisd P HEER amicf huse CVSE st
" Aot an 13 Dassedr 2010
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Corporate Governance continued

Management Committees

Executive Management Committes (“Exco")

Exco comprises of the Executive Managers reflecied on page 9 of the annual report who assist
the CED in manizging the day-to-day business of the Conporaton within the powers delegated
1o them by the Board. Exco s also accowntable for formulating the Corporation’s strategy and
mpl=mentireg it once apgroved by the Board

Credit Decision Making

Al credn applications are submitted 1o the Credit Dwision, who conduct a thorough astessment
af the risks associated with the particular apnlication and make a recommen dation o an Intemal
Credit Committee (97

CC pyaluabes loan applicabians and submits recommendations to the CEC or Management Credit
Committes (CCTL The OED has the avthondy to approve loan faolities for ary armmount below
#10 million. Loan Facilties approved by the CEC ans submitted fo the BMCC for noting.

MO, a sub-Commirtes of BCK B Chaired by the CED ard meers when reguined. The OED;
& co-ppted Iredustry Specialisy; the Exscutive Managen: Credit; the CFD; Assisrant Esecifive
Manager: Cradlil; the Asadtam Exedubive Legal Services arwd e Exscutive Managers Frojecls
atend MOC meatings

MOC is responsible for approving lean facilites up ta ar cumuatively up 10 B30 million per client
and recommending those in eacess of that amount 1o BCIC

MCC members with an imterest in a loan applicatian must smfcenn BCC of a conflict or petential
conflict of imterest i relation to a particular item on the agenda and recuse herthimself for the
discussion of that item

Financial Risk Management Committes (“FRMCT)

FRMC foamis part of the NHIFCs Enterprise Wide Risk Governance Famesark and repars 1o the
Ewecutive Committes and warious Board Sub-Committens.

FARAC -« Cramsed <y the CT0 ard compriises of the Chief Fowne x OfFfice- [irmuthe Marager,
[ iep o W= Pk and the Meaoager Teeasory and 1 ks resporsibde for the Sverall, oversigt
ol rhet Pt e ik FesEierwend o T aieren ol e M finarainl viaky mira virg Niam
i P g L iy i e i BoE i et R il oo limle il y o nieepaa Yy ail

[T T R |

by e ey " @il e FRAYT ailll LR T TRe I T | ial 4 Iy Com o e A ETF
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Retail Executive Committee (“Rexco”)

Fewco deals with mstters concernirgg the daydo-dsy management and gusdes the cversll
direction of the busine al he Revsl Divisien.

Rewca is chaimad by the Chief Operations Officen Retall ardd comprises of Retail CFO; 000 and
Exeutive Managers, Cracde: Markating Entergrise Wide Risk and IT

Procurement Committes

The Brard Fias sgposed a Procurement Policy, which guides all the MHFC procsement practices
ars processes by which goods warks arel services pre prosured, 1o ensure 1hst the procuramen
wpsberm o Tain eguitable arsd transparent, It has alse spproved dearly defirned delegated
autbamties wo aved fruitless arsd wasteful espenditun,

The Pracurement Cammittee b chalred by an Executive Manager ard comprises a Finance
Manager, Legal &dviser and Business Development Marager. This Committas 15 acceuntabla for
menitcang and cvarseeing the implamentation of the Procuremsent Policy, Proceduras and Code
of Comduct and moenitanng adherance thareto

Thie Safety and Security Committee ["SA5C7)

SREL S A sub-Comminmes of Exoo and s main abgecgive is oo maniter, evaliiate, advise and make
dedisions in respect of Al matters cerdernirg healh, satery ard security in the Comparation, Te
et this eifective the Commimes meets bl-ranihly o mane freguiently IF reguined 1o, mderalia,
revisa anel recornmend The Safety and Seduriny Palicy 10 Exce for approval SASC 5 aceuntabie
faf mariering and imglementing the Folicy ance i i approved by Exoo

Thees Commities comstibates one member of the Excouteee Commiiites, teo members of the
Health and Safety Committee, as well as ane Legal, IT and Comgliance representative ard one
staff member nominated by the Committee on the basis of hissher understanding of safety and
Security issues within the Canperation.
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Risk Management Report

MHFC'S Risk Management Philesophy and Framework

During the yaar undar raview the MHFD Entarpeise Risk Management function gained maturity, 1o ensise that the MHFC

sustaing a comprahersive sk managemant framework and strateqy ta meet both statutary and bast businass practics
requirements. The Enterprise Hisk Management Framiowork 5 based on an integrated process that would ensune an
enterpnge view of it risks, impacts and opporuenities ina highly comnplex, dyname: sand ever-changing ervironment.
The underhyng premise of the HHFC Risk Mansgement philosopby is a thorough understanding of the ek exposures

al the MHFC n order that management ardd 1the Board are appropriately informed Lo take sbrategic decisions in the
merests of the Sharshodder and ather slakeholkders

Thie MHFL, like ather sinilar entities, (5 frg uncertainty and the challenge far Exscutive Managernent is to detssmine
howw muschuncertainty to accept as it strives to grow stakeholder value. Uncertainty presents both nsk and opportunizy,
with the potential to erode or enhance value. Entenprise nsk management enables managemsnt 1o effectrsely deal
with uncertainty and associated risk and cpportunity, enhancing the capacity ta buld value

Censidering the above, risk managerment and management agility kave never been mane relevant in the MHFC
especially given the rapidly changing glabal ecencmic enviranmant and the legging recovery in the bacal ecanceny
Howevar, the robust risk managemant procass assistad the arganisatian to reach am ap propriate balance between
realising opportunaties for gains whils minimising adverse impacts It is an integeal part of good management

practice and an essential element of good corparate governance.

The adopled holistic Emergrise Risk Managamnerl FERMT) Framework addresisd the soudturesd, prodeddss and
alarsdards i plemerted b manage ik o BN enlerprise-wide basis in b cordilent marmern Thede rafge from
witerial aisdit feimns, aperateanal fek managenent, 1T security, (emplance prodeddes, Creditl manadgeimsnt,
Traakiry management ard & range of athar ling management Rtenanticng, Tha famewark listher addrassag
the spacic responsibilities and accountabiliies for the BAM procass and the reparting of rsks and incedancas at
wariaiss levels withan the MHFC endguring thaorough and trarkpanent Govemnancs processes.

Governance of Risk

Thi Baard 15 accauntable far the total precass of sk managemsnt and its affectivenass The Entemprise Risk
Management Framewerk and Policy delegated the respensibility far owersesing the management of rsks
pertaining to the business of the Corporation to the Beard Fisk Committee.

Baard

The: Board has averall strategic accountabil ity for the total process of the MHAC nsk management system and
cortrol as waedl as forming its own opinion on the effectveness of the process.

Board Risk Committes

The Board Rk Committes & tasked with the responsibibey of aswsting the Boawrd in esecuting s
respordibilities with respect 1o risk mansgement as set out showve. The Board Fisk Committes's role is
to ensure that the approved ERM Framework and Palicies are embedded and that the aporoved Fisk
Managemeant Plan is implemsnted by Executive Management.

Chief Executlve Officer

The Chief Executive Officer of the MHFC is accountable to the Acoouriing fuwthormy {Board), ensunng
that the MHFC has and mairtains an effective. efficient and transparent risk management process.

Executive Managerment

Each Exeoubree Manager is responsile for identifying and managing nsks mherent to the operaticns
af histher division and to establish what the residual nisk levels are where they need 1o foous ther
management attention. Cuarterly repoets are submitbed to the Board Risk Committee, which deals.
with the scticns Taken by Mansgemant (o add ress The key risks.

Subsidiary Companies

Subsadiary Companées are required to implement an Enterprise Bek Management Policy and
Framewoek {inchudirny Comgliance]l which e fully aligred to the MHFC Policy and Framessork.
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Credit Risk Management

Thee management of Credil Risk and the Credit Value Chain i the redponsibility of the Executive Manager Credit Lending dedidicns are made by
vanaus sanctiomnrg comenitless in line with Therr approved mandates, underpanined by corsistent application of the Credit Policy.

Financial Risk Management [Assets and Liabilities)

Financiallarket Risks are managed within the Treasury Department under the leadership of the Chief Fnancial Gfficer. A Treasury Policy is in place
that govems the finanoal risk expasures to NHFC ard a Financal Risk Management Committee (resporaibility for Ass=ts and Labilties Management)
are established to provide cwersight to the treasury operations.

Crirrng the year urider revievs, 1he Tressury Policy Bas been revessed and updated tr irglisde the acklivanal risks amansting from the Borrawings
imrdaduced 1o the Comporation, |m additsan the Gavermance strociune has besn revisessd 1o prode far the Firsacal Risk Managemernt Cammitlee 1o
b replaced with & management Assels arvd Lishilities Committss FALCOT.

Risk &ssurance

The outsourced internal audit function independently audits the sdeguacy and effectvieness of the Comporation’s risk management, cantral
and gowernance processes. Beports from auditors both intemal and external are tabled snd descussed at Audit Committes mestings as well a5
management responses bo the issues rived n the respective management letters.

Compliance

Thee Complance function is certralsed under the leaderhip of the Rk Exeouteve, with a dedicatsd Compliance Oficer. The Complance Officer s
ired e pen et of thee Coeporati ons cperational activty and assisks management incompkang with all spplcable statutary and requlatorg reguiremends.

Operational Risk

Operaticnal risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from inadeguate or failed internal processes, people and systems. This risk categaory
is managed through a syst=m of intemal controls, based on approved pobcies and procedures for inmiaton, venfication and recondiliation of
transactions, ard adequate segregation of dwties and delegated awthanties. The operational sk category includes fraud and financial misconduct,
aswell as neks pertaining ta legal, human rescurces, iInformation technalogy and business continuity.

The= Board Risk Committee assists the Board in discharging its duty to ensure that the Corporation maintains adequate accourting records, intemal
conirals and systems fo provide reasonable assurance anthe integrity and reliability of financial infarmation and to safequard s assets.

Operaticnal risks are managed throwgh the Enterprze Fisk Manegement Framework to ensures that the Conpoeatson has a comperehensive view of its
risk expaswre, incuding markes, credit and strateqgic risks

Assurance

Thee interral sudd fumction is provided By an mdependent weryice provider ard operates in terms of an Irternal Sedit Chamer, The internal audin
fanstian regorty lunceanally te the Audit Comremittes and sdministrativaly o The Bisk Exeoutive and its stafT have Tull and uneeitncied aocess 1o lhe
Chair al the Audit Committes, The Audit Commilles conducts ity awn aisesoment of the affestiveness of the irternal sudit Tumction.

Fraud Prevention

Thee Corporate Fraud and Financal Misconduct, as well as the Anti-fdoney Laundering Policy, is st to zero tolerance for fraud in the Corporation.
& fraud hotlne & available to staff and the public to report 2oy suspected fraudulent matters on a corfidential basis. Mo inciderts of fraud, financial
misconduct or iregular activities were reposted durng the pevicd under revies.

Reputational Risk

Feputational risk is the risk of damage to the Corporation's image which may impair its abikty to retain and generate more business. Reputational risk
is one of the ey strabegic risks o the Canporatson.

Thee Corparation manages its reputalional risk through:

W oa camgrehansiad straragy fecusing on exnemal stakehold ers:

W an effective media sirategy and sxecutsan plarg

W wall coardinated and struchured stakahalder intervantion plans, and

W ewaluation of the repulaticns risks of he Coeporstion,
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Credit Risk Management
Cradey ek peprasents the langest, ard the mos mataiial risk e the ecancmic athitias of the NHFC. The managemat of Credn ik reimains crital
te The saistarnbility of the Institution

Thie Coapeoration comntinaually imsests In-thie risk managernent oapabilities to underpan the housing fnance growth and development targets which the
Comporation committed to the Board of Directars and the Sharsholder.

The robustness of the Corporation’s rek management processes continue to be tested by the economic enviranment in which it operstes and are
continuly reviewsed to mest the challenges thereby improving the MHFCS abilty to meet the nesds of the market

Deefimition

in the MHFC, Credit nsk arises when counterparty to a financial transaction fails to meet its obligaton in accordance with the agresd terms and
condmtions of the contract, efther because the courterparty is experiencing financial distress or there & a decrease in the fair value of the ceded
securties. Credit risk & incurred in the lending activites of the Corporation, through its three operatng divisions, being Projects, Commerdal and
Retal drsicn.

Credit Risk Framewaork, Governance and Organisational Structures
Cradin risk is managad in accordance with the comgpnehensiae policies and processes that endure adequate identification, measuremant, monitoning,
contnal and reporting of credit exposuns.

The obpective i5 1o ensure a sound Credit risk management environment with appropriate assessment, oredit grantng, administration, measurement
and monitoring through the mplementation of adequate sk managem ent conbnol

Thefuncticnal responsdbilty far Credit idks scrods the Corporstion lemsding actities resides with the Exesutive Manager for Credit sk, who reports
1o Theis Chief Exegutivee Officer. The principal commiltees. responsibe for Cradit sk is the B0C, MOC and the BOC,

Al committess have claarky defired mandates, membarships and delegated autharitios that are regulary reviewsed, The Canpomtions Credit
Sanctioning Thars are as falkows:

Scale Mandate
The MHFC Beard Aboye R1ED milkan A ppnee
Board Credit and bnsestrn ent Committee Upto R1E0 mmilicn Approve
Management Credit Committes Upto B30 mllicn Approve
Oifice ol 1he CED L RO O previllicn e pesccamirne nel aticen by 100 A e
Intemial Cred it Committes Recommesnd

Respective credit committees will recommeend all applications which ane higher than the: mandate to the rext sanctioning tier.
The disclosure requirsments in terms of the Generally Bacognisesd Aocounting Practice are desd osed within the main body of the Annual Financial
Stakements

The Year under Review
The 201 2071 finanotl ywear continued to show signs of economic reoosery with the prime lendinig rate remaining 2t its lowest bevels.

In ke Him an Settlamen s § pace, the Gowernmen anm cunced plans 1o promote ko mee ownesrship snd address aford ability challenges by anmouncing
A reduclion m The traniler diy thredhol de im the losser segment af the housing markel

The Gavennirsnt housireg subsidy and the reartgag e msurance prod st coupled with relaxation of mongage larding criteria s almed a1 suppesting
tha bkwear and of the heausing market.

The MHFC has conbinued to foows on monitorng ard prosctively managing potential stress and breaches of covenants in the loan portfolio.
The efforts to maosimise recovenss partcularly in the Tum fround and Workowt portfolio has begun to bear fruit in that the total ron=performing
portfolio decreased significantly im the wear under reviow.

Some of the facilties have besn sucosssiigly restructured. In cases swhere the business-friendly appeoach was not supported by cur counberpanies,
the Corporation followed the legal procesiss to effect recovesies of mones owsed.
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Impairments in the Spotlight
Econamas urcertsrty and markst volatility have comtinued to directly affect the valuation assumpticns such a3 growth rates, cash flow projectons
ansd business risk modeling

L, Managefmant adapiad an apprash shich ascalates impalrmants corsidarations to The kighest lavels of Credin sk management com mitlaes
Ty this end, commiTTeet wang irvalued gary in the porttolle asssssment and Non-Exeoutive Membars of the BOIK providad valuaie support,
guidance and a lavel af indeparadars in the averall auscarss af Impaimrmant deesmanis.

# The impairments determination is guided by the HHFC impaiment Palicy.

Focus Areas for 2011/20M2

Drhinigian of the MHFCS fisk appetite in ardar to detarmine the risk-bearing capacity and risk teberance levals of the Carperatian.
flandmisaticn of ecomamic value theough effective portfobo management.

Feves of The pricing methodelegy simed at implémenting risk-bated and <oncosdionary pricirg.

Ebending sourges of funding o support growth

Improwement of the Coporation’s efficiency, effectreness and agility throwgh human resources and performance manage ment.

¥ ¥ X ¥ ¥ 3

Capacity building programemes and partrerdhips with some of DFS QD) bene him afkiryg esercies and K nosdedpe shining initetves.

Portfolio Analysis
Credst quality of boans and receivables

2011 aoia

IR Frodd
Nesther past due mor impaired 1357, 800 1044178
Pash dise bt nod impared 108,365 130,08
Innpaired 233,953 TEDEAG
Tatsl 1,680,978 1463819
Less: I paiTnants 37124} (122.297)
M advances 1,562,794 1330922
Apeing analysis of adwances that are past due, but not impaired:

RE00 [y ]

Period Total 10 days 30 - &0 days &0 - 30 days 90 = 120 days =120 days
ikl [} 108,365 15,673 2445 [ =] 257 14514
piee; ] 135,756 54,933 1408 1422 4183 27852
Concentration risk by operations
Commerial 15%
Frojacts BT
Retail 18%

The Credit Risk Management Process

Thee Cradit risk managermant process starts af the Corparation’s sirategic planming phase, wiens, among othar things, the Corparation's risk appatine
5 resiawad In lins with the strategic plan of the pariod wnder revlaw, and the Corporatian’s devalopmantal mandate. Bey corsidarations bairg, o

W provide confidence in the MHFC's ability o continue to delrer empact m bne with s mandate,;

W retain strategic esbility,

W enalila the Conparation 1o aeld leasas which would mater ally affect daliveny an its broadened mandate; and
# reflects the princ pal risk factars potentially affecting the Canporatean.

Revisicn of risk appetite alocations through unforedss=n anganicinamganic grosdh is faclitated wia the Exeoutive Manager in Credit, CEQ, MOC, BIIC,
and the MHFC Board dependent on the materiality of the revsson,
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Whiclesale Credit Contral Framework

il

Credit Risk Acceptance Process at Ongination
The NHFC hes mplemented a thorowgh credit nsk acceptance process, including nobust asssssment and monitonng procedures at mdiddual
coundernparty level, to gensrate gquality oredit assets, refativs to the nsk'reward inberent in the transachon.

The ¢redit assesamenl process i undepinresd by credil policies snd procedunes, snd any devistion is escalated 1o the eleyant wsnclioning
suthorily.

Cradit Risk Maasuramsant
The MHFC Credit talies a consistent appreach in the identification, measurement, ecarding, manitering ard mansgement of risk, by adopting a
commen framevwork and langusge, and continwally:

#  subject credit risks prooesses and systems tongorows besting lincluding peer review] tooensune that they ane fit for the purpose of identifying
all expected and unexpected losses on both countenparty and portfolio level;

& idertify and aocurately recand Geross ared Speolfic provisions using peocedies and methodolegies that are aligresd 1o the afonomic subitance
of The: inderlying asset; ard

A waliclating the cradit ik contral frarssark 1o ensure that sredit polices and medals mmain relevant to the changing market dynamics and
thie MHFL siratay.

Portfolio Management

#  the MHFC has established controls that regulate the growth and composition/profile of the NHFC credit assets, encompassing bath the new
and existing asses in accordance with the MHFC risk appetite. These will include pradentsal limits and exposwes to a specific courterparty
and or propect, et and

#  the MHFC manages credit risk ke sy other assets Laking cognisance of market Bquidily, customer sentiments and implied sspeciations of
pur broadenesd mandale

Turn Around and Work Qut

Thie WHFC has adopted a “Turn Sround and Wark Cut® framesscok bo manage whiodssale suposures which ars irrequilar, andfor ars showing signs of
financial distress to sup port opbmal recovenes of monies owing to the HHFC. The frameswork & used to:

L]
A

L]
L
i

deyalip Busmess solulions. Logetbes with atfer irternal Budmess pnils ansd initeal businesd salution, & how can b irmgulamy Be resalead ™

interactwith other stakehaldars (La. managermant, Sharehaldars, the Boand, other banks ar oreditors in consertiums] in onder to facilitats ariving
at carmmcn graund with regaed to the way forwand,

impl=ment the approved business soluton;
evalusle the sppropratienss ol he spproved business seluticen durning implementation and smend il necessary: and

deliver redewant and acourate infermation To influane the effective mansgement af the MHFCS exit strategy from the dissressed cperations.

The Retail Credit Risk Control Framework

Thie MHFC Crod s refail assens broady s a series of high-valume and kw-alue propositions. Decisions are theretors aunemated through cradic
seanire models supplemented by pelicy and Busiteess rales, aking the place of the judgement of Credin sk professicrnals. This ersures high level
al chijectivivg and corsistency in deisien-makmg arthe pint of origination Similafy, system evarndes andion any pidgemsnt deddon-making are
ceritrlad 1o apdure that similar levals af cansstercy and alyjacivicy are maintamed by the Exsutive Manager in Cradin,

Retall asses ane homaogeneous and largely organised and managed at o portfolio hevel. The MHFC has develapsd a control frameswork around each
edernent of the Retail Credit Value Chain.
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Rizk Control Framework an Credit Walue Chain

(&l Imitial Assessment
The NHFC uses credit pelicy and statestically developed sconng modesls to support the Credit Assessment. Decision to acospt or reject a credit
application considers:

#  customer credit worhaness;
A customer atfordabilitg,

& quality of the house;

#  ather collateraly; and

a  averall perfolio mis

(b} Account Management
Al accourts which are accepted into the porfolio are subjected to continweous morstoning and analysis. Ongoing account management is
alignied ta dear credit palicies, to inform changes in oreds prefile andfar product andfor priong.

[t} Colections
The HHFC = deploving a framework 1o idenbfy, moenilor and mansge credil exposures to counlenparbes hal displey sigre of fnoncial
distreis, by

& daplong specalist sechnalogy aned risk managemsent far the effegive and eMcient reamment of the distressed assats; ardd
& employing Extermial Debit Collection agencies ta complemenit and substitute in-house aperations.

(d} Fecoveries
Thie key abjectrve for placdng sccounts in recoveries s to ensure the most cost-effective recovery of the omtstanding debt, The MHFC mantains a
relalicnshap woth a pared of Extemal Debt Colleactors 1o complement or substitute internasl operations.

(] Write-of
Cince an asset is considered irrecavenable, the autstanding debt |5 wimen-off, Processes to consider selling the witten-alf cutstarding debt ane
being develapsd 1o ensure aptimal recoserios

Partfalle Impalrments

Thee Corporation applies an imernally desveloped nsk classifcstion prodess Tor early warrerg sificalion arsd reparling process called Internal ok
Classification (RC], The punpose of Fe B i o delermine:

W the classification of 3l direct and indirect extensians of cradit;

A asset guabty;

M disributian of a3 hesed on prafitehility; and

W distribution of lagns and advances in acoondance with selected geagraphical anaas

Iri relation to advances, prowision for impairment is made when thene i objectsre evdence {such as the probability of insclvency ar significart
financial diffculties of the debtor) that the Canporatian el net be able to collect all the amounss due under the original terms of the advance.
Thee: carrying amount of advances i reduced through use of an impairmert allowance.

IF there is objective svidence thst an impairment less on losns and sdvances carned s amortizsd cost has been mourred, the amount of he lois s
mueasured a5 the difference batween the assat's canying amount and the present walue of the eitimated fature cash fows (esduding Tuture credit
|eesiey thst have rot beenincurred] discount=d a1 the fnancisl assets original effec v interest mate e, the elfectve interest rate cakulated at initisl
recogrition], and the smound of the leas s recegnised in profit or loss In measuning the impairmeant af 4 s=cured boan the cash Mows uwed refllect
those that may resull from Tored osure less costs Tor chtairmmg and selbng the secumty.

Imnpairment debas are derecognised whern they are assessed a5 ungellectbile, Inerest incams an impalred balaroes comtirnies to e aconsed ising
the rate of infanest e ta discount the futune cash Tlows for the pirpaese of measiring the impaired loss
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Fimancial Risk Management

Framewaork and Governance

The HHFC faces a range of financial risks smanating from the cperationsd and funding activities of the Corporation that can heve o significant effect
o The firncial stability and sustamability of the Corparation

The manzgement of financial and markes risks resides within the cemralised treasury function. The furdamental objective of financial risk
management is to protect the Corporation’s core business while contralling exposures consistent with the Conporation’s acceptable risk tolerance
and appetite

Treasury's approach is based on risk governanoe stnectures, ik manaqement palicies, risk cwnership, risk idertification, measuremsent, manadge rent
and cortrol and reporting in accordance with requiatory requiremnents and best practice.

Oaarsight of Tnardal rdk managesant 5 provided by the Financial Risk Managemsat Commities, o siab-oame ithes of EXCO, the Baard Cradin and
Invasbmat Committes MBCICT and the Baard Risk Committes CBRCT.

The Tressury Policy, approved by the Board, preseris a framesso ke weithan swhich management can mansge snd matigate Gnancisl ek on a dey-to-day
Laadis.
Duwineg the year under review, the Treasury policy has been reviewed and updated to include the additional risks emanating from the bormowings

introduced to the Corporation. In addition the Governances structuee has been reviewed to provide for the Finendal Risk Management Committes to
b reglaced with & mansgemsent Asets and Liabdities Committes {8 L0007

Risk Profile and Risk Management
The: main financial risks faced by the Corporation are credit, market and liquidity risk which are discussed under the headings below.

Cradit Rizk
Credit risk is the risk of an econcmic loss anising from the failure of counterparty to fulfill its contractual obli gations.

The cowsntespmmy risk policy of the Comporation is aligned o the requinements of the Treasury Regulatiens as referned to in the PRMA which are as
Toll oo

W Selection of courterparties through credit risk anabysis;

W Establishenent of insestment Bmits per institutiong

W Monitoring of imeestrments and counterparty exposunes against ap proved limits; and
& Re-ansmssment of counterparty credit ridk based an credit ratings.

Thie Conpomtians axpasur to countanparty risk in respact of all Treasuny activities are confineed to at least F1 mted Instibutians. Limits ane revissad
and approved by the Board on an aninual basis.

2011 200
Countarpartes with external credin ratings R0 RO
Held-to-maturity money markst invesbments 21T 1,076,683
Cash arvl shart-tem daasits 215830 262,984

Market Risk
[a) Invbemest Rabe Rishk
Interest rate sk is the exposure of the Canporaton to moeased financing cost and redsced revenwe due to adwerse changes in nberest mbes.

The Cospoaration i mainly exposed to interesd rate movements on i3 borrowinge, inmvestments in interest-bearmg mstraments and loans and
receivables portfalio.

The chijectives of managireg intenesy rage risks ane oo

| dhetiffy and quantify interest rate fsk and to struchune assets and labilibes to reduce the impact of changes in interest rates,

milnimise the regatwe impact of adverse inberest ate movement on the Canporatson's. retuens within an acceptable risk prafile;

reduce the cost of capital and manimize the effect of interest rate wolstility on funding cost;

manage exposures by ensining sn sppropriste ratio of Mosting rabe exposires. b fiosd rabe expojres; and

* ¥ 3 ¥ 3

Cakor advamiage of Evievast rale Cples.
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Finarclal markets and positions are menitored om a dally basls. The tmae horson of the imeament ponfalio is aligned to the cash flow
Fequinamants and simbegy of the cone businass, The partfalio is diversified using & mixture of feed and floating mie mstruments within the
policy Pk

Clients wha enjoy vanable interest rate facil ttes are subject to interest rates that reset on a change incthe prime interestrate or on a quartesly basis
im accordance with various market indices. The rates applicable to foed irderest loans are based on agresd market rates at date of disbursement
ard remain fixed for the full term of the koan.

The sensitiviy of the portfolas to a 1% dhange m mterest rabe is reflected below:
%] Effect on profit before taw (RO0D)

Increxs sl decroase wmn Pl
Lears ard regaivalas 1% 15,904 1,51
Loaris and receivables 1561 115,E76) (11,6133
FHield to matunty svestments and cash and short-term deposits 1% ey | FAkEL
Hielel 1o matu iy Ensestmeants and cash and shom-Term deposits 156 15221 F23%

(b Foreign cummency rak
Forelgn eachanige risk i the risk that charges in exchangs rates will adversely impact the Mnancial pasitan of the Corporatian

Oparational expandifurs
The foredgn exchange rick anking from operational expenditure such as travel and subscrigtions are not considered material
The Comporation is however mindful of potential foresgn exchange nsk when enterng imto contracts. Wherewver possible any foreign osrency

risk must be sbminated by smbering into Rand-based contracts. All contracts with a foreign cusrency component are reviesed by Treasury during
the establishment process.

Fandirg
Tir elieninake curmency sk, all kans muast be Rasd deraminatéd, All propodals Tor funding = Rarsign curency andd related Redging maist be
snibnired 1o ALCD far fecammendaticn 1o BRAC kar approval
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Liquidity Risk
Ligquidety nsi is the risk that the Corporation may not be able to generate sufficient cash resouwres to honowr its finanoal commitments on a cost-
effective and timeous besis.

Liguidey risk arided mainky a3 8 rell of the Corporations disbursemsnts in e with the sppecved Sorategic Plan, servicing loan obligations and
aperamanal cash reguiremeants,

T ancune that the Corparation is able to meet its financial oblgatons the kquidity management policy incudes:
# ensunng adeqguate avalabiliy of funds to meet its budgeted fnancial obligatins;
# shan- and kanag-tenm cadh flow forecasting;
# re-assessmant of ivvesting pelicies an a regular bas;
W ensuring appropriate lguedity lewels by
#  establishing investmernt [imats per instnoment;
@ gattirdg of mataniny pararetess far Investments; and
#  re-assessment of investment instrumennts based on bquidity requiremerts;
A maneging the contractual maturity gap betwesen sxsets ard lishilites; snd
# diversifying funding saurces and have funding program mes available to reduce rellance on partioular sources To suppon effective lquidity risk
TETERET S

Funding plan

Folloearig the approved Sirstegi Flan of the Conporatian, Tunding rguinrements for the next Theee years smou s t 1.3 billion

The Codparaticn i n the procets al mobilizing inding A part of s hunding prageamme the Dorpoeraticn seodmd Turdireg Trom the Agence
Francade de Divedappaimnt (AFDT and the Euscgann Inyastimsnt Bank (EIET)

Capital management

The objectre of the Corparstion’s capital management is ta snsure that it maintaing s strang oredit rating and generates sufficent capital to support
A3 business objectres and maximize Shareholder value

Crudit rating Global Credit Rating Ca

Maticnal long b Ad-
Maticnal ghoet term Als
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Approval of the Annual Financial Statements

Thi Diractars are legally beund to ensure that the Cerparatien keeps full and proper records of its fnancial affairs and for the propamation and
integriny of the annual firandal statements. The examal asditars ane engaged 1o conduct an audit and sxpress an indapendent opinion an the
financial statemenis

The KMFACs annual finandal statements have been prepared in ferms of Generally Hecognised Accourting Practice and are in line with the
Corparation’s acoounting pobcies and supported by reasanabde and prudent pudgemsents and estimates.

The Directors acknowledge that they are limately responsible far the systems of internal Bnancial control and that hey place reliance an the Audit
Commiltes o sverses Managements implementalion of sound infemal comrol syslems, procedures and syslems. Policies, procedures and approval
Trameworks ar= in place Lo maintain a strong confrol ersrorenenl. Bathing suggests Lo The Deeclon: hal any malerial breakdiown in the lumclicning
al these confrals, procedures and sysbems has otcurred dising The year undess review

The Nrectors ara of the opinicn, based on the irdormatien and explanatians given by Managemssat, and the mtermal aiditars, That the sysnam of
ntermal cantral pravidas reasanabile asourance and that the hmancial recornds may be neliod upon Tor pregaring the annual inardial sTatenments

Thie Hrectors have avery reason to bebewe that the annual finandal statermnents, which wers grepared on a going concern basis, faidy present the
Group's financial results and pasitsan at the end of the financial year and that the Growp el be 5 going concenn for the year abead.

The snrual Anancisl statements of NHFC for the year ended 31 Barch 2011, set out an pages 45 to B8, ‘were spproved by the Boaed of Dirsctors on
28 July 20017 ard sigreed on their bebalf by:

Aef !

MM Katz 55 Maoraba
Independdeny Hem-exeoutiie Chaimnan Chied Expcuine Dffces
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Board of Directars of Mational Hassng Finarce Corgosation Limed (MHFC? Beard delegated certain responsibilities ta the Audy Camamittes
("ACT) and These are 5ot cat in the Tarms of Reference of the Comminea,

Thee Committes’s resporsibilibes ane in linewith the Fublic Ainance Management &ct, Act 1 of 1999 and the Treasury Begulatians and it has discharged
all of ms respensibilities set owt m its Terns of Reference. The Committee has amongst other things reviewed the follewing during the 2010671
financial year:

@  the efMectiveness of The internal control syitems ard intemal audit

w the activities of the infemal awsdit hanetsan, indluding B anmial ek program, Ceandinatian with the axtermal mudsees, the repeets of signihcant
fnngs and The Fespanses of Managemant 1o spaciis iedemmendations;

# the Corporation’s risk areas to be covered im the scope of infernal and external audis;

#  The adequacy, reliability ard sccurscy of nancial information prosided by mansgement;
A ary acseanting or auditineg concem identified as aresidn of an intemmal ar exnermal audit
A compliance with legal and regulabory provisions; and

W whiere relesant, the indepsndences of snd chiectivity of the extamal auditors

Thee iribernal comarals implemented by MHPC foous on ideritifec key risk aneas, Managemsnt rmonitars all inennal contobs desely ard ensures hat
action i taen o oorred defickenckes as they ane idemifed. In the apinion of the Commites, hese conbreds and procedunes of the NHFC were,
during the year under review, appropiiate in safeguarding The Canporation’s ssers, &0 506 The masnmenance of proper acoounting recands and that
wiprking capital and rescince s were efficently utlised, Nathing has come 1o the artentan of the Commimes 1o indicate that a material resodown in
the functicining of the intemal comraels, proced uras and syitams has acoumed duning he year under reves;

Following our review of the annual inancal statements of the NHFC for the year ended 31 March 2000, we are of the opinion that they comply in
all material nespects with the nedevant prosisions of the Companies Act, the Fulilic Finance Managemsnt Act and Generally Recognised Accowntng
Fraciice

The Audit Committes, at its meebng held an 27 July 2011, recommended thess annuwal financial stat=ments, which were prepared on a goang
comcern basis, to the Board for approval.

- L3
e
Wir 5 Misalsba
Chairmar
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Report of the Independent Auditor to the Minister of Human Settlement

Report on annual financial statements

INTRODLUCTIGN

W R adined tha irancial statemants and groug Rnancial slatermsn s of Natsonal Boudng Firance Corparstion Limited {"Group™), which comgrse
ke directors’ report, the tatermants of lirendal positan ag ot 31 March 2011, the smoame tatemsanls, changes in rel sty ard cadh Nosws e the
wear Ther ended, a surmmary of Ggnificant acdourling pobdies snd olber explanatory noled, ad sel oull an pages 45 1o 85

HAELTORS' RESPONSIEILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The cam@any’s dinectars ane respansbile for the preparation and fair presentation of these fnancial statements n accordande with Genenally
Recognieed Accounting Practice and in the equiremeants af the Companies Act of South &frica and the Public Fimance Managamsent 4t of South
Africa, and for such intemal contnol a8 management determings is necessany 1o enabibe the prepamtian of financial statements that ane free fram
mmatedal misstatement, shether due ta fraud or eror

AUDITORS BESPOMNSIBILTY

Ohur respaoraiility = to express an opinicn on these finanoal statements based on cur aud. We conducted cur auditin accordanoe wakh Intemational
Standards on fusdibng. Those standards require that we comphy with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to chtan reszanabile
aasuranoe about whether the financial statemients are free from material misstabement. An audit imvobes performing procedures to obtain audit
ewidence about the amourts and disclosures in the finanozl statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the nsks of material misstaternent of the finanoal statements, whether due to fraud or erar. Inmaking those risk assessments,
the zuditor considers iternal corrol relevant to the entity's preparation and far presertation of the fnancial statemerts m order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate inthe crcumstances, but not for the purpcse of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of the erdity’s intemal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appeopriateness of acoounting polickes vsed and the reasonablensss of accourting estimates made by
managemsent, as well a5 evaluating the owverall presentation of the financial statements.

Wie believe That the audit =vdence we have oblained s sulficient and appropriale Lo provide a basis lor gur audil cpinicn.

OFIMIOHN

By g cainicn, the Anancial statements peesent fairky, in sl material respects, the financial positean of the cornpary andd groug as a1 31 March 2011,
ard af their Ainancial perfermance and cash ows for the year then ended in accardance with Ganesally Recagnised Accourting Pragtice and the
raquuirernens of the Comparies Act of South Africa ang the Public Finare Maragemsent Act of Saugh Africa

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In termd of Gemeral nofkce 1117 of J0T0, issued in Government Gazerte 22872 of 15 Oecember 7070, we indude below our findings on the annual
performance repaort as set out on pages 87 1o 88, and material non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the company.

PRE-DETERMINED QBJECTIVES

There were no materal findings on the annual performance report corkerning the presentation, usefulness and reliability of the information, as
defined by the Auditor General of Scuth Afnca’s B3 Reporting Guede, issued Mardh 2011, read in conjunction with the National Treasury Framework
for Managing Programme Performance Informstion, issued May 20037,

COMPLIAMNCE WITH LEWS AMD REGULATIOMS

A part of aur awlit of the fmancial statements, we complied with the mequiremants of 1S540 1250 Consideration af Laws and Regulations. in an
Ausdit of Finarial Statemenits, which incorparates 154 250 Consideration of Laws and Regulatans in an Auadin of Finandal Statersents and Practice
Mote 250 issued by the Intematianal Organisation of Supreme Audit Instmaicns. In applying the atsove standands o aur audic of the finandial
staterments, there were ne Andings conceming matenal nen-cemplance with appicable laws and regulations regarding fimandal marners, finangial
raragemsnt avd ather related marters hat came ta aur atentian

INTERNAL CONTROL

In accordance wath the P and in terms of Geneval notier 7777 of 2000, issued i Govevnimend Garerfe 23277 of 15 December 2070, we considered
mternal contral redesang to cur awdit, but net for the purpose of expreseng an apindan on the efectiveness of interal conbrod. e ded not identify
significant defickencees in inkemal contral that resulted in a gualification of the auditor’s opinion on the financal statements arddor Gndings on
pre-determined objectsies andfar material non-compliance wath lives and requlatians

[Ern st &¥ounsg I,
Diree par- Rahan Babgalal

Begistered Auditor
Chartered Accauntant [54]

24 July 20m1
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Directors’ Report

Thees Diraichans hase paasune in prasanting their regpe for the year andad 31 Masch 2011,

MATURE &F BUSIMESS
Thee: HHFC is incorporated in terms of the Compandes &ct, Act 81 of 1973 [*the Act™) and #s main business is to undertake funding 2 a wholesale
intermediary and act as a furd and risk manager.

FINAMNCIAL RESULTS
The= fnancial results of the Comporaticn Tor 1he year under resiew are sel oul an pages 45 1o 88 of 1hese finandial slalements.

Thee Anrial Finangial Statements was prepanad an the IFRS Framework inthe presdeas finandial e and is nae prapemad isang the GRAP Framawark
Thas is The first waar that GRAP Framavweosk will be adapiad

SHARE CAPITAL
Theere wapre no charges to the authorised and Esued share capital of the Corpaoration during the year

The= MHFC directors cam in berms of Section 221 of the Companiss Act reat issue ary shares without the consent of ify Sharshelder in 8 duly corvenied
genersl mesting.

DIVIDENDS
Ir cerrns af a0 agreed paolicy itk its Sharehakder, all prafits are retairssd by the Corporation e bkl the Conperations capial buse arsd these by
Inet Pt INS menivities and irnpact

DIRECTORS
s Makiwane resigned and 85 Ssanepoel was appointed Deector dunng the year under revess, The comiposition of the Board 15 set out on page 8
The: Carectors’ emalurnents ane set out on page B4 of these inandal statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mis I Mo

BUSIMNESS ADDRESSES
PO B 315376
Beaamidamain

2007

151 Floor, Old Traffard Bleck 3
Isle of Haughton

11 Boundary Boad
Haughtan

2193

POST-BALAMNCE SHEET EVENTS
Within the 2012 financial year the Conpomation increased its sharehaolding in Housing Irvestment Partnership (HiP) from 25% to 33%

Certificate from the Company Secretary

I my capaoty as Company Seoretary, | hersby confam in terms of the fct, that the Conporation lodged. with the Registrar of Companies, all such
retums as are reguired of a Fublic Compamy mbermis of the Act, and that all such returns are, to the best of my inowledge and belief, true, comect
and up to date.

Eass

W13 E Marx
Campary Secraltany
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Performance

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Fage 36

GROUR COMPANY
bl rie ) [a] a1 2010
Reitated®

Maite R0 R0 R RO

Inb=reit on adwances 2 118,925 1110500 124,758 116858
InTerash i Invastrrents 41,036 TEEN 40,005 73,287
Rental ircome 5,480 8 EEe 5440 4451
Dinvidens. receved 158 158 THaY 158
Sala off Frases 54,465 a1.075 - -
Rewenue 2200022 e TaN 178,100 194,754
Tl o aahas 7,05 (LR - -
Het Impainmaerits 7 |4, 427) (72,288 (4,427 {732,888}
Grodd profit 167 200 119,735 173873 121,846
Other operating income k3 24,053 59,764 4,597 26,910
Admanistratrie expenses 41 (1A 1] (80,112 [ B P9}
Qiher aperating experses 43 {17 &R3) 113,764 137 413 11nB63)
Operating profit Td 5310 TR 42 45555 o A2
Finanoe coits 5 A0 11014 (&11] -
Share of bass of am assodats = Housing Invastmant Partrens 12 11, 5a4) 11,448 = -
Share of profit of an associate - Trust for Urban Housing Foundation 13 1,703 I - -
Surplus bafore tax 75,547 73440 B5, 348 58,823
Income tax eypense ] {15, 585) {15815 [14,738) {13,865}
Surplus for the year S8858 S7ERS 50,612 44,958

* CeTaky Smounis shawn here 0o nod corresgand i the 2815 Asanchal serements and reiects slusimants swade ar detadas i Mate 7 and Mare 12,
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a5 at 31 March 2011

GROUP COMPAMNY
2011 A 2011 2000
Bastaked® Restated®
Hixta R FTH RGO R3O
ASSETS
Mom-Luament aiietg
Loans ard receivables = advanoes 7 1,330,393 1,025,001 1,397,374 1097417
Irvwestmient in subsidiary - Gabeway B - - 2382 2352
Irrwastmant i subsidiary - Cape Tawn Cammunicy Hougireg & = - B A7 897
Irwestmient = prefenenoe shanes 1] 2,500 2500 2.500 2500
|rvwestment m cell captive 11 - - - 7000
IFrwsimant n adtociate - Housang Ivmsiirsent Partners 12 1.051 T.856 5,566 5566
Irwestinent in associate - Trust for Urban Howsing Foundation 13 4,773 TG 2437 2437
Froperty, plant and equpment 14 1,984 1,854 1,508 148
Irstalmend sabe redsivalhes 15 36,451 5574 - -
IrwastInanE propeny 16 71,352 59174 51,745 £8.400
Goodwell i? 2,74 rH4 - -
Deeferred tanation & 3,990 pd 3000 287
1,454,317 1,125 08 1474518 1705
Currant assats
Loars and receivables - sdvances ki Fua.4m o ga 232 801 1521
Propartied developad for wale 18 64,015 54334 - -
Instalmient sake receivables 15 5,554 20,554 - -
Other recewabdes and prepayments 19 &0, 848 15,792 55,548 5. 714
el -A- Rty i nanadtrsents 20 #32,170 1,076 683 BIZATO 1061.534
Cash and shor - erm deposits 21 Z15,839 JET5E4 213,139 251032
Imcome tax receivable [ 25377 L 21,500 20,532
1,536,204 1756630 1,454,258 1,580,737
Total assets £900,511 2 AES R LRA8TTE 281850
HET ASSETS AMD LIABILITIES
Met aziels
Ispuad capital 13 B42 247 242 B4z
Share premium 22 E79, 158 B9 158 A75.158 879,158
Grant capital 3 00,000 Ple Rl 200,500 200,000
Ratairsd o arvin g 1196586 1135635 1156722 1.106.110
Total et azseks 2.XT6, 5848 26 ETE 2,208,722 2,186,110
Mom-cument Ksbilities
Furids under management 4 625,954 E15TTE 625954 615,778
Debariuing: 15 - 5000 - -
Other Anancial liabilibes ] 55 B850 10,333 45521 -
GR1,B44 &3.am &7 LATS &15.778
c Eabiliti
Drabniuine: 5 5,000 - - -
Other Ainancial liabilibies ] 4,450 s 3,508 -
Prossisions iF 1291% a7 12488 124440
Trgeche il by pasrakdes 8 j e TR A4 603 HA457
XS e Rk 20579 17,1038
Total liakilitias 713,535 e §93,054 633 881
Total reet adsets and liabilities 0511 LEES VIR LIARTTE 281890

* Cor T AIALRTE S e (R0 ST SR oy ot 2101 0B ! ST TS Ol refiTy AU EVSInT ke 6 diTa e in Mare 7 and Wake 3.



NHFC Arinwal Report 3011
“ace &R

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Aitributalble ta ned asset holdars of tha parsst

bsued Share Grank Retained
Fef capital |PrEmiLIm capital RATINGE Tatal
(Hote 23] Mot 13y {Note 23}
RO00 Ry IRHH} o i) R THME

Group
Balance at | Apeil 2008 = BT 158 ZTHY DO 1.0TEE0 2158810
Suinplus fior thie pesiod - - - 57 B2 57,835
Balance at 30 Manch 2010 ] B 158 2T DO 1136635 1216635
Share in changes in retained sannings of assodate
= Hiousing Investment Fartners Motz 12 - - - (311 1261}
Share in changes in ressrves
=Tt fior Urban Hausing Foundation MNot=11 - - - 354 154
Balanice at 31 March 2010 [restated®) - B9, 158 2000 1.1356,7X8 2206718
Saunplus fior the pevicd - - - 540558 59,858
Ax at 31 March 20011 B2 879,158 B0, 00 1,196,585 2,276,585
Company
Balanics at 1 ipl'ﬂ.!ﬂl]ﬂ- - ] BTG 158 200,01 1067 153 2. 140,152
Surplus far the period - - - 4558 44, 558
Balancs at 31 March 2010 =) Bra, 158 204000 1106110 185110
Sunplue fiar thie period - - - B0812 L0812
Az at 31 March 2011 B2 B7S,158 200, DeD0 1,156,722 2235732

= CasTaky SMOETTs shawn hare do nod comesgand fothe 2310 fisanchal Retaments and redacty susimants sode aF setstlad in Mate 7 and Mare 12,



Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2011

NHFC Arinusl Report 2011

Face 48

Group Company
2011 M0 2011 2010
Bestatad® Restated®
Hete L] RO R0 age ]
Operating activities
Resal pis:
Sale of poods and services 6,670 1,006 - -
Irfterest, resvtal and dividend imoomes 165,557 191,617 178,100 HEATE
Crifvar cparating navanga 13,00 44 GO0 1,247 FL593
185,238 237423 175,347 X6 A
Fayrrsis:
Emploryes costs (e8,979] (65,052 {59,941} (56,306
Suppliers {340, 0] [H0EITT (344,154} (407431
Finanse £osts 11,1560} (LR E ] 1511 -
Taocatian paid {17.036) (35312 {15,986} (a3.529)
Met cash Nows wied in operating sctivities 2% {240, 005] [FE& TN 247, 325) (FF1.007)
Irmvesting activities
Al itans To propermy plen and equpiment 14 11,064} (1334 [B72) (555]
Froceeds from sale of property, plamt and equipment 14 F ] = 16 =
|rvwesiment m aasooiaie 13 - - - (2407
st ranirin iy P hd-pe-rn D iy irvetTre s 2l 144,513 160,484 129364 161 085
Froceads from liquidation of Investmant 1 - - 14,738 -
Mt chih from investing activities 143,478 159,152 143,247 157 654
Financineg activities
Irrcreatse in furds under mansgement 24 10,176 Qb SRS 10176 QL 5RG
Procesds fireem bomowings 6 50,073 - S0EF -
Fepaymert of bomowings an 9T} [y - -
et cash flows from fnancing actities 58,3832 30 005 4,585
et descressde in cash and cash equivalents (&7, 145} (13 8680 (AT ATH) (18,7211
Cash and cagh aquivalernts ar 1 April F 63,984 176844 251,812 250,733
Caih and cash equiivalents st 31 Mardh 9.4 215,834 JE2 04 FAERE 251012

* Cirian dmaunts thows dive o sol comeporsd fo e JO10 P ascia! 1Fatittiin i g’ refict ddjusiesfi mode & diffaied in Nahe 7 and Nake 15,
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

1. GROUP ACCOLUNTING POLICIES
CORPORATE INFORMATION
The: consolidated financal statements of the National Hoeeng Finance Corparation Limited CBIHFCT) far the vear ended 31 March 20011 were
appeived by the Board o P9 Joby 3011 MHFC is 8 pablic company incorporsted snd domidiled in South Avics, the shares of whidh are held
by the Gowernment of the Republbc of South Afnca.

BASIS OF PREPREATION

Thee cansalidated finarial satements have baan propared of a Bistorcal oo Brasis, exoept as athe reie indicated, The consalidated finangial
staternents are presented in Band and all values are rounded to the nearest thousard {R°000) except when otheresss indicated. Consclidated
financial staterrents are prapasad on a geing concem basis The finencial year-end for Cape Town Cammunity Howsing Campany {Pty Limited
arsd Galesway Home Loans {Peyl Limitsd i 37 Mlasch. Similss sccountmg polices are applied aoross the Group.

Statement of compliance
Thee annual financial staternents have been prepared in accordande with the effectve Standards of Gererlly Becegnised Accounting Practice
(GRAP] including any intapratatians, quedelines and directives issued by the Adcaunbing Stardards Bosed

Basis of consolsdation
The: corsolidated financal statements compise the financal statements of MHFC Limited and its subsidianes as at 31 March 2011.

Sulisidiaries ane entities controled by the Grown, Contrel exists whien the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, ta goverm the financial
arad gpeateg policies of am arlity o a3 W ablain benefng Tror its activlied, Typically, this will be wherg the Groug has rmesare than 5096 of he
voting poswer. In assessing control, poteral watng rights presertly exercisable or convertible are taken into accownt

Subsidiaries are fully consalidated from date of acquisition, being the date on which the Groupobtains control, and continue to ke consolidated
LAl the date that Such camtral deases.

Allmra-group balences income snd experses and unraslissd gaing and kasses resulteng lrem inbra-groug ransactEans are eliranated m full.

Changes in accouriang policy and disclosure
The accounting policess adopted are consistent with thase of the previous year except for the adopion of the following e or revised
sandards:

Related party sissloswes

Fedated party disclosures are prepared m accordance werth IPS&S 20 Related Party Disclosures (IPSAS 20). Related parties are identfied 2
Bieing thase panies thar cantral or have sigrificant influsrce ower HHFC and these parties that are contrelled o sigrificamly influenced by
MHFL. Disclosure iz made of all relationshaps involving control, even when there are no transactions between such parties dunng the year; all
cther refated party transactions and managemant comgarsaticn.

Ther kiry révisions ta the standard ane 1o provide panial exemgiian for Government-relased angities, and simplify the definition of relaad party
and remove incansslencies.

Under the preveous version of 145 24, if an enbty is Govermment contralled, or sgnificantly mlesncsd, the entity was requred to disclose
Infermation et all transactions with ether antibes controlled, ar significantly influsnced by the same Govemment. Tha revised standarnd
elimwgles some of Theme reguirements and reguees disclgsom gbaut such ransaceand cnly il they sre mdividually or dollecbreely sigraficant,

Summary of significant judpemeants, estimates and sssumpticns

The preparation of the Groups finandal statements reguines management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
repofed amounls of enaies, experses, pisety and labslities, sd the disclosure of comtingent lakalities, 81 1he reporting date. Howeayer,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estemates could result in cutcomes that could requires 3 material adjustment to the canry ng amount
ol the asset or Babibgy aftected in thse future

StaM casts
Staff costs. management costs and Directors' fees are recognised as an expense 25 and when the employes or Director renders services

Irvestment propertes

Manpgameny reassessas arnisally the mast apgropriate allecation of housing stock Datween inventory and investment graopseties, The
percentage allocation of these assets have been estimated 2= the mest liksly manner in which economic benefits will be reslized from these
asseds, b it either in the form of preceeds an the sale of the aseet or rerdal income received on the kease of an apemting lease asset

Thee fair walue of tha Compamys FseEmant propemy & detarmined using the cagitlization of net Income mathed of valuation based on
a captilisalion rabe of 14.5% The capitilestion rate is best detsrmined by refering to markel manssctions of comparable properlies and
Is determined by driding the annualised income by the purchase price. This yield i based on information derived from market analysis.
Comparatde sakes it the imemediate sicinity redledt s cagiilisation rate in the region of 14.8%, For the Griip, the valiation was based on apen
miarket walwe for existing use.

Trarislers are made G InYesEm=nT praperry from properies developed far sale wher there B a change in use,
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GROUF ACCOUMTING POLICIES continuad

Fair value of financial nstruments

Whare The fair value of firancial assets and financial labilities recarded in the statemsnt of inancial pesitian cannet be denved fram actie
markets, thay are detsrmined using vabustion technigues including the discourted cash flows model. The inputs to these models are taken
from chsarvable markets wharg peassiblke, Bt whene this is neg teacible, a degree of jlsdoemant & required in eftablehing fair valugs, The
judgements mdude considerations of inputs such as hguidity sk, credit risk and wolatility. Changes m assumiptions abowt these factors could
attect the repoated fair walus of finandial instnemants

SUMBMARY OF SHGMIFICANT ACCOUNTIRG POLIKIES

Business Combinateons and Goodwsdl

Buginisd combrinatisnd from 1 January 2000

Business combinations are accownted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition & measured as the aggregate of the
cansideration transfered, messuned at sogquisition dare fae value ar the amount of any non-conbioling irerest m the acqueres, For @ach
businest combanation, the acquirer measwres the non-controlling interest in the acquires either at fair value o at the propeetionate share of
L S apuinde’s, den Db e nel asdels Adguiiilion dodld induired are expenied and = cdhided m adimenistralme eparaes,

When the Group aoquires a Busmess, it assesrses the finandal ass#ts and liskilites assumed far appropriste classification and designatian
in scordanca with the conbrachual tems, econamis croumstancas and pertinent condmions a5 at the acquisition data. This indludes the
separation of embesddsd derivatives m hoat contracts by the acqguires.

If thee business combination is achesved in stages, the acguistion date fairvabue of the acquinss’s presioushy held equity inberest in the acouines
i§ mneasiired T fair waluse ot the acuisitien date hraugh e or kss.

Any conlingen Condceration Lo Be transferred by the acquirer will be recogresed o1 Tair valoe af The aoquadition dale, Subssgquent changes e
thie farr value of the contingent consideration whach is deemed 1o be an asset or labilny will be recognised in aoccordanoe with 1AS 39 either in
profar ks or asa changs 1o other comprefendve incomea, I the contirgent consideraton w dlazidfied s eguity, it should notl be remeasured
uritil it i5 finally settled in eguity.

Gooduwill i initially measuned at oot bsing the exces of the aggregate of the consdaration transfemad and the amaunt moogrised for the
nan-controding sherest over the ret identifiable assets acqueed and liabilitiss assumed. If this consideration i lower than the far wvalue of the
niat asets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference & recogniged in prodi or kss.

Aftarmitial recogriti on, goadwill is meaiuned ancost less ary sooumulated impaitment ksses, For the purpoess al irnparment besting, goodil
acquired in a business combination i, from the acguisison date, allocated to each of the Group's cashe-generating units that are capected o
Lerrefin fromn synergies. of the combinaticn, imespective of whether other aters and labilties of the acquires are adsigresd 1o thase unms,

Wherse goodwill Torms part of 8 cash-generting unit and part of the aperalicn wilkin that urit i3 degosed of, the goodwill associsted with
thie aperation dispased of is included in the: carrying amount of the aperation when determirdn g the gain ar less on disposal of the cperation.
Goodwill dispodsed ol in this driumatande s measured based cn the relalive values af the operation disposed of and the porlion of the caih-
generating unit retaired.

Baigifiasd ambinatians grice to 1 Jamiary 2000
In camparson to the showe-menbonad reguirements, the fallowing differences spplied:

Business combinations were accourted for using the purchase method. Transaction costs directly attibutable to the acquisition formed part
of 1R Biquisitian Coats, The ran-cantrallng interest [Tomme iy krswn as minoify interes1) was measured 81 the proponicnale share af the
arquires's identifiable net assets

Busingss comisnations achieved in stages wene accounted for a6 separate steps. Any additional acquired shage of Intarest did not affact
previouwshy recognised goodwill.

When the Group acguired a business, embedded derrvatives separated from the host contract by the acquires were not re-assessed an
acquisivian unless the Busiress combinatkan residted in a charage in the tems of the certrmact that sigrifcantly medified the cash Maws that
otherwise would have been required under the condract.

Cantingent conslderation was recognised if, and anly i, the Growp had a pregent abligation, the econame: outflow was miore blely than not
and a relialle aatimate wad determimable. Subdegeenl adpisbmeants L the dontingenl coraiderslion were recagnived as part al goodasll,

Inveestme=nk in subesidisry
Inwestent in a subsidiary is caried at cost less imnpairmsent

Subrsidiaries are fully cordelidated Trom The date of acguisitien, Beng the date an which The Group chtains conrel, and cantinise to b
consabdated until the date that such conirod ceases
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2011

1. GROUP ACCOUMTING POLICIES continusel
SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES cortinued
Irtarast i arsacisles
Thes Group’s ireeatment in it associstes is accounted for using the squity. An associabe is anentity i whach the Group has sgrificant influence.

Under the equity method, the rmeestrment in the associate is carmed in the statemsent of finanoal postion at cost plus post-acquisibon changes
i the Graups hare of nel assens of the gscciyie, Goodweil ralating te the sssgoiste d irkledad in the carrgiry smournt of the insesiment and
is neither amoatised nor individually tested for impairmaent.

Thee statement of financal performance reflects the shane of the results of aperation of the asseciate. Whene there has been a dhange
recogrissd directly in the other comprehensive indome af the msocinle, the Group moognises ity $hare of any changess and oy this,
wiheen applicable, in the statamsnt of firandal perfarmance. WUnrealised gains and losses resulting fram transacticns betwean the Groun and
the associabe ar= eliminated 1o the extenl of The interest in the assocdats

The= share of profit or loss of the associates i $hown on the face of the statement of fnancial perfoemance. This iz the profit attributables o
acjuiry Pealders of the asscdiate and thenetaie i5 preft alter Lad and ned-centrelling interests in 1 aibsdianes of TP asiadciare

Thee Amancial sEalerme s of the assodiates are prapansd Toe (e Lame repartng peiod as 1he Group,

#fter application of the sguity method, the Growp detsrmines whether it is necessary to recognise an additsanal impairment loss on the
GIOUR'S Imvestrment in its associates The Group determines at @ach reparting sheet date whethser therma is any chjective evidence that the
imvestmiEnt in the associates is impairsd. I thes is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impaiment as the dfference befween the
recowverable amaunt of the associate and I8 canrging value and recognises the amownt in the share of profit of an assciate’ in the statemsent
of finarcial performeance

Upon loss of significant influence cwer the assooate, the Group measures and recognises any retaining irvestment at is fair valee Aoy
difference berween e carying ameunt af the asseclate upan less of significant infuence ard the Tair walue of the retaining mestrment and
proceeds from disposal is recogmised n prafit ar loss.

Propeerty, plant and squipmant

Flart and equeprrsant iy sated ar coil e luding the cost of dsy-to-day servsding, by gedumulated depreciation ard acoumulsted impaimment,
Depreciation is caloulated on a stright-line basis over the asset’s expected useful Ife, using the fallowing depreciation rates to reduce the
carying walue Lo recoverable amount:

Computer hardware LR
Computer sefTwars EER o
Furniture and fithings 16674
Featar wahiaclas 25.00%
Office squpment 16487%
Leasehald impravemants penicd of laase

Thee carryrs walus al plant and eguigment (5 reviesssd far maperment when avenls or chargjed in groumdlacs irslicste that the carying
walua may mat be recowerable. IF any such indications exist and where the carying value excesds the estimated recoverable amaount, the
asiets are writen down o ecoverable smount. The regoveralile amaur is the grester af the Tair walue less costs 1o sell ared Fre value in use,
the estimated future cash flows ane discounted to their present value using a pre-tas discount rate that reflects cumrent market assexsmenits
ol Th R value of morvey ared e risks. spedilic 1o the assets, Impairmenl lcases e recognised in the statement of inancul pefarmane,

Where an sasel is aoquirsd s1 no cosl, or for a nominal cast, s costis it lair value as 91 date of scquisition.

#n item of property, plant and squpment is de-reccgnizssd upon dispesal or when no future economic benefits or service potential ars
e pcred fram ivs use oF dispasal, Any gan arlass aisireg on de-recegninion of the asset [calculated as the differande between [he net dispasal
proceeds and the carmpng amount of the asset} is inchuded i the statement of financial performance in the year the asset is de-recognised.

Thee residual value of assets, their wseful lhees and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each reporting date and adpsted prospectively if
appraphale

Properies deseloped for sale
Froperties develogaed far on-seling ane measuned at the lower of cost and et realisable val s,

Froprerties devalograd far sale ane s ned a1 the ke of ces1 and current replacement cast whene thay are hald rar
w  distribution at fg change ar far a nominal dhange: oo

# consumption ; the production process of goods 1o be distnbuted at ro charge or for a nominal chage
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuad

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Properlies developsd for sale continied

The coataf the propertias for on-s=ling comprises of the cost of purchass, costof comeersion and other cost mourred inBringing the properties
deseloped for on-selling to thear present location and condion.

Het realisable value is the estimated seling price in the ardinary courss of business less the estimated cost of completion 2nd the estimated
cost necessany to make the sale.

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs 1o acguire the asset on the reponting date.

Dreyelopmenl experditure is indlesded as directly aftributable cost indured in brnging properties developed far or-ielling to the presenl
locastion and condibion.

When properlies developed lor ancselling ane sobd, the canrying amount of thote propeties developesd for on-seling is recognised a2 an
eupense in the penod in which the relsted revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of properies devsloped for on-seling to
net realisable value and all kosses of properties developed for on-seling is recognised as an expense i the pericds the wribe-down or lass
poours The amaurt of any reversal of any write-down of properties develoned for aneselling, a0 sing fram an ncrease of net realsable value, (5
recgnlsad as a reduction in the amait of properties developed for an-salling recogresed &5 an expenss in e persod in which the rosensals

DL

FINAMCIAL INSTRLUIMEMNTS
Financial atseqs
Fmancial asiets walhin the wcope of 1&S 39 are classified as either losns and receivables oo held-to-maturily investmenls, as spprooniafe,

Francial adsels preinilially recoegnised gL iainvalus, plus, in e cade of smyvestmerts not at Fair vabue through prois ansd loss, directly sitekutabls
transaction costs.

All fegidar purchises aod sales ol Tinars al a33e158 are recignised on (ke trade date, e the date that the Group commils Lo purdhse the aagel
Regular purchases or sabes are purchases o sales of Bnancisl assety that reguire delivery of assets within the period generally sstablished by
requlation or convention i the market place.

Held-ta-moturity investments

Hon-denwative finanoal assets with fived or determinable payments and foed matunty are classified as held-to-matunty when the Group has
the posftive imtertion and akdity to hold to mabunoy. After initial reasurement held-to-maturity investmerts are measured at amartised cost
usirg the effective Interest mathod. Gaing and lasses are moognised in profit and loss whan the Ireestments ane de-recognised of impaired,
s wsell s thireaigh The amerTEATIGH process

Loans and recelvahig

Laans ared redeivalles are not-deivative Nnancial asseqs with Nxed or deqerminable payment et are nol quated in an active marker
Al inital meadurement koans and receivabled are carmsd an amortised cast using the alfecive mbaest methosd ks ary alowanoes for
impairment. Gaing snd losses are recognised in the statement of financisl performence when the loans and recesvables are de-recognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair voiue

The fair value of investmerts that are actiesly traded m orgarised frnancial marksts is detesrmined by refersnce to quatesd market bid price
at the chose of business on the balance sheet date. For investments whesre thers is no active market, fair value 15 determined wang valuation
technigues. Such techniques ndude using recant armis lenogth market transactans, reference ta the cwment marker value of another
insgrament, which is substantially the same; disoourted cash ow analysis and valuatian madels

Armerizad cosr

Hald-ta-maturity ienestments and kaans and recsivables e measumed ot amarntised cast, This is campuned using the effective interest methad
hasg any allcwance Tor mmpeerment. The calculalion Lakes inbg adcoinl anyg premmim or @aceuint on aoguisibiam and e ckades Traniaclion ceals
and fees that sre an integral mert of the effective inkerest rate.

Trede o other receivobies
Ctber recervables e classified s loans snd recenvables. These are mibally measured at the fair vaboe. Other receivabiles are subsequent to
initial recognition measured at amartesed cost.

Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and shart-term depasits on the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand ard shart-term deposits with an anginal mabury af
less thian thres months. Cach and short-temn deposits are cansidened 1o be loans and recsivables

Far the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equevalents consist of cash eguivalents as defined 2bose, net of
putstanding bank averdrafis

Cash arvd shart-tesm depasits are subsegquently measured aT amurised oot
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2011

1. GROUP ACOOUNTING POLICIES continueed
FINAMNCIAL BNSTRUMENTS cantimied
Impairment of inanoial assets
Aggats corried ar grsortised goqd
If there is objective svdence thet an mparment loss on lcans and advances; and held-to-maturity investments camied at amorbesed oost hes
Been incurned, the amaurt of the loss B measured a5 The diffeence between the asset’s carmgrg amaunt and The present valug of estimaned
future cash flows (esduding future credit losses that have not been incured) discounted at the finsnoal asset’s onginal sffectme inberest ate
(e, the aftecrive interest rate camguated at initial rmcagniticon], The ameunt of the kKiss is ecognised in profit cr bess

Thee Grougr irst assasdiey whether objective evclence af impaimment ex@s indisdually far financial assets tha am indwidyally significanl, and
inediwidusally ar collectively for financial assets that are reat indiidually ssgnificant. I it is determined that no objective evidence of im pairment
exists lor an andvidually sscessed linancial asset, shether sigrfoart ar net, the assat i ircluded m oo group ol Bnancial saoes sl similar
credit risk characterstics and that group of inandal assets is collectively assessed for impaiment. &ssets that are individually assessed for
impai pmerr L and for adich an impairmssnl leas B ar cantinues 16 be recogrimed are ral ingleded in g collesbrve assesimen] of impairimsnt

If, in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decresses and the decresss can be relsted obiscthesly to an svent ooouring
after the imgalmmant was recognisad, the proviowshy reccsgnised impairmeent Ioss i revenad, ta the extent that the camrying valua of the assat
does not seed dy smortised cost at the reyersel dake. Any subssquent reversal of an impaiment boss & recognised in the statement of
financial perfarmance.

Ir redagion o aclvan oes, provishen far imgairment B made when thers is abjecive evidlence (such a8 the probubiling of insabency oF signiflcant
financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Growp will not be sble to collect all of the amounts due under the ongmal terms of the invoice. The
carrying ameunt o advances 15 redued theeugh use af an npaErment sooent Impained debos ae de-recognised when They are assessed
as uncallectible. int=rest income animpaired balarces continues to be accrued using the rate used 1o discount the futare cash fowes for the
purpase af weasuring the imgaiment loss

Instalment sale receivables.

Irtalmient sabes agreaments are the sales tangactions of propertios developed for sale. Selling profit or boss 15 recognised In the period
i which il geours in aodoedance with the policy fallowed Tor cutright sales When below markel inberest rates are charged, selling profil s
restricted to that which would appdy iIf market rates were charged. Costs incurned in conrection with negotiating and aranging agresmsnis
i recongnised ad an expense when Che selling prafit is nedosnised,

Instalment sale receivables are nitally recognised at the net investmient in the instalment sale agreement. The recognision of finance income
i based on a consgant periods mte of refum on the net invessment in the instalment sale receivabla,

Sutrsaduant impairment of indtalment dale redaivable:s are determimed andd mcognised in acoondancs with the golicy applicable 19 laans and
receivables

Fiman<ial liakslies

Other papahles
Oitkier payabbes are mitially recogrised ot falr walwe and carfed at fair value and subsaquently 2t amortised cost.

Irareresr-aring logvs and besrowings
&ll loans and borrowings ars initally recognissd at the fair valus After indtial recognition, mterest-beanng loans and borrowings ane
st ey msaduned A1 amonised cost using the effective inens=t methad

Gairs arvd lodaes are recogrived in re] profl o kass wehen the liabilines are demcognised ad well a2 throwgh the pmanisatian prodess,

DE-RECOGNITION OF FINAMCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Fiman<ial assets

& financial asset is de-recognised when:
#  the rights to recerve cash flows from the asset have sxpired;

#  the Growp retains the dght to rece e cash flows from the asset, but has assumied an obligation ta pay them in full withowt matenal delay
1o & therd pany urder 3 pass throwsg b srrangemenl; ar

i  the Growp has transfesred s night to receive cash lows from the asset and either (2} has transferred substantially all the risks and rewerds
of tha asset, ar (b has neither transfamad nor retained subistantially all the risks and rewards of the asses, but has ransfemed contral of
the= asses.

When the Group has transferred its rights to recene cash flows from an asset and has nesther transferred nor retamed swbstantially all the nsks
anel rewards af The asset, the asaet is recogrsed to the ement of the Graup's contining irvabsemant in the asset. Contiruing invelverent
that takes the form of a quarantes aver the transferred asset s measwred a1 the lower of the orgmnal carrping amount of the asset and the
PR L) o i e ekl et of That Thee Grouip could B regquired Ta repasy.
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuad

CE-RECOGMITION OF FINAMCIAL ASSETS AMD LIABILITIES continued

Finain clal Labilities

A financial liability is de-recognizsd when the ohligatan under the liabality is descharged or cancellsd or sxpires.

When an mwosting finanoal liability is replaced by another from the same lender an substartially different terms, or the terms of an existng
liskyility see subivariially medifiad, duch an exchange or madfcatan is trestad a8 s deereoog riticn of e crigna lisbilie and the redegnitan
of a nevw liahility, and the difference i the respective camying amounts s recognised in the statement of finandal performance

Frowisicns

Provisions are recosgnized when he Group has a present abiigaetion {egal or conglructne) as s result of & past evenl, and it i3 probable that an
putfhow of esources embodying econamic benefits ar sarvice potertial will ke required ta settle the obligation and raliable estimates can ke
maacle af the smount of the chligaton. Where the Group expects some or all of & provision o be reimburssd, for example under an insaranoe
cantract, the rembursemsent it recogniked as o saparate asset but anly whan the rimbiursamant i wrtually cartain. The axpenss relating to
any provision is presenled in the slatement af financial performance net of any resmbursement If the effect of The ime valie of money is
matenial, provisions are discourted using a curnent pra-tax mte that reflects, where appecgiriate, the risks spacfic o the liakdity.

Barrawing casis

Borrowing costs that are dirscthy attributable to the acqustion, construction or prodection of gualifying assets are capitahised as part of
the cost of that asser until such Time as the ASSeT i§ regdy fon its inben ded wse, The amaunt of Bomewing costs eligible Tor Capalisation is
determiresd a5 follows:

#  actual borroesng costs on funds specifically borosed for the purpose of cbitainng a gualifying asset less any temporary investment af
Phiee B rawing,

#  weighted average of the borowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose of chtaning a gualfng
assat. The borroswing cosis capitalsed do not sacesd the total borawing costs incurmed.

The capitalisanian of Borrawind costs Ccammandas when:

& experditures For The adse] have occurnesd;

# borrowing oosts hawve been incurred, and

#  activites that are necessary to prepane the asset for #s intended use or sale 2re m progeess.

Capitalisatian 15 suspended during extended periads inwhich actiee deselogment s internipied

Capitalisatian ceases when sebistantially 3l the activities necessary Te prapare thie qualifying sset far its interded use o sale are camplate
Al b Baimowirs (odls are recagriied as b apaide it the penicsd wn which they e indisred,

Leasi=s

The detarmination of whethar an arangament i5 oF containg a kase 15 basad on the substance af the srangemant at inception date of
whethar the lulfilment of the arrangement & deperdent o the use of 5 speofc sasel or The arangemsnt canveys a nighl touie the aies] The
daszificatian of the lease s dateminad in tarms of GRAF 13,

Group ad i

Fmance k=ases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the nsks and benefits inodental to ownership of the leased fem. are capatalised
al the commencernent of the keade an the Tair value of the leased property o, o kiesen, an the present vakie of the minimurm lease payirsents
L=aze payments are apportoned betwesn finance charges and reduction of the lease liability =0 a5 to achieye a constant rate of interest on
the remaining Balance of the labdity. Finance charges ane regog nised in the statement of inandial perermance

Legaandd aasts pre depracisted goer the uselal lile of the assel. Howayar, ilbee s mo reasonshle certainty that the Group will chitsin camanbip
by the end of the lease term, the asset & deprecated cuver the shorter of the estimated wseful life of the asset ard the lease term.

Dparating laase payments ane recognized as an sapanse in the statemant af inandal parfermance on a straight-ling Bagis aver the laage term

Finamce leates - Groups as lessor
The Grawp recognises finance lease recerables on the balance shest.

Fmanoe income is recognised hased omn a pattenn reflecting constant penodic rate of return on the Group's ret meestment in the Ananos lease.
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1. GROUP ACCOUMTING POLICIES continusel
DE-RECOGHITION OF FINARCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES corbinued
Favanis recaghition
Reverue from exchomge transachions
Fariild COM@ITes ilerast nceiaed an adwandas, mierast an invasimsents, rasnue from sale of houses, and dividends receied, Ravanus i
recognissd to the sabent that it s probable that sconomic benefits or serics potential will flow to the Group and the esenue can be relisbhy
measured, An exchange ransaction is ane in which the antity receives assers or serdes, of had liabiliies eainguished, and dinactly gives
approwimately egqual value iprimarily in the form of goods, servces or use of assets] to the other party in sxchange. Revenue is measured at
the Tair walis of The onsideration received or recenva bbe, Taking inta sccoent contractually dehrsed termas of pagment and excuding Taxes o
duty. The fallowing specific recognition cntena must also be met before revenwees is recognised:

interest income
Rewwrue is recogrised ad interesy acirues Jusing the effecive interest method that is the rate that exactly discours estmated Tuture cash
receipits through the expected e of the finarcial instrument ta the net carying amount of the financial asset)

Diwdends
Feveriue is recognised when the Group's right to recesve the payment is established.

Renral mcome
Remvral incorme arising fram operating keades an progerty is socownted for an a straigvi-Bne Dasis oyer the lease Tarms

Soele of Howses
Fwerue fram the sale of subsdised hawses constnacted 15 recognised whien significant risks and rewards of awnership are transferred to the
buyer, Revenue i stafed excluding valps-added fax

Feverue from the sale of ron-subsidised houses constructed is recognised against registration of transfer of ownership in the name of the
buiyer. Revenue is stated axcuding value-added tax

Ciry of Cape Todwr, IHlitutlamal ahd other jabisndien
City of Cape Town subvention (fop-up), institutional and other subsidies received are defered and recogrised in incame on the date of
eCCupation al hausad Mnanced by these subsidies

Revenae from non-exchan ge transactans
Rewerue from non-exchange tansactions refiers 1o transactions whene NHFC received revenue fram another sntity without dinsctly giving
appragrmately egual walue in excharmge

Fevenue from non-eschange transactions is generally recognized 1o the extent that the related recsipt or receivable qualifies for recognition
ag an assal and there i na liabdity 1o repay the amount

Taxation

Currenf taxarion

Curmril incorme Lax asded and habadities for the curméal and prear years ane moaiurad a1 the smous axpached Do Be redowdrad rom or pasd 1o
the taxation authiorites. The tax rates used to compute the amount e theose that are enacted ar substartively snacted a1 the statement of
francisl pasitean date,

[asferred taxation
Dedamrad tax is provided, weng the liabdlity method, on all termparany differences at the balance sheat date betwseen the tax bases of assets and
linbdlivi=s and the carrging amounts for finsndal eporting punposes.

Defemed income tax labilties are recognised for all taxable temporany differences, sxceps:

# when the inital recognition of an asset or labdity in a transaction that is not a business combinaticn and, at the time of the transaction,
ey neither the accourting profit noe Laxable peofil or kass; snd

# i respect of Eakable temporary differences asscciated wigh investments m subsidiares, associates ard inEerests in joint venfures, except
whvera thia iming of thie reveral of the temporany differences can be cantralled and it 15 probable that the temparasy differancas will nat
reErs in the foreseeabls fFubure.

Defemed income tax assets are racognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forwand of unused tax asssts and wnused ta losses,
L thve extent thatinis probaltde that taxabl e profn will Be availaide against which the deducible remgoerany differnoss, and the camy-toraand
of unused tan asseds and unused tax losses can be utilised except
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GROUF ACCOUMTING POLICIES continuad

CE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AMD LIABILITIES contimued

Tanatian comlenuad

Creferred tavetion comtmued

& where the deferred mcams Ta assel relating 1o the daductible temperary diffeanog arises ram the initial FRCagriticn of am asser or
liability in & transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transacton, affects neither the accounting profit nor
tamalyke protit o loss, and

A in respect ol deducible temparary differenges assoialed with irmestments m subsidiare, assodiales ard inbemsy in joind ventures,
defermed tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it & probable that the temporary differences will rewerse in the foreseeable
Tubuire and taxstle profl sl be avadable ageenst whach the temporary Gfferenced can b ftilised

The carrying amount of defermed income tax assets i revdewed gl 2ach balance sheat date ardd reducesd fo the extent that it is no konger
probiable that sufficient tacabila profit will be avalabls te allow all or gart of the defarmad Income ta assat to be uilisad

Draferred incamse [ae assars and liabilitses are measured a1 the Tax mates that are expected to anply 1o 1he yaar when the a5l i realized ar the
lizhility is settled, basad on tax rates {and tax laws) that hivwe been =nacted or substantiesly enactsd at the reporbng date.

Deferred income tax relating to itemds recognised directly in other comprehensive income is recognised inequity and not in profit and loss.

Ratiramient benefirs
The Group has a defined contribution plan whech requires contributons to be mades to & sepearate administersd fund. The contrbutions made
are recegnised as am expenise in the statement of finanial perfermance.

The Graeg & ros Bakabe for post-retiee rent Benefis of any nature

Inwestrmend propeviies

Investment prapeties are measwed mitally 2t cost, nduding trarssction costs The camying amount includes the cast of replacing part of
BN axidling prop=sely ab The Lime hal cost is incurned if The récognilin cribena see mel; and @ hides The cast of 1he dey-lo-day servidng of an
inuEstment progerty. Subsequent to inital recognitian, meestrent properties ane stated at fair value, which reflects market conditsans at the
balance theel date, Gairg ard losieg sisirg] fram changey in Che Tair valoes al mvestmend groperies se mouoded in the sLatement of fnancial
perfarmance in the year inowhich they anse.

Whare an irsiment propsey i acqudred ot ro cost, o for 3 naminal cost, IG5 o8t 15 15 fair valuse a5 at the date of aoquisition

InyesEment profrertios are de-recagnised when el ey have been disposed of arwhen the irvestment prapery i pernanenitly withdawn
frami use and no future economic benefit or service potertial & expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the 326t s recognised in The staterment of Mnancial petarmarde in the gerkod of de-redognitian

Tranafers are made Lo or Trom investment propefy anly when there i a change in wse. For a trarsler from invediment properly 1o chwmer
pcoupled property, the deemed cost far subsequent accounting (s the fair value at the date af change in ue. f oener cooupied prooerty
becomes an mveslmen] properly the Group acoounls Tor such properly in sccordance with the policy slated urder property, plant and
squipmient up to the date of changes inuse

HEW STANDARDS AND INTERFRETATIOMNS

Standards and sterpretations issued, not yet effective, that the Group has not yet adopted

The fallowing scourting standards, amendments 1o standards and new infepredatans, which are not yet mandatary, have not bean
adopted in the curent year.

GRAF 18 Segmant Reparting
Fmancial statements comprise summasised and aggregated nformalion gbout & wide variely of acimities urslerlasken by an entity, The
purpose of seqgmient reparting is 1o present more specfic and detailed information abowt the major acthizies undertaken by an entity dunng
B particul ar penicd, alesg with the rescurces aBacated ta Foie activities

A segment & a disting uishable activity or group of activities of an entity for which it i= apgropriate to repoet financial mfcrmation separately,
fear evaluating the eritity’s past perfarmanea in achieving ms objactivas and for miaking dedsions about the future allocation of resaunces

This. stanidaed will Fuer B aggalic alde ta the Grog s therelora the e pacn will Be immatesial
This stanclaed b been approved by the Boand but ity @fTective date has nod el been detssmined by the Maniste of Finarde,
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1. GROUP ACCOUMTING POLICIES continusel
MEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS contmuwed
GRAP 1 Imgairmant of Non-cash-gensrating Assels
Man-cazsh-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. When the carying amount of a nen-cask-generating asset exceeds
its mecoverabile service amount, it is impained

Araily assesied al each reparting date whatber there i any indsation thal & ran-cadh-gensrativg atsal may b impairad 11 sy ah
imdication exists, an entity estimates the recoverable servioe amount of the asset.

Thee iImpact of this standard & not matedal.
This stancland of GRAP is affective far nanoal years cammaending on or after 1 Apeil 70132

GRAP X5 Employes Berefits
The by active of GRAR 25 is to prescorbe the accounting and disclosure for emiployes benefits. The Standard requires an enbty 1o recogrise:

& liakllity when an employes ek provid ad serdos In exchanoes far amployes benafits to ba paild Intha future; and

A an expandg when an ennny coniumes he econemic bensfins or service petential arising from serdce provided By an emplayes in
sachange for smployes benefits.

GRAF 25 must be applied by an employer in accounting for 2l employee benefits, except share-based payment bansactions.
Thiss standand is simnilas ta 145 1% therefore the impact on the fmancial statements will nat be matedal,
Thiss sancland bas beer approyved by the Beard but s effective date has not vet Been detenminesd by the Minister of Finance,

GRAP 6 Impairment of cazh-generating Asssts

Am endity assesses at each reporting date whether there & any indication that a cash-generating asset may be mpared Hany such indication
ety ar enbly eilimales he redoversile armounl of the aisel. When eibenatmg the walie® in uie of an 5481, a0 enlity elimales the future
cath infloes and outflows o be denved from continuing use of the asset and from s wWtimate dispasal and an entity applies the approprate
distoumt rate T those future cash Rows.

Thies standand is similae to VA% 38, therefore the impact on the finanoal statements wall niot ke material
Thee effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 Apnl 2003

GRAF 104 Finan cial Instrumsants

Thee standard prescribes recogrilion, messurament, presentation and disclosure reguirernents for fnoncial indrumen s, Finamcial smitnamenls
are defined as thase contracts that results inoa Ananoal asset in ane entity and a financial kabilay or a residual inteness in anather entity.
& ke distinguishing Tactor befween Tnandal asae1s and Bhancial lisbilities and olber assels ard BabiBies, is hal they ane sefthed i cash or by
exchanging finandal instrumsents rather than through the prosision of goods or sersces.

Thee irglication of this GRAP will ks an impect an the finandial statements &5 the number of categories in GRAP 104 iz reduced wharm
comipared ta 1A% 15, The resulting dischasure 25 required by GRAP 104 is sqnificantly less thar IFRS 2.

Thes standard hias been approved by the Board but its effective date has not yet been detenmined by the Minister of Finanoe.

IGRAF 7 Changes In Existng Decommissioning Restoration and Similar Liabilities
Thies Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP addmesses how the =ffect of the following svents that change the measurement of an =sisting
decommissicning, restortan or similar latdlity shoukd be accounted for

al  achange in the esimated oo of eisouries embodying eonemic benefins (g, Cash fows] or serdce potential reguined 1o semmhe he
abligation;

bl a change in the current market-based discount rate as defined in paragraph 52 of the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent
Liabelities arvd Contingent Biiels (s revided in 0000 this schudes changes in the lire value of money and the risks specific 1o the
liaksility]; ard

¢l anincrease that reflects the passage of time (akso referad to a the unwinding of the discount)
Thist saneland will net B2 apmlicabibe e the Group thenefane the impact will b immatanal,
Thee effective date of The Slandard is far years beginning an or after 1 Aped 2000,
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GROUP COMPANY
2011 A 2011 ] [a]
R0 (R RG00 R0
IMTEREST O ADVANCES
Inkerest on performing advances 111,931 104,959 117,758 111,898
Inga e o i paired pdvangeg 7,002 5140 7,003 E. 140
118,928 111,089 124,758 116,808
DOTHER OPERATING INCOME
Dheer operating income is made up as follows
54 Hausing Trust - &6 - o
Maragement fees 182 24 182 43
Bad debis recoversd 139 17 129 177
Inge et s vl Trom irstalmeng sabes 5.8 080 - -
‘Gain from reversal of mpadrmrent of instalment sale receivables® 1,224 1,128 = -
Le=vies froem instalmerit sales 1,478 1,050 - -
P riies i pos e 1 il Syl 1,000 4,135 - -
Dribviar revtal Incoma 3,257 .72 - -
Tax refund - 11,184 - 11,184
Fair waliss gan an invailinent property 818 14,543 3,345 6,300
Prasnims aannad - 4,243 — -
Surdry inoome oTa X a4 GG &0
24,052 S59.7E4 4,582 26910
= Thie craek queaiiy of e metsmand sefe recasabies imgnoind suds ransaky resaitvg
n e reversadin e pravinoe for mpsmment
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Prafit before tax is stabed after talong the following into account
41  Adminddtratie sdpendai 97,632 0112 B4, 303 TRATO
— Staff casts &0, 180 4T doa ayaATe LRl
= Salarias 38,158 4153 30,835 33 TaF
— Medical ad comtributions 2438 42 2072 2010
= Pranvigd e Tand contributicns 5,564 5103 4,571 4374
- Mlanagement costs (refer note 34} 23,819 17444 22,483 16,184
- Adminsiralion 3,977 AL KR 1 A4CE
— Mlarkting 24491 3,865 2,126 E1-T)
- Consultancy and advisory serdces 14,252 11,871 14,168 1.7
= Direcion fees L3 455 &85 ¥57
- Logal faas 1,986 3963 1,509 2570
= Auditors’ remuneration 1,808 1,115 1,584 1528
- Budit faas 1,808 1,.7i% 1,584 1538
—Travasl anad =nberainmeant 2,245 LOTE 1,865 1578
4.3  Other operating expenses 17,6832 13,704 274113 10,5963
- Danariong - 52 - 50
= ol it on 2,377 2145 1,820 1,778
= Training and develapment 955 nr 3 1] 7
= Office epnges 3,063 3167 1,907 I3
n qu:r-ldal:l:ln. a7 531 TE a4
- B bt o065 - 16,507 -
— SLan iy e s 1,366 1.8%5 1,083 1345
= Qiperating lexse pryments property and certain equipment 5,121 4,857 4,414 4335
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GROUR COMPANY
bl rie ) [a] a1 2010
[0 R 1] R'000
5. FINAMCE COSTS
Irferest cn debentures - 2 - -
Irterest cn other finanial lalicks 1,150 802 &1 -
1,150 1014 611 -
&, IHCOME TAX
Staterment of irmnoal performance:
Curment ingema Tax
Current income tax charge 1551 16680 15018 14,954
Defepmad tax [2R2] 11,074 (282] {1074}
Ircoame tax expense 15805 18418 14,738 13,868
Dafanmad tae agsen Statement of Anancial pasitan
Balance at the beginning of the year 817 1543 a7 1,843
282 1074 282 14074
R iigaeed thvice gty 1 irvo e SEATEMERE A -
Balarece at the end of the year 3,195 2917 3,199 2917
Drfiareed Lo A550q Sonsises al-
= Provisian for leawe pay 4470 35D 4470 3,659
= Pravisian for incentive borus Toan 8wy T oo B.an?
~ Dprarating heags 632 L 631 023
= Fair waluse gain an investment property 1,673} {3,150] [1673) 13,150%
Tatal 11 427 10419 11427 1418
Tax rate of 28% 3300 297 3200 2417
A recondliation betwean tax expenss and the product of accourting
profit multiplied by Scath Africa domastic ta rate for the years endad
30 Maech 2011 and 2010 s as follows:
#Accounting profit before tax from operations 78547 T 480 B8 348 BBA23
At South Africa statstony incamms tax rate of 25% 19,250 18,331 18,297 16471
Mon-taxable income [Z211) (] [Z211) a4}
M- chescl i Eillyl & empi ficdaied - 14 - 14
Capital prodit 1250 (2578 (12500 12,576}
Ircome fax expenss reported inthe statement of Ananoal performance 15605 154615 14,788 13,865
Incarme tax receivable: Statement of Ainanclal pesition
Balance at the beginning of the year 24312 5580 10,532 1,942
Teax paicd 28230 24028 ITATH 22,545
Marmal Tax charge {15.971) (18580 {15018) 114,038
Tax refursd {11, 184) 11,184 {11,184) 11,184

Eadare at the end of the year 15377 34,312 11,500 2532
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GROUF COPAFA MY
2011 o 2011 mia
Restated® FHestated®
R'O0D R0 R30 o0
LOWANS AMD RECEIVABLES - ADVANCES
Groks advances
Opening balances 1,443,819 1,113,799 1,532,235 1176245
Disburserments 417450 630,043 427 450 631013
Rapayrne s 1180,301] [280,993) (78, 262) (A75.031)
Amours previously impaired, wrtten off {1,050] - {13,454} -
Balance 3t the end of the yaar 1,599,918 1,463,819 1,766,200 1532335
|mipsinnents on sdvanoe
Balances a1 the bagmnirg of the year 1132,857] (50, 0043 (132,887} (5601 CaCr)
Amaounits impained in prevous years and written off during the year 1,050 1,050 -
Increade in impairments on sdvances [46,215] (¥, BRE) 21 5} (72 R
Imgalrments reversed during the yaars 40,935 40,936 -
Balance at the end of the year {157, 124] (133,857 (157,124} (LETE H|
Comprismmg:
Spexific impairments {104,217) [131,233) (104,217} (131,135
Garsral ien padrmrents [32,807) (1,664 (32,807} (1,554
Met advances 1,562,754 1,330,933 1829575 140358
Maturity amalysis
Recevable within 1 year 252,401 KIS 252,401 ien
Receivalile within | o 2 years 181.052 175533 168,608 ITE533
Receivable within 2to 3 years 150,857 0,115 150,897 01,75
Recervable beyond 5 years S, 044 551,743 1077 869 30150
Mt advancos 1,562,754 1,330,923 1,629,775 13993318
Nien-Clarent adsels 1,330,393 105 000 1307374 1007407
Cunrent assets 132,401 300,521 232,401 01,213
1,563, 74 1330522 162 TTS 1380338
* Falhwing M cormershan of 0 kan SR kil dn Uy A, the
i T AL of it LA vt i e TrasT far Livfars Mooing Fourdatan
{PTy) Lirttibid el Bui rif-isiing fo docoomil far de o e, dincod i undar
Aok [3. Thit preoe s st o ol st rnanid il Bk ddfuimad.
A g sty B eaend o a redule of cemaie daav and adearees Dl
rensganiaed Refer 1o Nare 13,
INVESTMENT I A SUBSIDIARY - GATEWAY
Gareway Hame Loand (Proprietany] Limited i & wholly awned Bul nons-
tradiryg subsidiary of National Houdng Finance Corparation Limaed
The racawerable amount of the inesbment in Galawiy i it cast less
Becumilated impaimnent,
Shares at cost — ordinary shares 50,000 B0 000
Less: Aesurmudated impairments 47, 508} (47 G0
3932 39z
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#.  INVESTMENT IN SUBS|IDIARY - CAPE TOWHN COMMUNITY HOUSING COMPANY
Thee Cape Toreen Com manity Hiousing Comparny is a whiolly cwned subsidiary of National Mowsing Finance Canporatsan Limitbed. The investment
is in ordimary shares at cost and non-comeertible debentures at fair walwe l2ss impairment.

COMPANY
il 2010
gl R0
Shares at cost = ordinary shares
Cipening balarce 2000 2,000
ek risse = .
Carrying amaount of shares at 31 March 2000 2,000
Doarbemniuras
Cpening balarce &197F fi, 147
Pelbna sty = -
Carrying ameount of debentares 2t 31 March &, 19% o147
Total invastmant in subcidiary B.197 8,187

Thee Mational Hewsing Finance Corffsaraticn R suboerdinated thair daims against the Campany in respet ol the debanman inarde in
Fatsair of ather <resditars of the Coenpamy

10 INYESTMENT - PREFERENCE SHARES

GROUF COMPANY
201 2010 an 20
L] F'od o R0
Greanstart (Progrietary] Lim ted 1,500 30K 2500 2,500
Mt investment in unlisted preference shares R 25 L5000 2,50

Theese are redesmakds cumulatre preference shares redeemabde at an
option of the issuer, The ivwetine it consists of 100 shares at par walue
of K1 and a share premium of R24,99% per share. The total preference
shares in Greenstart (Fropnetary] Limited s RS millicn.

Dividends in terms of Shareholders' agraement, are 58t a1 6.3% par
annurn on the aggregate subscription price of R2,5 million

Citvi demnds recesvnd are up o date srdd included in revepgie,

11. BNYESTMENT IN A CELL CAPTIVE
Uinlisted sméeitments
Centrig nsusmands Company Limitad
Shasos ot cost - 7,000
s ervetmend in Cell Captive

Thee: thirese-year Cell Captre insurance ewpined at the end of March 2010, & decision was made not to renew the Cell Cagtise arrangement.
Thee: ineestmnent was sedthed at R14,73%,235 which comprsed of K7F,000,000 repayment of imsestment and Nguidation dmdend of R7, 735,235,
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IMVESTMENT I ASS0CIATE

GROUP

The Haticmal Housirg Finance Corporation has a 25% interest in Housng Investment Parfresrs, whach is invobeed in the development and
marketing of the Income Limked Home Financing [nstrument.

The following table lllustrates the summarised finamcial information of Mational Houwsing Fnance Corpormtion’s iInestment, in Housing
Insmstmsnt Fartnars:

2011 2000
A'O00 B
Share of the aszociate’s balance sheet:
Cument assets 57 1614
Hoa-CLETent aaseTs Rl 1163
Current labilties 126] 1
M agdat 1,051 a5
Carrying ameaunt of the investment in Company 5500 E5d8
Accumiilated share af the mseciaa’ loss 12,7108 (136
Current year share of koss {1,584} {1,448)
Share in changes in retained sarnings [2e1} B
‘Casrying amount of tha inestmeant 1,051 1B
Share of the addeciate’s neene 52 158
COMPANY
The Telicrasrngy tabhe Wusmranes the sumem arsed Anancial mleemition in the Com aamss books;
Invmstrant In shares at cost 5,556 E 565
Carrying amouit of the |wetmsant 5,566 5566
INVESTMENT I ASSOCIATE
GROLIF

The Mational Housing Finance Comperaticn has a 27% imterest in Trust for Urban Howsing Foundaticn Heldings {Propatanyd Limited (TUHF),
which i irrsolbead in the prosdsion of cammercial propemy financa in the form of bridging finance and long-term loands far tha regenaration of
South Afircan inner city precints and sumounding suburbs,

The following table ilusbrates the sumemarised firencdal infarmatan of Msticnasl Housing Finance Corporstion’s imvestment in TUHF Holdings
[Proprietary) Limsted:

AL Boguidation
1 Septarmbar
okl 2010 i
000 R'ooq Boaa
share of the assaciate’s balance shaet:

Cument xseks - - T48
Hom-cimrent adsets B20.004 2BB.310 -
Hosicusrent iabiitios (33010 {287,283} -
Het asset 3084 14027 T4E
Carrying ameourt of thee investrment in Com pamy 437 2437 2437
Accumulated share of the esociste’s proft T - -
Share of changes in resanes 354 - -
Share of profit of assodate 1703 279 -

Cunmang pear share of profis 1,868 are
Lass on change in sharehalding {168] = =
Carrying armeunt of the insestmsant 4773 2716 1437
Liess: Goodsall [1.585) 1,683} 1,885
3084 1027 T4E

Share of the sssociste’s revenue TS 19422
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ol 20110
Ro0n R'000
13, INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE continus
COMPANY
Thee fallowing table illustrates the summarised finsnoal information inthe
Compary™ boolks:
Irrestmnient im shares at cost 2437 2437
Carrying amaunt of the inveimant 1437 1,437
Thee inveestrnent in TUHF was reassessed in the curent year which resulted in the prior year restatement.
14, PROPERTY, PLANT AND ECQUIFMENT
GROUP 2011 kL]
Aocumulated Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Cost  deprecistson walue Cast deprecatian wahie
R' 00 RO Lige i) R0 R0 R'O00
Cam phiber [Exusp meent 8,318 [0l 218 7.T86 (&, BN} 025
Computer Softwane 5,188 [4.832) 256 505 [+ TE2) 04
Furniture and Ftings 3,708 [2397) 116 3,106 [, 948) 158
Iotor Wehicle I 217 e £ (65 227
Ol Bquig st BXR [67E) 153 Tz B9 173
Leasehald Imgrovemaents B3g (477 362 437 [423) 69
18,636 [16.683] 1,584 174630 (15,783 1,856
Reconcilmtion of property, plant and equipment for Groap - 2001
Opening
balance Additions [Disposals  Depreciation Tokal
RO R0 R0 RO R0
Com puber Equsp ment 3% L2 1] [} (53] 318
o puter Softwane Eis) 124 - (17 156
Furniture and Fittings 158 10 [E:]] a4 116
Itotor Wehicle 227 - - [EL3] 179
QM e (B st 173 E1 ] (1] 1531 153
Leasehald Improvemaents [ 347 - 1541 362
1856 1,064 [0 (R0 1,584
Feconciliation of property, plamt and equipment for Groap = 20010
Opening
balanoe Additicns Disposals  Deprecation Tirtal
FO RO RO 00 RO
Comparter Equapment 5 ol - [545) a5
o paiber Soltwane a3 268 - [ 304
Furniturs and Fittings 1ns 10 - (&1 158
ilotor ‘Yehicle d 145 [EE]] (33 23F
Ciffece Equsprrsent 45 73 - 45) 173
Leasahald Improvemssts &7 72 - e 5%

1.4&8 1,332 133 31 1,856
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COMPAMY 1 2040
A ournulated Canmying Acumulabed Camying
Cost  dapreciation v lise Codt e rediation valiie
RB'O00 ReD0 R0 e R'DDO [z ]
Camguar Ecquimant T.284 16 438) Bd5 5770 IS 851k 3 5]
Compuier Saftwane 4,997 14,788} i) 4,877 {4,648} )
Furniture and Fitbngs 2019 {275y 0] s {2695 14
Matar Wahicla 105 L] £ ] 195 11144 &1
Ddfice qu.llFl'nlﬁ‘t 561 [47a) -1 547 a1 L]
Lesmehold bmprovements nes 47 ax A5 29} &4
Tatal 16,555 {15,047} 1,508 15,700 14,273} 1,428
Reconciliation of property. plant and aguipmeent Tor Company - 2011
Opening Disposals
balanse A dinbana balarmce Depreciation Tertal
RGO R'Di0 R'OD0 RODHD R'DiD
Carmgiuned Edulprmeant E 48] 530 118 [4ET) B4
Cormputer Saftwans 129 12 - (a1} 09
Furniture and Fittngs 124 - - £ 1] 2]
Metar Wehila 8 - - (23} 58
Dffice Equipmant 106 4 - (=3 BT
Leaxsehold Improvements [ 207 - (&) 212
1428 B2 118 [F76) 1,508
Reconciliation of property. plant and equipmeent Tor Company - 2000
Opening Addetions
bslarce balance Dwpoanls  Depreciaton Tidal
RO RO00 i i 6] R'OHHY R000
Campifer Equipment a1l 506 - aaah B9
Campuiar Saftware 194 %1 - 1156) ]
Furniture and Fittings 1) Ta - 1504 124
Matar Wehacle - op - 9% &1
Office Equipmant 120 18 - 324 106
Lessehold Improvements 4 T2 - |65 &4
1,287 p ) - 1R14) 1428

Fully deprecated assets that are sl in use amownts to B8 milkon (2000 B9 mallicn].



NHFC Arinusl Report 2011
Fage 56

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2011

GROUR COMPANY
bl rie ) [a] a1 2010
[0 R 1] R'000
15.  IMSTALMEMNT SALE RECEIVABLES

Gross irstalment sale receivables 1o 120 % AR - -
Les: Unaanned Anance charges (36,297} GRS - -
Fresent value of ménimum [ease payments recssa bl Ll rd] 5 &S0 - -
L Prgreision Tor impaemment of recaivables [&18) TR - -

42,505 &, 168 - -
Peoin=ou nrent assets 36451 25574 -
Current assefs 5554 20554 -

42,005 &5, 168 - -
Thee prrervisian Tor imgpairment of receivalles is coriled as Tollows:
Opening balance BT22 14,797 - -
Feverial af paod shen 17,0y 15575 - -
Clozing balsnce 518 L e - -
Managemant's assasseent of the ageing of the nstalmant sabe debtors
I5 a5 follows:
L ma | year 6371 203146 - -
't 3 yaars 1338 6,501 - -
3 to 5 years 5018 14979
Chger 5 ars H0,0RS - - -

42873 54,890 - -

Th average term of the instalment sale receivalbles is 14 years. The Imarast rate In thae agreamsnt s foed at the contract date far tha full
paricd. Tha avarage interast rate for tha yaar was 11% (2010 11.9% per annum). Managemant considers that thae fair value of the Instalmant
sale recaivablas does not differ materially fram the carying valua.

The arrvisnt af R42,005, 386 (2000 Rad, 1 63,0000 is vhe masimaim exposims 1o cnedit rigk.
Thee imnpairmeent of BB18,132 (2000 A8, 712,856 takes into account the recoverable amownt of collateral.
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2011

GROUF

2010

1011
gelil]

COMPANY

20140
R'O00

17,

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Opening balance
Tranaders frem inyantory
Fair walue gain

55,174

9,818

42000
FRRR]

14,563

42100

6,300

Clasing balanos

252

LTa

1,745

48400

The fallowing amounts have been recognised in the income statement:

Fair walue gain
Rertal incame

9,818

14,563

¥

6,200
a4451

Investmesnt propertyfior the Compary i stated at fairvalue determined,
based on a waluation performsed by an acoredited independert
valuer, G Wampach (Registered Professional Valuser ar Meldane
Property and Valuaticn Services CC) on 22 March 2071, MrWampach
is redt canmected to the Company and has experence i property
vaduaticn. The capialisation of net income method of valuation was
used, based on a capimalisation rate of 14.5%. The captilisation rate is
ket determined by referning to market transactions of compar ble
proparties and is determined by dividing the annualised mcoms by
the purchase price. This yield is basad an indormation derivad fram
market analysis. Comparable sales in the immediate vicinity reflect a
capitilisation rate in the region of 14.4%

Drataili of Proparty

[} Drascrigtion Erwer 3030 armd 585 Wesi Gemniston, Germision,
Gautend, known % Prasident Flace

[b] Setusated at The cosmer of Pressdent, Heman, Clarfk and
FH Odendaasl Sthreets

In additian, far the Group, 3 parcantage of the housing stack bald by
Capa Towm Commanity Housing Corparation [Fropristany Limited was
reclassifiad as invastmeent proparty due 1o the dirotors assessmant of
thia allacation of housas hald for Invastment BUFPOsas

The hoirses were valued by an ndependent valastorn Serakulu
Prapsty Valoer, b it Tair value of RE2,506 630 The affective date
of the revaluation was 13 Apeil 2007, Revaluatiand were dope by
Me G B Adams of Sivabnbi Property Waboe i Mr &Sdams s nol conrectied
Lo Thes companry and has recent eiperience in boation and category of
the imyetiment properly being valied,

The vabuation was based on open market value for existing use.

GOODWILL
‘Goodwill

AT 31 March ar cost

4714

T4
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GROUR COMPANY
bl rie ) [a] a1 2010
[0 R 1] R'000
18. PROPERTIES DEVELOFED FOR SALE

Properties develcped far sale 23,578 KSR )] - -
Fepostesiad praparies A0, 180 2016 - -

64,015 5l kg - -
Recondiliation:
Properties developed for sale
Qpaning balaroe 34,318 5TAIT - -
Constrsction costs 37,353 34 500 - -
Trarsfer to cost of sales [Lirei-L]] (109 - -

23,B75 24318 - -
Repoiseased properties
Opening balanice 20,016 4 = =
Aedditions 22384 21,508 - -
Teanales 1o iFnvetme il propeny 122604 [ERRRN

40,140 20018 - -
Mo Inventory was phedged as security for liakilities. The carying
amount of imventorkes & bedd a1 fair value less costs to sl

1%, QOTHER RECETVABLES AND PREFAYMENTS

Deposits and prepayments 437 s 3 r
Felated parties - 2,155 - 2,188
Stall debtors 1,225 b 1,225 BOOD
Cthar receivabhes 2186 12637 4,421 2,800
AFD loan receivable 50,000 - 50,000 -

G0 248 15,792 55648 5,738

Creporits and prapayments sre setled when the dervioss have been provided.

Study loans induded n staff debtors are ron-inberest bearing and are written off or recovered when studies are comipleted.
Oihar staff debaces ane charged Intarest at prime.

Cither receivables are ron-interest-beaning and ae condidiend curnent ard e not impained,

Theer dirarwed oo fior the AFD boan was requested befone year-snd. The funds wene only received after year-end, therefore a recervabibe was rased.
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2011 20D 2011 il [1]

R0 R RGe R
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
Held-to-maturity money market inwestmaents - NHFC 410,680 G54, 735 410,880 ET0.550
ABSA Bank Lirmited &0, 000 &5, O &0, 0sDH} L ]
Inwestec Bark Limited &0, 000 o5, (00 0,000 5000
Soidth African Resarse Bank 17430 24,559 27430 559
Thie Standard Bank of South Africa Lim ibed &0, 000 5, D &0, 0sDH} TE D
Rared Merchant Bank, a division of FestRand Bank Lamited B0, 000 100, (G B, 000 LRl
Medbank Limited &0, 306 5,000 60,306 5000
Land Barik of South &frica Limiced 18,350 19,255 19,350 19,756
Tranznet Lirsted - M4.558 - 24558
Eskam Limited 18,447 45132 19447 #0022
Development Bank of Sowth Africa Limited 20,005 - 20,005 -
Trans-Caledon Turmel Authority (TCTA) - 24555 - 24584
Fuinels marsged by Centiig - 15145 - -
Infmresit recaivabla 4,103 T.536 41032 T.535
Hgbel -t -matiarity meney mdarksl |pveitmenti - Job aimmit
related prajeces® 403,177 380,659 #0277 1650
ABSA Bank Lamited 80,124 0,000 80,124 0, 0K
Rared Marchant Bank, a division of FestRand Bank Limited &0, 000 B0, 000 0, D0 (L0000
standard Bank of South Africa Lienited B0,000 40, 000 B0, D0 #0000
Medbark Limited &0, 08 00,000 60,308 0,000
Insnastis Bark Limited &0, 030 40,000 60, D0 #{.00)
Land Bank of South Africa Limited 38,819 IE 896 38,529 ZREDG
Eskomn Limnited - 58 545 - 58545
Trangnet Limited - 12647 - 19,547
Tians-Caked on Turnal Authority [TCTA) 18,732 - 18,732 -
Inferest receivable 3,186 4171 3,186 4171
Husdl-ta-rranurity monay market Investments - Devalopmant Fund® 118,313 100,785 118,313 100,385
Eskam Limited 18,447 156547 15447 19,647
Land Bank of South Africa Limited 18414 - 19,414 -
Investec Barik Limated 20,000 210, 000 20,00 20,000
Medbark Limited 20,000 20,000 20,00 2L
ABSA Bank Limited 20,000 0,000 20,000 0,000
Trans-Caksdon Turmel Authority (TCTA) - 19,651 - 19,861
Soarth African Reserye Bank 19,725 - 19,728 -
Ingarest e aivatla 7 w77 EF 1 77
Total held-to-maturity money masket investments 952,170 1,006, 583 SA2ATO 1,061,554

* FriolE ) e POV (MARAT — ST OB 4.

Held-ta-maturity mcn ay maked irsestments ane made fonvanying penicds up o Tesl months in Bee with the cash flew regquiremenits of the
Comgeration and garn Nkt at the respective maney market rages.




NHFC Arinusl Report 2011

Fage 0

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued

for the year ended 31 March 2011

GROUF COMPANY
2011 i [a] il 20140
R00 R [1gale]i] R'O00
1. CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS

Sher-term depaiitg - NHFC 10, 06 103,005 1070 DG 103,005
ABEH Bank Limited 20,283 I8 0281 27 5064
Irveastoe Bank Limitad & 718 TRz 5719 L
Medbank Limeted 12,575 208G 11975 2,008
Fearyd Mierchang Bank, & divisicn of Firmfand Bark Limiged 13,815 4375 12015 4375
Thee Standand Bank of Sowth Africa Limited 13,305 24 13,305 23241
Seandard Bank of 5ok Alvica Lirmited Seanlik) 15,731 16571 15751 16,571
Trars-Cakedion Tusninael ‘rl.ll:hl:lﬂl.]l (TCTA) 20,88 .0z 20,088 20,112
Shon-verm depaiits — Job summil relaied projects® 60ERG B0A3Z B 6RE B0 A33
AEEA Bark Limited G541 9307 9941 a4.207
Irrwesteg Bank Limited 16186 25474 156,186 26,474
Medbank Limsted 13,058 417 3008 474
Feand Mierchang Bank, & divigion of FirgtRand Bank Limiged 10,643 BORE 16,643 A,008
Thee Stancand Bank of Sowth Africa Limited 1556 7970 3,558 74978
Standand Bank of Souh Alvica Lirited [Ssanlil) 16263 10408 &6 13,400
Short-term deposits - Devebopment Fund® 33 0@3 £1.544 1082 51,564
ABRSA Bamk Lindted 1286 13,358 T 296 13,368
Fedbank Limated o447 12417 # 447 12417
Thee Stanclard Bank of Sowth Africa Lirmdged 11,748 13588 1. 748 13,588
Irrvetec Bank Limited 7591 1219 759 12,1491
Short-tenm deposits - Siyanda® 72g 0z T /032
Theee Senncland Bank of Souh Alvics Limied br i i Tiw o0z
Short-term deposits - Abahlali® SE5 1L 965 a15
Absa Bank Linniad S5 935 PES L EL]
Cash ot bank ard in hand 10281 6,146 7501 14,174
Thee Standand Bank of Sowth Africa Limeted 10,280 26,131 7587 14,170
Cash on Hand 11 15 4+ 4
Total cash and short-term deposits 215839 o ekl 213,139 251,012
Cash wnd sham-term deposies sarn werest ot Noating rates based on
Bank dapasit ratel
Foor the puirposs of the corsolidated cash Mo statemend, cash are cash
ecjuivakents <o prisss the Tolawing at 31 Masch;
MHFC 111377 128,151 108 67T 117,179
Shvort-teem cepasits 1040, SR 103,005 10,086 103,005
Cash at bank 10231 26,146 T3 14,174
Jab summit® 69,686 B0AZZ B4 60E BO433
Short-term depasits LLES BOAL2 LR BoAR2
IJI'I.II|I:II|:H'I1I|'I1: Fuand® 33,83 51554 33,08 51,564
Shvort-team cepasits 313,083 51554 33,08% 51,564
Sryanda® brid ik Tam i
Short-term deposits i k1 Taw a2
Abahlali® SES5 S35 o585 35
Short-team deposits BE5 P35 P65 LEL
Total 215839 o kLT 213,139 251,012

" P wesder sansgernent - refer Mate M4
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GROUF COPMPANY
201 Mo 2011 a0
R'000 R0 R0 gee i)

ISSUED CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMILM

Cagpital

Owdinary shares

Alkorised

10 THHE DHHE ordi naery shares of RDU each 1,000 1, 0H0D 1,00 1000

Issuad and fully pald
B4 187 352 ordinary shares of B0.01 =ach B4z (] " F] 2]

S haire premdumm BT9,158 B 158 E79,158 Era.1s8

GRANT CAFITAL 200,000 200,000 200,000 FO0C0D

The gramis arase as the resuly af the renger of the Housing Equity Furd
and e Hewsing Institutans Develaprnent Fursd in the 2002 finencal
year They are consicensd 16 be permanent and are therefone included
in the Sharehalder's Equity, Ther ane e corditikans attached 1o hese
grants,

FUAHDS UMDER MAMAGEMENT

Job summit {a)

= Poverny Relief Funds 420,985 395,834 420,986 INEE34
= Subsidier - KenZwi-Noral 5008 a5 S0.8TH o0 5T
Davelopmsst Furd [k 152,36 151,850 152,386 151 &50
Siyanda Praject (c) Er) 71 T k)
Abahlali [d) a5 %35 ] P35

Tatal funds under manegement 625,534 615,778 LFER L 615778
[al MHFC was appointed by the Mational Department of Human

Settlements to project manage the delivery of rental stock wnder

the Pressde ntial Job Summit housing progect and tasked to manage

funds allocated by Mational Treasury m termes of the Poverty Relief
Furd and subsidy funds from KwaZulu-Matal Province.

k] The development fund s 1o Increass capacity and technicl
assbstancs in the low-inccme housing market.
el Siysrda projgect 1§ 8 housing desvelopment partneship batween

WHFL, Essterm Cape Pranvincial Depantmaent ol Houdirg and Mnguma
Mainicipality. Thedes funds sre 1o be used for pre-project codts

[d] The WHFC i managing funds on behalf of the Abashlah Housing
Mzsociation relating to social housing remtal units.

Tha neq ingarme on thase funds is capitilised,

Funds under management are mmvested in beld-to- matunty invesbments
Mot 204 ared short-term deposits Mote 21].

DEBENTURES

Authorized

2 500 D00 fon-< ornvenible debaniumes of B sach carrying inepest
of 10 pa

Iszued

2 500 000 non-<orméetible debentimes of B each carrsing infenest

of Vs pa (City of Cape Town] 5000 5000 = -

Mom-cumrent habalities - 5000 - -
Cureant liabiliias 5,000 - = =

5000 5,000 = -

The debrentures sre not secured. A3 ot 51 March 2001, the Group is curently in talks with the City of Cape Town to renegotiste the repayment
terms. The balance shown abovwe inchudes acoumulated imterest of B ML {201 0 B2.500,000].




NHFC Arinusl Report 2011
Fage 72
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GROUPF COMPANY
xomn 2o 201 Mo
E'o0G R'000 R'0g0 Fo0g

26. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Held 3t smortised cost
Dartch International Guarantees for Housing (DKGH lear 1 015 1,306 - -
This boan bears inberest at a fived rate of 2.18% per anrum and is
repayable in amnual instalments of R433,542 [2000 RA53,731) inclusive
of imberest. The final instalmeent 15 paya blie on 3 July 2004

Daitch Irternat iomal Gisarantees for Housing [DKGHE lean 2 539 6,065 - -
Thits loan bears intenest atafooed rate of 7% perannumand i repayable

in annual instalments of K1,034,606 (2010 R1,167,872), inclusive of

interest The final instalment is payable on 17 January 200 6.

Development Fund LI0T 1,863 = -
Thits facility bears interest at a rate of 0% per annum and is repayable
N oE project income is received.

Agenioe Francalie de Developpement [AFDH 0,028 - 0P -
Thit loam bears interest at a fived rate of 7.015% per annum and

Is repayable in seméannual capital insalments of R1,923077

commenong on 31 May 2012 (2010 nil] exclusive of intarest. Tha final

instalmaent is payable on 24 Hovamber 2024.

60,5340 11,234 50,030 -
Mon-cunent hahilities at amorbeesd oost LA L] 10,333 46.5F1 -
Current lakilitess ar amortised cast 4450 M 3,500 -

50,340 11,234 £0,029 -

7.  FPROAIS|IONS

12919 14,047 12,488 12 it
Total provisions 12,39 14,047 12,4568 17,545
Provisian for lerve pay
Opening batance as a1 1 Agril 3,954 3,660 3,659 3355
Provision utlised for the year {320 {304} 1253} [254)
Addimanal provisicn raised 1,064 508 1,0 EL ]
Closing balance a< at 31 March 4,698 3,854 4470 18559
Fraviskan far incantive bomus
Opening balance as at 1 April 8,987 B3TE B,oE7 8378
Prodision ublided For the year [2.215) [TB0F) 15215} 7 BT
additianal provision mised 8,235 2418 8,336 BB
Closing balance a= at 31 March 700 Bo8y T 550 BoAT
Provision for munscipal ates
Qpening balanoes as st 1 April 1,108 2470 - -
Proyision utiiged for the yaar (B3] [V, 364) - -
Additianal provision raised = = = =
Clesing balance as a1 31 March 223 1,106 - -

Lemve pay prowision i3 realised when em ployess take leave or Berminate smployment

Prowision for incertive bonws is expected to be realised when bonwses are paid inthe 2012 finandal year.

Prosvigion ff muridipal rakes ovars The rates that ane sutstanding andd will Became payable when Cartain erven an ransfamed into he name
of Capse Tewn Camenunity Hewsing Company (Praprietary] Limite,
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GROUP COMPANY

2011 A 2011 ] [a]

R0 (R RG00 R0
TRADE AMD OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payable: 5.99% BSTF 5,571 1514
Valua-added tan 1.227 1336 - -
Land accrual - o, G600 - -
Accnued expenses 912 1,273 - -
Accndal far lease paymsnts 633 923 533 I3
Deferred reverue E e 1,944 = -
Subsidies received in advance k1.5 42310 - -

0,732 213,234 4,803 AA5T

Tradhe puaalsbess ars non-intarest bearing and ane serthed on 30-day terms,
The land accrual was setthed by the subsidiary rasng a loan account with NHFC, MHFC sefthed the acoount with the City of Cape Town
Accrual far lease paymssnts is as a result of straight-lindng oser the term of the lease. Refer to Mote 20.

Daterred revenue relatas to subsidies avallable for the retentions on NHERD rectification work and utilised when the bulding expense
is enked.

Subsidies received in sdvance are dres-downs by the subsidiary of subsidees i esgpect of the ‘Westgate Mall project. These amourts will be
included in rvemue an the completan and hand over of the houses.

GROUP COPPA MY
20m 2010 201 2010
Restated® Restated®
Hiote R'D00 1] R'D00 R000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIMG ACTIITIES
Met profit bafone tas 75,547 T3440 65,348 ERETE
Mon-cash and separately presented items 5.1 {3, 584] B1,965 14,832} 69,334
Warkirg capital changes 5.2 {304,831 (386,825 1285855} (365634
Tax pakd %3 [17.03&] (35313 {15,086} (33500
Met cash flows uzed in opersting activities {49,905 [, F32) 1241, 525§ [¥F1.001)]
291  Mos-cash and separately proseeted itoms
Deprecation S07 531 TG B4
Impammenks A 42T TI AR A427 el
Share of loss of an assocdate 1,584 1445 - -
Share of profit of an associate {1,703} 1279 - -
Fair value adjustment om inrestment propesty 9 E18) [14,5943) 13,545} [ ]
Gain an lguidation of irvesme ng - - 17740 -
Premium paid - 1,932 - 1,932
Amounts previously impaired, wotten off 1,050 - 1050 -
Prfit o Sabe of adsets w & - -
(3,584 &, 365 14832} &334
292 ‘Working capital changes
Increase in advances (257 358} (A8, 3310) 12554913} (17 2]
{inereasel’decrana in properias developad far sala 117,941} 1517 - -
Deorease in instalment sale recevable 4,183 BEE3 - -
{Increasel’decrease in stcomnts recera bils [ LA 1, B et £ L]
(D ias) i rRaRR i ACCOUME fay bie 113,512} [h4.00) 146 PE1
|Decreaselircrease in provisions {1,128} 1459 {178} 15

et increage i working capital (304,B33) [3E5,825) {285,855} [




NHFC Arinusl Report 2011
Fage T4

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2011

GROUP COMPANY
2011 01a i 2010
Restated® Rt ®
IR0 i e ] L] URI]
9. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES continued
B.E Tex paid
Balance at the baginming of the year 4312 5AE 10,537 1,42
Tau chasge for the year {15,571} {16, 580 (15,002 {14,339}
Balance at the srd of the year 25,377 e K3 ]| [0, 500 {20,552}
Tax paid 117,026} {25,213 [15,582) {33,529}
94 Cash and cash equivalents
Casgh and cath equivalemts condit of cash on hand and
inyestimeat In monsy markat irstruments. Cash ared cagh
equivalants ingluded in the cash flow Statemsnt comprise the
Tollovasiryg sEatemant of ameurits irdicating fnane ial position
Cash an hand and balances with barnks 10,281 26,145 7551 14,174
Short term depasits 205,540 il ¥ 205,548 256,858
215,839 162984 213,139 251,012

.5 Propeny plant and eoquipment
Durireg thee pei o, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregated costof R1.064 million (3010: B1.332 mallion).
Hone af the additions were acquined by means of government grants.
Drarirg the penad, the Company accjuired property. plamt and ecjuipment with an aggregated cost of BET2 GO0 (2010: BOES G0,
Mene of the additicns weere soguined by means of govermment grants.

GROUFP COMPARY
2011 Fieh 1] 011 2010
L g R R*{HH)

M CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Dpseratinng lease commitments — Group ad besee
The Group ertered o a commendal kease on the property from which
it cperates. The lease is effective from 1 Apil 2007 to 31 March 2012,
The bease has an escalation clause of 8% per annume & deposit
guarartes to the kessor of R533,500 (2010: RS32 500] & in place.

Future minimum rentabs payalde urder current cperating leass as at
30 Masch 2011:

Within ore year

#fter one year but ot more that five years

4,253
4,542

i
B|E6
g

Qperating leade commitments — Group ad e
Thee Group antened into o perating leases for photocoplers The leasas
comimenced an May 2008 and nn untll October 2011,

Futira sinirmuen rertals paya bl pnder the leade a5 5131 March 2011
Within ore yaar 85 03 as 203

Aler ane e bt st igee than free year - &5 - B85
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GROUP CORMPANY

21 2000 211 bl
R'Di0 R T R'=00 g el

COMTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS cantifmed

Oparating lease commitmants - Group as lessea

L=az= commatments relate to the mental of the two offices of the

subsideary:. Bath commencsd in 3009 and expires m 2001, The annual

escalation rate is 10%.

The future aggregate ranimum lexse paymants undar non=cancallablo

pparating leasa ane as follows

‘Within one year X2 558 - -

ATer cne year but nod meane that free yeans - a2 - -

pr 580 = =

Oparating laass commitmants - Group as lesses

Lease commitmends relate to the remtal of the office of the subsidary.

The lexse commenced on 1 March 2011 and nuns until 2016, The

anrual escalation rake s B%.

Tha fumane aggragane minimuam |pase paymsents under non-cangellable

eperating lease ang as fellows

‘Within ane year 437 = = =

After one year but not maore that free pears 5,00 - - -
4382 - - -

RETBREMENT BEMEFITS

The Natsnal Houdeng Fnsnce Corpaiation Provident Fund i o defirsed

canbibution find admireitered by Bobion Sevsge, and dubpct to

the Perdion Funds &et ol 1956, AN B7 employesd af the Camgany

prarticipate in the furd and the Company maked all comlributans.

Al full-time employe=s of Cape Town Community Howsing Company

[Proprietary) Limited belong to the Orion provident fund which is

governe=d by the Pension Funds &ct of 1956. The Compary makes all

cantrbutiors an behalf of its employees.

HHFC and CTCHC ane bath not liabla for post-natiemant barefits

Pranvidend fund comributions 6,849 5103 5,856 4274

FIMARCIAL RISK MAKNAGE MENT
The Growp has vancus firancal assets such as koans and recervables, instalment sals receivables, other recerables, investment in preference
shares, cash and short-term deposits and held-to-matunty meestments which anse drectly from its opsabaons.

The Groupt prirdipel fmancial liabdities camgrte lunds under management, debeptures, other Minandial labilities and tade and other
payalkieg,

Thie madn rsks arising from the Growp's finandal mstraments are credit risk, iIntenest rate isk and guidicy risk.

The Board is ultemately respansible for the overall risk management process and reviess and approves palicies for the managing of each of
these nsis The Board has delegated certain matters to the Audit and Risk Committes and the Board Credst and Investment Commitiee.

The Graup' senior management cversees the managerment af these rsks and s suppaned by @ Finarsial Risk Management Commithes,
Maruge ment Credit Committes arsd Enterpride Risk Mansgement Framewark.

Thess committess provide assurance that risks ane governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financal risks are idantified,
meeasured and managed in accordance with Growug policies and Group risk appatioe.
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32, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT cantir s
Cradin Risk

Crelit risk |5 the risk of an ecoramic loss arising frem the lallure of a courmerpany 1o fulfill its contrachual obligations

Financial assets, which potemtially subject the Group to cancentratiors of high credit risk, consist prncdpally of advances. Short-term depasits
and held-to-maturity maney market investmaents are placed with finandal instituticns rated at least F1 or better in tesms of short-term credit
rartinegs by a reputable rating agency. Credit and concentrationrisk on advances and investments are limited in te2rms of the Credit and Treasury
paolickes which prowide for pradent single counterparty bmits i respect of indiidual clients x a percentage of the todal of each portfolic. The
credit policy also provides for comprehersive sanctioning stnectures ard assessment critenia Advances are presented net of the allowance for
impairment. The advances at year-end reflect that the Group has exposune within approved countenparty limits.

AU expaRLng Do credin risk

GROUP COMPANY
2011 20110 2011 Flih[=]
R0 RTHR R'000 R
Loans and receieshles - acvanoess 1,562,794 1,330,922 1,829,775 1399308
Irrstalrnent sake recsivalleg 42,005 46,163 - -
I-HH-II:I-rI'lHLI"It)'InH‘IsI:n'l:ITEI 932,170 1,076,683 533,170 1,051,534
Cash and short-term deposats AR L 202,984 231w 1
Qrher recsivakie &0,411 15,563 55,686 5736
Irreestment in preference shanes 2,508 2,500 2,500 2500

Collsteral and othier credit enhancements - loans and receivables advances
Thee Group endeavours to obtain collateral or other security against ol advances mede, dependent on the assessed risk mherent o the
particular advance and in line with the MHFCS ap proved Credit policy.

Thee falkowving Types of collateral ane cumemly held against leans ard receivalles - achvances sy bpet 1o Credit rsk

= Bonds ower properties

= Debtars book

= Cezsion of Income

= Personal guarantees.

= Gowernmental quarantess.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, reguests additional collateral in accordance with the undedying agresment, and
muonitcas the market value of collateral obtaned during its review of the sdeguacy of the allowance for impairmeents losses.

Cradit quality of loans and receivables = advances

GROUP
2611 2010
R'0sD0 R'000
Thee eraslit cuuinlivy of |cans snd redaivables pdvances that one feitbser et due for mpeeeed can be psseiied
by rel P B B RN,
Maithar past dus ror im paired 1,357,500 1,084,175
Fast due but not impared 108,365 129,796
Impaired * 133,953 2H9.849
1599918 1461419
Less: Specific impairments (104,217} {131,233}
Ganaral Impalrmernts (32,907} 11,464
Pt advances 1,562,784 1,330,922
* i ieed bataroe i nat el fo seea e FMDSTINIE 29 Sorthe Sdwlacss ane oo il Ampsinat cosdisering mie vakee of necmm
Total ocays 3I0-60days GO -DOdays SO0- 1R0days  »120 days
G0 roo0 roon roo0 Roo0 Ro00
Ageing analysis of advances that 011 108,365 15,5673 8,445 6,968 2,663 T4E16
are past due, but not impared 2010 129,796 94,933 1,426 1422 4,183 27852
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2011 ried ]
R'00D R
FINAMCIAL RISK MANASEMENT continued
Cradit quality of loand and receivabdes - sdvances
The credin quality of loans and recehvables advances that ane naither past dus nar impaired can ba asessad
by rederang e to imbernal credis ratings
Meither past due nor impaired 1,424,581 1044175
Pase ddue baat peat irnpained A0, 365 195212
Imgial nat® 133,853 TEREAD
1, ki, A5 1532235
Less: Spadfc ImpaEments 1104,217] (121,333)
General impaiments (32,907 11, ]
Hat achvances 1,628,775 1390338

® opires baknoe oot aqund i specifc impakoastr as seme ot ces o nod fuky imgaieed consiaening she value of seciidy
Tortal 30days 30-60days G0-90days 90=-120days »1Z20days

R'000 R000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Ageing analysis of advances that 2011 108,365 15,673 8,445 6,969 2,662 74,616
s it chim, bt mat impaied 2010 198317 154,854 3,354 4,007 7438 78549

The Grouwp’s credit process considers the foll owing to be key indicators of defsult

= Evidence of finarcial distress when it is considened that the borrowser is unlikely to pay its credit obligation in full
- Thee diebf s moee than 90 days m arrears.

The fair value of collateral that the Growsg halds relating to past due orempaseed kaans and recesva bles at 21 Maech 2001 amounts iR 236 millian
(200 A4S millcn).

Dhurireg The yoar the Group did ned Take possession of any guarantees and debiors beaks

The camying amount of advances that would otherwise be past due whose terms have besn renegotiated amounts to R220.3 millon
(2015 e, % mallion).

The bulk of these renegotiated advances involves a key dient whea fell Inte amears as a result of courterparty defay in meeting combractual
ohligations. The matter has since been resoleed. The rest ane resheduled advances after some clients were behind schedule with project
Iy le meenitation thas resultting in temporany amrears du e to tirang differenoes

GROUP

2011 2010
R0 Food

Crad it quality of imstalmant sabe receivablas
Meither past due nor impaired = -
Past e bait pat i palred = -
Impaired * 42,833 S B
42,83 40
Lizss: Spacific i pairmrents (218} (8.7
Het achysmoes 42,005 45,158

* Enopainng BalaTICE iF S0 Agu) B0 [RECil iMERosees 95 ST IrTabeear fak recovibies A nol fuly impaied conshalenng the ke of seurity
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GROUP COMPANY
201 2MD 20m1 o
R'00& RO R'0G0 Ly )
33, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contimussd
Credit quality and conzentration of other financial assets
Counenaamies with extemal credit ratings of at laast F1
= Hield-to-maturity imsestmenits = Mon ey 8aroed 932,170 1,076,683 LEFR L] 1051534
- Cazh and short-berm deposits FARR KL 262,984 13,1 Fai N b
Counterparties assessed by reference to historical information about
oounberparty default rates
- Instalment sabe receivables 42,005 i1 68 = -

Orther receivables and prepayments are considered current and are not considered impaired.

Thee: inseesAntent in prefennoe shanes is ned coniidenad impaired,

Concentratson risk of loans and recefvables by operations

o rsercial 15%
Projects &67%
Betail 1%
Iertarest rata ik

Irterest rate reck is the exposure of the Group ta moreased financing cost and reduced revenee due to achesrss changes in imbsrest rabes.

Ther objactives of managing Interest rate risk ane ta:

I

icdentify arvd quantify iberest rabe sk and o structu ne asiens and lisbiliies 1o redsos the mpect of dhanges i nlenas] rane;
minimise the negative impact of acwers= interest rate movement on the Group's retumes within an acceptable risk profile;
reduce the cost of capital and minimiss the affect of iInarest rate volatility cn funding cost;

Mbnage o sueed by endufirng an approprisle ralic of Aoatng rate expoiure b ixed rate expoiined

take advartage of inberest rate cydes.

Thee Group |5 exposed o interast rate sk on the following assets and Kabiliaes:

GROLP GROUP
2011 2010
Fioed rate  Linkod rate Fised rata Lindoadd rte

Strategy i) Ro00 R'ona Fooo
Assats
Loan and recervables = advances rates vary between
5% ard 14.5% p.a 1 117,159 1435535 124,955 1,205,967
Irstalment sale receivables awerage interest rate of
1% pa 1 #2.00% - #6166 -
Hialed- G- o UFiCy InARsEImsnTs rated wary bemwiban
5.5% and § 005% pa 2 - 131,170 - 1076643
Cash and short-term deposits rates vary between 5% and
FAl% pa. 2 - 215839 - 157,984
Liabilities
Fureds under management = rates ane linked to shart-
tenm invesbmaent rates - 625,954 - B8
AFD loam the rate it 7015% $0,029 - - -
Other Reancial liabilites — rates begwean 7% and & 15% TA = 83T -
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COMPANY COM PA Y
2011 2HE
Fied rate Linked rate Fimed rate Linked rate
Strategy =i LR R0 LRI

FINAMOIAL FISE MANSSEMENT continued
Invberast rate risk

The Camgany i expased Te intanest rate sk on the
Tellcradrng assats and liabil ithes

Assets

Laan and receivalbes — advances rates vary batween
5% and 145 pa 1 137,158 1,502,616 134,955 1,234,303
Held-to-maturity imeestments rates vary between

5.5% and B.005% pa. I = 932, 1m0 = 1,061,534
Cadsh and short-term deposits rabes vary betaesn 5% and

T502% pa. 3 - 5,139

251012

Liabilithes

Funds ureder management - rates are lnked to shoet-

texm irvestment rates = G25,954 615,778
AFD bkaan the rate i at 7.015% S0.02% = - -

Inkerest rate risk mansgement strategy is as follows:

1. Cherrts v enjoy variablie intenest rate facilities are subject to inberest rabes that reset an a change in prirs iIntenest rate or on a quartesty
bsais im accordan e with various market indices.

The rates apglicablde o Mised intenast kans ane baded on agnaed makoeq maies al date of diskursament and remain Med Tor the full tenm of
the lbam

2. Inwestrrents are aligned to the cach flow requirsments and strategy of the care business The portfolic is diversfied utilsng a mix of fooed
and floateng rate nstrumesnts within the palicy framework snd is continuslly monitared to adspt to changing dynamacs.

Invterast rabe sensibivity

The npact of 1% mowe ininterest rates, which is deemed reasonasble based on the interest rate forecasts, wath all other vanables beld constant
is eflected bedos.

GROUF COPMFAMNY
2011 Pl ] 2011 mia
Effect on Effect an Effect on Effect on
Ins rease/ profit farait prafin prafit
Decrenss before tax beefare L befire tax befre 1y
% R'000 00 RO00 R0
Laans and recercabiles — advarces 1 15,804 LLRA L 16,756 11504
I [15.878] ILRPSLE {16531} (1,7
Held-to-maturity imeestmenits 1 4,107 5947 4,107 £ ran
i 107 (5,347 14407} 15,7551
Cash and shart-team dopasits 1 1714 1,293 1. E7 1072

[1h 1,114 (1,252 {1,c87) .17
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GROLUP COMPANY

2311 i [ i 2o
R'=00 Foaled ROHHD R'OO0

32,  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT cantinised

Thees GiroUp aarms intenast x5 follows:

Iriterest on advances 118,521 111,053 124,758 118,438
Irterest an cash ard cash aguaralents 41 0%6 THE 40,005 73,287
159,959 186,730 164,763 190,125

Thee Group's Interest chligations ane as follows
Iriterest cn debentures = Nz = =
Irterest on other financial liabaities 1,150 B 611 -
1,150 1014 611 =

Ligquidity risk
Liguidity risk s the risk that the Group may ot be able to generate suffickent cash resources to horaur its finanial commibments on a cost
effective and timecus basis.

T ensure that the Growp is able to meet its inancial commatments the iquidity management process includes:

&

sheat- and kang-tarrn cash fow manage rent;

#  diversification of insestmaent actiities with appropriate levels of short term instruments and maturties in line with the Treasury policy,
i at b=t 60 % of Money Market portfolio to mature within six months;

#  Birnitiesg Capital Market investments to 30% of the portlelic

#  the Group is in the process of mobilisation funding. &5 part of its funding programme the Group secured funding from the Agence
Francaise de Develappemsent (“AFD"] and the Europaan Investment Bank (EIET)L.

Thee tatle below summarised the maturity profile of the Grouph fnancisl lisbiliies st 31 March 2001 bated on comtractual undiseounted
T EE:

Leis thain E10RF
E manthi meanthd = Tatal
Az an 31 March 2011 R0 R'00 RO R0
Trache arvd other payables 6,205 - - &, 905
Fureds umdier g ot - - 615954 625,954
Cebentures 5. 500 - - 5,000
Cither fnancisl liskilites - 4,450 83955 BB 385
11,505 4,450 705,889 726,144
A% ar 31 March 2010
Trade and other payables 5,851 - - 3,851
Fureds usder mdirsg o mant - - 615,78 615,778
Debantuns - - 5,000 5,00
Cithier fnanciall liabilibes - 01 12575 13476

%851 01 £33.353 644,105
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FINAMCIAL FISE MANAGEMENT continuad
Faiir walue of finan cial msirements

The carrymg value of finenoal assets snd inenoal lishilities for bath years approad mated Eheir fair vabaes.

Capital management
The ohiective of the Groups capital management @& & ensure that i maintaing a strong credit ratmg and generates sufficient capstal to
suppeort its busaness ohjectives and meadmise Sharebol der vabue.

omn 2010
R'DO0 Foan
Tstal equaity LIT6SEE 1 ING635
Creditt rating
The credn ratings Balow ane provided by the Glabal Cradiy Rating Ca;
Hatianal
Lang term A
Shor 1erm Al+
Financial assets by category
The pecaianting polices for frmncial instruments have bean applisd 1o the lie items balaw:
Held-to-
Loans and maturity
receivables  insestments Tortad
Groap - 2011 g ROD0 R'000
Laans and recervables - advances 1,562,794 - 1,562,794
Instalmeent sale receivakles L1005 - 43,008
Hald-ta-manurity imsestmants = #3070 #3210
Cash and shart-term depasits 215,835 = 215,835
Cthesr receivables [ TF R | - &0,411
Inymstmsent In prsferans e shares - 7,500 2,500
1,801,045 S84, 8T0 AMEMS
Company = 1011
Loans and receables - advances 1829, 778 = 1,859,778
Instalmsent sale recaivablas = = =
Hlll:l-l:ﬂ-l'nil:l.lrﬂ:y’ ImaEsments = 32,170 332,170
Cazh and short-term depasits 215,139 = FAR Rk
Daker receivaias 55,646 = 5,645
Investment in preference shares - 2,500 2,500
1,098,560 PE4ETO 4,833,230
Haked-1-
Loars and maburity
receivables irrestments Total
Graugp - 2010 11 R'O00 RO
Loans and recerables - advances 1,330 503 - 13305077
Insnalmeent sale receivablog A6, 168 - LA
Hald-ta-maturity imsastmants - 1,076,683 1,076 EE
Cask and short-term dEpullIS 262,584 = okt
Db e aivislilag 15,563 - 15.56%
Inssastmeeat In praferanca shares - 2,500 2,500

1,655,637 1079183 2THER)
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32

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMEMNT cantinusd
Fimancial aszets by category contimwed

Held-ta-
Laghig and ALty
rocardabiles ImEstmens Tevtal
Compary — 2010 3= ] RO R0
Loans ard receivablos = advanoes 1,399,138 - 1,399,338
Irestalment sale receivables - - -
Hasled-Ro-rafurity inwastimsnts - 1,060,534 1061534
Cash and short-tenm deposits 151012 - 251,012
Cither receivables ETES - 5. 756
Irvwasamrent in preforence shanas - 2,500 2,500
1 A0 D 1,04, 034 2,720,120
Firan<ial linbilities by category
The accounting pelices for fnancial instrurnents have baen applied to the bne Rems balew:
Finncial
liabilities ak
amortized cost
Group - 2011 R0
Cither fnancial |ishbil ies 60,340
Trace arvd other payaliles 05
Cabanturas -
Fureds under manesgement B25, 554
583,198
Company - 2041
Crithar fnanciall llabil es 50,038
Trade and other payables 3,571
Chedapilimes =
Fureds under maragarsnt 525,954
670,954
Geap - 2010
Orther fnancial liabil ites 11,234
Trade and other payables 451
Dehaniumes 50400
Fureds urnidier marsg et 615,778
641 663
Compary - 2010
Crfrer frvancial liakH| s -
Trade and other payablas 14,810
De=bhentures -
Furds urder marsgement 615,778

630,588
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RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURE
The cansalidated firnendal statemaents include the financlal statemants of Mational Housing Finance Corparation Limited and subsidianes as
listad bial o

201 20140
Caurtry of e Bryuity % equity
Ineorparstizn inkarasn ifbErasL

Suhsidiary
Gateway Homeloans (Proprietary] Limibed RSA 100 [e 4]
Gateway Homeloans 0017 (Proprietary] Lirnibed R3A 100 =)
LCantrig Cellcaptive RSA = 100
Cape Town Community Housing Company {Proprictary) Limited RSA 100 a0

The falkrwing table prosides the total amounts of tanssctions arsd cutstanding balances which have baen entesad info with related partias

oo thia salavant financial yaar
GROLP 2011 GROUF 2010

Amounts owed Tramsactions  Amounts owed Transsctions
byt related werth related by/io refated weithi related

parties parties parties partes
R0 g eili] T Fried)
Ralatad oty
Transactions with other pulblic entities
Socisl Houding Foursdatian
- accounts raceiabile rafer Nota 19) - - FAELS -
= management fees necehed - 182 - ikt |
ThubalishaNDOH
Aclyances 14,315 - 14,316 -

Termns and conditions with related parties
Tranzactions with related parties are dene on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length ransactons.,

Except for advances, accounts receivable are inberest fres and settlement ccours in cash. There have been no guarantees provided ar received
four amy related eosnables

Far the year endad 31 March 2011, with the excegtion of the amaount owed by Thubalisha which is fully imgained, the Group has not eoonded
any i paireent of receivab les rdating to amounts cwad by related parties (2002 Hill.

Transactians with key manpgemant parsenne if disclasad undar nate 34,
COMPANY 2011 COMPANY 2010

Amourts owed Transactions  Amounts avwed Trandactiang
kit related with related kg related with relaed

[P insl [ty partas frarTa
R'00s0 IR’ =D RO R0

Tranzactions with subsidiaries:
Gateway Homeloana (Proprietary] Limited
— Invtar-comparty (Feoeive bies) (&7 [25] -
Centrig Celicaptive
- inderest received = - Pl
Capre Tawn Carenianity Housing Company {Praprierary) Limited
= ghanas at cost 4,000 4, 00D -
- debarares 19,857 17651 -
- advaries 6,891 B A1E -
- disbursemanis 49, 548 - 51,007
— inderest received L e 1] - ETia
Transactians with other pullic entivies
Social Housing Foursdation
- accounds recevable 2138 -
— management Teeg received 182 - PEES

Thubalisha'NDOH
Advances 14,318 14318 -
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34 DIRECTORS' AMD SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMCOLUMENTS
Thee amsaurts disclosed in the table below are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key managemsent

persannel:
Pat=
araplay i
Shea Fi-taim panlon and
ammployas banaiis mmndical
Feos alanios Bomusas bemnadfits Orther®  Total 2011 Tedal 2010
R00 ] 300 R"3D0 00 R0 R'000
Diirectors:
independent Non-Executives 641 - - - 14 B5S 357
STati 156 - - - - 156 51
I Mlakiiviane 12 - = - = I3 26
5 Nesaluba .5 - - - - L] 141
T Mickdlecorn - - - - - - %
5 Khoza 63 - - - - &3 a0
5 Swanepoel 1 - - - - ] -
AN Houstom 33 - - - 14 o 55
I Conizea 165 - - - - 165 L
P Ramarameo L) - - - - 3o 2]
Chiaf Executiva Officar and
Exgcutive Direcior
5 Moraba 2,643 1,71 500 43 4,787 1,808
Exgcutivg Mambers 11,243 4,540 1,715 198 17,686 12,276
& Egbserd - - - - - 1476
M Nishingila 945 433 1149 16 1,503 1,198
5 Mutepe 1,178 782 111 0 3,053 1,539
A Chimpondah 1,204 TS 157 20 2,123 1423
L Lehaba 1,108 485 158 19 1,770 1416
% Mogane 528 207 183 16 1,334 1,133
5 Madikizels B2 218 115 17 1170 14030
& hdams 1,065 s10 220 18 1,813 1420
A Gowender 47 182 156 13 1,098 765
F Haman 750 LEL a2 15 1,555 B7S
M Mamatela 8E7 115 1] 14 1,076 -
R Maoodley B 123 175 15 1,114 -
el Wiabule ke Flirs LE] 154 13 ST -
T Sihlaba 8 - 13 2 14 -
Total &1 13,038 E,271 205 255 13118 16,541

Mate Praf Kakz agreed not to change faey
Thee CED is the anly diregior with a service contmet with the Corparation The netice peniod does not axcead one year,

* Oher inciide  aael SadTs Fov (neckors g e benelirs
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EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION DATE

Rtad oparations

In linse wich the Group's siratagis plan, the Retail Busingss will be sold in the funine. The Retad business has baen custailed and ondy axisting
obligatians ane baing fulhlled. The Retall advances did nat mest the requirements of IFRS 5 o b2 classified ag hald tor sala.

Inwestmeent: in aszociabe
The Corporation currendly has an inberest of 25% in Housing Investment Partners [HIFL Within the 2012 financial year, the BHFC increased ifs
sharehaolding n HIP fram 25% 1o 33%.

HIP is now set for launch in August 204 1. The funding for the launch will amount to B108 million which wall come from the sharehalders in
direct proportion of ther respective shareholdings.

Meortgag s Deda sl IFEuren cs (“MIDIT)

A Begrsileilivy study consducted in the prior wear, which nduded all major hougirg Ninanoe stakefoldens, confinmad That reasonalbde conditons
Al in Sauh Alrica 1o estaliish a M3 eperation Work on the im plemantatian plan of the program s & asnlnuing and the Comporation is in
tha process of chianing the redassan approdali,

The key business objective of a wiakle MOV 15 to promote acoess to affordable, guality housing on a sustainable basis for South African
househol ds as part of 5 leger housing finance system.

WORLD CUP EXPENDITURE
GROUP
W1e 20010
Purchase of other World Cup apparel Ol artity RO R0
T-sharts a7
- - 62
Total World Cap expenditure - &
COMPANY
oien i il o]
Purchase of other Weorld Cup apparel Ol artay IR Rl
T-sharks a2
- - L
Tatal World Cap expenditure - L)
GROWP
FisREi ] 20910
Parchinse of ot her Waorld Cup apparel i antity IR0 e i)
T-sharts i}
Dfice decorations 3
Staff fumcticns n
= - 34
Total World Cup expenditure = 14
COMPANY
210 i T ]
Parchiase of obhesr Waorld Cup apparel Chiantity 1R 2= i)
T-sharts 4
Office decorations L
Staff fumcticns 10
- - 7

Tatal World Cap expenditune = Ir
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37, EBUDGETED AMD ACTUAL RESULTS FORTHE YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2011

Actual Budget

1] A0
Inicomie
Lending imcome: 118,523 171,586
IFrs AT L i 41,036 207463
Sale of houses 54,455 169,752
Cither income 29,650 19,51
Tatad income 2d4, 04 390,421
Impai rmesmts (4427 {25,708}
Cost af salas 47, 795} 1140,752F
Oiperating expenses (15,3143 {133,543}
Qparatireg prof 76,535 pz418
Share of logs of an assoclate = Housing irvestment Partners [1,544) a6}
Share of profit of an assocate - Tnest for Urban Housaing Foundation 1,703 -
Iriterest g (0150 113,863)
Profit before tax T 547 77429
Tax 15,689 13,573
Profit after tax 9058 60,858

Theer masutts of the Caps Town Commnity Housing Comgany (ICTCHC) are consolidated into the finandal statemaents. The approved budgat
Includas the apsrations of the CTCHC

Thee fnancisl perfonrmanos of The Conporatian was mmpsctad by the Tollowing:
Lending income impacted by below budpeted disbursements

Sala af hauses ware mainky impacted by the dalay in bord approsals which intumn kd 1o a delay in transfeming of comp khed units a6 wall a5
condiruction of Tog Fhnsctures.

Thee positive yamanoe in oiher incorme s manhy a3 the resalt of the revalustion of the investment properties
Beversal of impairments previously raised following conclusion of settlement agresment.

Thee Corpaaratian achloved savings in operational sxpenaes

Later than snticipated dravidown af borrowsngs resulting in redisced borrawing coils.
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Performance Report

for the year ended 31 March 20171 in terms of Section 55 of PEMA

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Thee curran finangial year has been charactersed by the difficult market conditians that cantinue ta impact cn the eperations of our clients. partnars,
ard end-users, thus affecting the cuerall perfarmange of the Conpamation

Miultyple factors comributed to the cverall below target performance, notwithstanding the recent seemirgly improved economic dimate, imthe form
of low inflation and level of interest rates. Key to thase, amongst athers, that had a direct negative impact ta HHFCS performance ane:

BAMKS CONSTRAMED LENDING

Thaaigh Barks came ol of the global depredsssan relalively unscathed, dedicmg revenes, lower corporate and housshold actisity, depressed
earning s, hagh cosl Lo indome raliod, bad debl and higher capital and liguidity regisrements, pul the banking sector undes pressure. The resaill beng
sgnificant tighlering im their lerding criteria. Tevo key projects wers alfected by this where morigage uplake wad nol as envisaged.

DEFENDENCE O SUFBSIDY FLUMDNING OF S0C1IAL RENTAL HOUSING
A sigrificart amaunt of fursding for Benral Sodial Housing Frojecrs did mar maneriaiise due 1o unavailabiliy of subsidies for These prajects

TIMING OF COMPLEY STRUCTURED DEALS
Caue to thie mature, size, complesity and partnerships in respect of somse of the prajects, considerable time is taken to canclusicn ard signing of
the cantracts.

OVER INDESTEDMESS OF THE END LUSER

fast househalds are so over indebted thet they bese no capacity 1o Baks more or are beng declined by banks for the ame reasen. Unemplayment
arsd job lasses are also fsctors that impactzd negatively to the end user stustion. This end user sfustion, also aMected the Commecial busiress af
the Conporatsan.

GRADAJATICN OF S0ME OF THE NHFC CLIENTS
Ir e pigeline used for Budgening pupesss, sams of The existing MHFC clients, have eached a moatueed anad stable scate, that They Can seek aliernanise
runeling, incidireg Tram Commerdal Banks &5 3 resull, some af e NHFC Prajec furding wa s not Takem up, &8 alvermative fursding was used irdnzad

ENTRY OF MEW FUMNDING ENTITIES IN THE AFFORDABLE SFACE
I thie year under reveew, thiene was a siqnificant nge m new funding players, espedally in the prsate rental inner ¢ty space. Although it & a good
thirg for the market, It means pipeline not dravwm far the NHFC.

SINGLE QBLIGER LIMITA ONCENTRATION RISK
Thee izzue of Single Chliger Limit, slso defnes. for NEFC, the maxemum the Corporation can kend tooa single client. based on its wze and capaoty. In
some instarces, the corsideraticn & that of resk concerdration. These factors bend o limit any other exposure 1o a ciend or ssciorn

Thees abscnse Do bl of disburssments, defingely had a bearing on The Rausing impac and of the number of benefcianas The leveraging of privare
SR capacity W also subclusd, due ke dow lemding panmerns, dusing The year under redew
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Performance Report cntinued
for the year ended 21 March 2011 in terms of Section 55 of PFMA

Actual Budg et
Funding Impasct
Husbar of appravals
Projects 1 14
Commercial 1 5
Rirtail 443 300
Total mrumber of approvals 52 E L]
Value of approvals [R'm)
Progescs arr ain
Commercial [} 205
Retail 23 o1
Tirtad valua of agprovali (R'm) I 1,081
Dishursements (R'm)
Preecns EEL) L300
Cornmercial 55 183
Retaul 167 1.20
Tevtad walua of dishurse ments (R'm) 16 ag3
Leverasged Nands [R'm) S0 1,767
Total Funding Imipact 1,021 1,730
Davelapmantal impact
Housing opporiunities
Housing units 5757 8,400
Incramantal loans 1LEI3 10,333
Mortgage loans v 1,154
Taital Ienpact &07% 198832
Impact beversged through athers 1,460 2464
Tortal inpll:t 2535 23,356
Banafkciaries banfiting 36,748 B4,853
Number of pobs created 1,171 2,800
Valge of disbursaments targeted towards woman-managedioened companias [B'm) iz S0
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